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Silver Grant International Industries Limited $R 2R &2 5 R A 7

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS B ##E

2008
ZETNF Changes
HK$’'m s
H&EET %
Profit Attributable to Owners — ANAFIER A JE(L T

of the Company 406 87 367%
Total Assets BEMRE 6,498 6,410 1%
Equity Attributable to Owners — ZANAFIHEA A JEE IR

of the Company 5,169 4,870 6%
Cash & Bank Balances He RiR1THH 1,980 792 150%

Changes
Key Performance and FTEZHERER HKS ga)

Liquidity Indicators: BRI BT %
Basic Earnings Per Share EIREARZF 0.223 0.048 365%
Net Assets Per Share (Note 1) ®BIREERE (K1t 1) 2.84 2.67 6%
P/E Ratio (Note 1) m&EE (Bfat 1) 13.0x 14.8x (12%)
Return on Capital Employed AR EERE (HaF 2)

(Note 2) 7.9% 1.8% 339%
Return on Total Assets REERWRE (M5 3)

(Note 3) 6.2% 1.4% 343%
Gearing Ratio (Note 4) BBt E (Hat 4) 9% 16% (44%)
Current Ratio (Note 5) TENLE (M52 5) 3.2x 2.1x 52%
Interest Coverage (Note 6) FEERLE (47 6) 19.3x 4.6x 320%
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Notes:

Based on 1,820,709,611 shares issued and fully paid as at
31 December, 2009 (2008: 1,820,709,611 shares) and the
market closing price of HK$2.91 (2008: HK$0.71) per share.

Calculated as profit attributable to owners of the Company
over equity attributable to owners of the Company.

Calculated as profit attributable to owners of the Company
over total assets.

Calculated as total borrowings over equity attributable to
owners of the Company.

Calculated as current assets over current liabilities.

Calculated as profit before finance costs and taxation over
finance costs.

ER-_TTAE+ _A=+—HEBHITLED

B2 B 19 1,820,709,611 R (— T T )\ 4

1,820,709,611 3% ) R M E &R 2.91%8 T
TETFE 071 BT ERE -

IARRBER ARG NR AR R REE A
JEIERANFTE S

IARRBEER ARG NG A EEREPT
EERERARRRIER ABERAGE
NRBEERNRSREEMS -

SUITR 1 75 28 PR TR BT B IR LA B 75 28
SHEFE -
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CORPORATE INFORMATION A A& #}
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MANAGING DIRECTOR’'S STATEMENTS ES A LKLEH L

Review of Results

Profit attributable to owners of the Company increased
by HK$319.2 million to HK$406.3 million (2008: HK$87.1
million), representing an increment of approximately 367%.
Basic earnings per share also increased by 365% to
HK$0.223 (2008: HK$0.048).

The increase was mainly attributable to the following three
factors:

First of all, the Group aborted its investment in the
redevelopment project “Zi You Xiao Zhen” by disposing
its entire 22.62% equity interest in It REABERHER
BERAR ([EABESF])in 2009. A gain on disposal of
approximately HK$122.5 million was thus recognized.

Secondly, the fair values of the Group’s investment
properties and leasehold properties increased significantly
in light of the rapid and prominent recovery of the
property market after the financial tsunami triggered by
the subprime crisis in September 2008. Consequently,
the Group recognized revaluation gains of approximately
HK$65.6 million in aggregate in 2009. However, there was
a revaluation loss of approximately HK$39.3 million in 2008
in light of the recessed market shortly after the outbreak
of the financial tsunami. The effect of the foregoing was
to increase the profit of 2009 by approximately HK$104.9
million.

Lastly, due to the same reason caused by the subprime
crisis, the Group recognized unrealized gains of
approximately HK$48.5 million in aggregate in respect of
held for trading investments in 2009. However, there were
unrealized losses of approximately HK$35.4 million in
aggregate in 2008. The effect was to increase the profit of
2009 by approximately HK$83.9 million.

REOE

NN FHEB A FEAE 5 38 h1319,200,000
7 JT £406,300,000% (= T T )\ & :
87,100,000 7T) * 12184 & 367%  BixE
A F IR AN 365% £ 0.223 B T( — T )\
4 :0.0487C0) ©

EMEREHR MR =EAREAE

B RZZEENF  AEBBRALEER
iba%Aﬁﬁi%imFEﬂ%*ﬁﬁﬁ G
F )z 2Ef22.62% R AR - MEEER
BCER/NE)NERBEE - AMER—F
HEEH A 122,500,000 70 2 HE W E ©

HR EREHEMSELEE_SZTNFA
ARG ESEHSIBEN SRR - iR
WHEERERR  AEBZEEWERM
EMEZARBEEMARLER AL &K
SER_TENFERRBERRELELD
65,600,000/ 7T ° AT - G ESRE
WEMNERETIZEBERLT  RZZEZENFE
£% 15 2 & /B 1B %9 £ 39,300,000 7% 7T © A il
FHTVERR-_ZTNFEREMNBRL
104,900,000/ LG & -

i ERNBAAREHEHERNERR
B AEER-ZZTETNEFE REBEFEE
HREBR ARSI B 5L A48,500,000
BILe AT RZEZENFEANEERE
IR &5 18 48 BB %) 5 35,400,000 7% 7T ° A it =
B2 HEBRBZEENFE 2@ HNEREL
83,900,000 8 T & °
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MANAGING DIRECTOR’'S STATEMENTS ES A LKLEH L

Review of Results (Continued)

Administrative Expenses

Administrative expenses for the year increased by
approximately HK$22.9 million, representing an increment
of 19%. The increase was mainly due to three factors.
Firstly, there was full year absorption of the expenses
of a subsidiary engaged in petrochemical operations
which was acquired in late 2008. Secondly, expenses of
approximately HK$8.9 million in aggregate were paid in
2009 in relation to the disposal of distressed assets which
required disposal notices to be published on newspapers
in the mainland China. Lastly, the Group raised the salaries
of the employees in a PRC subsidiary by 10% to 20% in
2009 so as to remain competitive.

Impairment Loss of/Gain on Disposal of AFS
Investment

The amounts in both years were related to the Group’s
investment in Tongjitang. In light of the operating loss of
Tongjitang and the under-performance of the Tongjitang’s
ADS prices, the Group recognized impairment loss in
2008. In October 2009, Tongjitang utilized its idle funds
to redeem all the ADSs held by the Group at a price of
USD4.1 per ADS. In this regard, last year’s impairment
loss was substantially reversed and recognized as income
in 2009.

Share of Results of Associates

The amount in 2009 was mainly share of results of Zhong
Hai You Qi (Tai Zhou) Petrochemical Company Limited
(“Zhong Hai You Qi”). The Group acquired Zhong Hai You
Qi in late 2008. The amount in 2008 was mainly share
of results of CIlI Limited (“CllI”). Cll ceased to contribute
significant profit to the Group starting from mid 2008.

Taxation Charge

Increase mainly due to the deferred tax provision in
respect of the revaluation gain of investment properties.

KD (E)

THER

FR - ITEE AN 22,900,000 7T 0 48
ER190%EE - MNEFELHR =AREE
HoH— FAEFFAA—FTKRZZEZNF
FAREBEWE  HELHEIERCENN
BRABIZEA -E- MN_ZTTHhEFE HE
BETREESE ARTEAMSRETIZER
BERE - BmX & #£498,900, oooﬁémi‘é‘?
A &% RREBRSEN AEER=Z
hif’ﬁﬂﬁ%#lﬂ’]*éﬁﬁﬁ%@ﬂz,é
TH£Hm10% % 20% °

AHHERERAERR HERS

MEFEzeROREARERRABEE 2R
ﬁ*ﬁ?@ cERNRBAZHBELEER - MLER
EEBEARFZEBRRARE  ARER =
gg)\i&'lﬁﬁﬁ&awﬁﬁﬁéﬂﬁ cRZFTN
FtA REZEDHREBEES  HEMHA
R F4IRTHNER  BBAEEFEN
2HEFEES - A& - EF 2 RERE
j(—.;B PR TENFEEIL R LW -

BAEBMEQRRE

—EENFESBEIERBEDERR(E
M) AmETAERR T(FEP/’!_/EEWJ)Z%Z
AEER-_FTNFEREBEFBEHRR -
gg/\i&@%ﬁixﬁ%fﬁqﬂgﬁaﬂxﬁﬁ
RABI(TREDZEE - PER-_FTTN\F

FHR%K  CRE/AKERRBEGT
B X H
BENEZRHNHERENEEMGRSER
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MANAGING DIRECTOR’'S STATEMENTS ES A LKLEH L

Final Dividend

The Board of Directors of the Company (the “Board”) has
resolved to recommend the payment of a final dividend
of HK$0.10 per share for the year ended 31 December
2009 (2008: HK$0.09 per share). The final dividend,
subject to approval by shareholders at the forthcoming
annual general meeting, will be payable on 8 June 2010 to
shareholders on the register of members of the Company
on 26 May 2010. The total amount of dividend payable is
approximately HK$218.5 million.

Business Review & Prospects

Property Investments, Development and
Management

The operations in respect of property leasing remained
pretty stable. However, profit contribution for the year
has dropped by 34% to HK$17.7 million (2008: HK$26.4
million) due to increased expenditures in respect of
salaries and consultancy fee in 2009. The Group’s main
source of rental income is from the East Gate Plaza. Gross
rental income for the year increased by 21% to HK$65.8
million (2008: HK$54.4 million). The increase was partly
due to RMB appreciation and partly due to raise of unit
rental.

The Board is considering a business proposal to dispose
all the residential flats in one service apartment block in
East Gate Plaza. The purpose is to realize further working
capital for future investments.

The operations of Beijing Yinda Property Management
Limited (“Yinda”) were stable for both years under review.
At the end of the reporting period, there were 21 projects
(2008: 23 projects) under the management of Yinda. The
total floor area under the management of Yinda exceeds
3.0 million square meters. The revenue of Yinda for the
year was HK$139.0 million (2008: HK$147.1 million). Net
profit for the year was HK$13.2 million (2008: HK$11.5
million). The decrease in revenue was due to termination
of two projects in 2009. Despite the foregoing, net profit
was increased by approximately 15% due to reduction
in the expenditures in respect of property accessories in
2009.

KRB E

ARREFE([EFE)ERBRE &4
KEHZE_ZEZNF+_A=+—HIEFE
ZAREME C BRROA0OBIL(ZZEZT N\ F ¢
FHR0.09% ) - RIERHAKRSFIERE
RENE BRMKRFASE R EREE - H1
—E-EERANBEXNR=_ZE—ZFTHA
ZHARBEINAATRREM /R o B
I B 4858495 218,500,000 7T ©

EXB¥OERRE

MERE  BRREHR

MEME 2 KERIFHEYEETE - T2 & F
BEIRFRAITFE34% 2= 17,700,0007% 7T
(ZZEZT )\ : 26,400,000/ 7T) " RHA=Z
FeRFAEAEMEIHRN _EENFE
M - AEBEMNHSRAETEERER
RES: FANEASWAZTHELEIN21%E
65,800,000 7L(= & & J\ 4 : 54,400,000
BIL) c BERIAMDEHRARBEHERIBMDZE
MR EMAS EFATE -

E=gRMEEE —EEBHER  BHIFRL
ERRESNEP —RRBALBODHME
fi- BHERBARKNKEEFEIZESR
@O

REBILRRENEEREREE QAR
EIMEFEZLE  HREEE - RA
MEH KR KREEENEREASA21E
ZETENF 23fF) KREEENBIE
AAEGA-—a8FTI K - REAFEZE
¥ %8 A139,000,000% (= & Z )\ F:
147,100,000 7L ) o REE 2 F m H &
13,200,0007% J7o(ZZE Z )\ F : 11,500,000
BIL) c BEBRLODNEZERAN_—TENF
FREIEPRETER AT - BIEIE - SF5EF
TREME15% - REZMEREEZRARZ
S NFRAFTE -
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MANAGING DIRECTOR’'S STATEMENTS ES A LKLEH L

Business Review & Prospects (Continued)

Property Investments, Development and
Management (Continued)

On 11 August 2009, the Group aborted its investment
in the redevelopment project “Zi You Xiao Zhen” by
disposing of its entire 22.62% equity interest in Z&HE
at a consideration of approximately HK$152.3 million and
recognised a gain on disposal amounting to approximately
HK$122.5 million. The Board was aware that the
controlling shareholder of ZAH%F has liquidity problem
which will inevitably affect the next stages of development
of “Zi You Xiao Zhen” to a certain extent. In the opinion of
the Board, by aborting the “Zi You Xiao Zhen” project, the
Group could get out of the prevailing uncertain situation
and get back the funds invested in Z& B for investing in
other more promising investment opportunities.

Cinda Jianrun

Cinda Jianrun Property Company Limited (“Cinda Jianrun”)
is currently negotiating for a property development
opportunity with a site area of approximately 300,000
square meters located in the Chao Yang District of Beijing.
In light of the current market condition and regulatory
environment, the Board anticipates that the negotiation
will be a prolonged process and will last for an extended
period before reaching a conclusion.

The Company’s jointly controlled entity RISEISREEAR
NF (“BHEE ") was established in 2008. RIEE% is a
construction material supplier specialized in providing all-
round bathroom solutions to customers. Its business is
the design, manufacture and wholesale of Italian style
bathroom products in its own brand name of (RIEEIKR).
The core product is bathroom suite known as the CubiX
series. CubiX series are pre-made modules of bathroom
structures capable of being combined into different stylish
and tailored bathrooms.

EHCERRE(E)

MERE  BRRREE(E)

RZZZENFNA+—H AEBEBHE
EREABAF2E2E2262% AR -
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#9/152,300,0008 7T - W HER — B S &
#9/122,500,000 8 L2 HEWZ - EFE
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g Wise®ma# et H(am/NE) TR
MERTR—TERENTE -EFEFERR
5 ME(EHR/NE)EE - A FEAEER
HEATTREAMER - WA ATRERHERE
AEENED  AURBEREMEARSHK
wWEHKE -

FEEZE

CEEZBMEARAR(EEEZBDBAE
MR R TG E - {5 49300,000
FHKROMERRESETER - ERB A
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7 A BEIERR 4
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MANAGING DIRECTOR’'S STATEMENTS ES A LKLEH L

Business Review & Prospects (Continued)

During the year, Bl &E % was concentrating its effort on
expanding its operations. In this regard, profit contribution
from RIEEZ was only minimal. The Group has confidence
in the business model of BHEEZ and has established
business plan for BIEEZ to build up sustainable and
fast profit growth in the next few years. The Group has an
intention to spin-off B &S at appropriate time.

Infrastructure Investments

Cll Limited (“Cll”) barely contributes any material profit to
the Group for the year (2008: HK$23.5 million). During the
year, Cll has been liquidating its assets and investments
pursuant to its shareholders’ decision to cease the
operations of ClI.

On 19 November 2009, the Company, in conjunction with
the other shareholders of Cll, entered into an agreement
to sell its entire interest in Cll to a third party and ceased
its investment in infrastructure project. The consideration
receivable by the Company is approximately HK$358.2
million and is payable by three installments. The Company
has received the first HK$100.0 million instaliment in
December 2009. Pursuant to the agreement, the second
HK$100.0 million installment will be paid to the Company
on 31 December 2010 and the remaining HK$158.2
million third installment will be paid to the Company on 31
December 2011.

Petrochemical Products

The Group’s petrochemical operations were a new
business segment acquired in late 2008. The principal
activities are the operation of crude oil storage tanks,
crude oil loading and unloading terminal, crude oil refinery
and processing.

EHCERRE(E)
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MANAGING DIRECTOR’'S STATEMENTS ES A LKLEH L

Business Review & Prospects (Continued)

Zhong Hai You Qi

The Group has an effective interest of 23.083% in Zhong
Hai You Qi. Its principal business is the manufacturing and
trading of fuel oil which is the raw material for lubricant
oil production and bitumen. The current production
capacity of Zhong Hai You Qi is 1.5 million tons per
annum. During the year, the international crude oil prices
dropped to a relatively reasonable level which enables
crude oil refinery and processing to operate at a profit
margin. In 2009, Zhong Hai You Qi recorded an after tax
profit of approximately RMB170.1 million and contributed
approximately HK$30.0 million profit to the Group.

TZ United East

The Group holds 50% equity interest in Tai Zhou United
East Petrochemical Company Limited (“TZ United East”).
Its principal business is the manufacturing and trading
of an organic solvent methyl ethyl ketone. The current
production capacity of TZ United East is 72,000 tons
per annum. In 2009, the retail prices of petrochemical
products had recovered gradually from a below-cost
level to a profitable level. As a result, TZ United East
was capable of making an after tax profit amounting
to approximately RMB20.8 million and contributed
approximately HK$11.8 million profit to the Group.

EHCERRE(E)

R

AEEEZEBEPEHRR23.08% - %
EREEBERREEREEMRAR &
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MANAGING DIRECTOR’'S STATEMENTS ES A LKLEH L

Business Review & Prospects (Continued)
Financial Investments

Distressed Assets Business

The Huarong Portfolio

The performance in disposing the Huarong Portfolio
was unsatisfactory in the past two years, particularly
during the post-financial crisis period in 2009. Investors’
attentions were drawn to those highly depreciated assets
resulting in barely any disposal of distressed asset in the
Huarong Portfolio. Therefore, after serious negotiations
with China Huarong Asset Management Corporation
(“China Huarong”), a compromised arrangement was
reached by the end of 2009. The Group agreed to sell all
the remaining distressed assets with a carrying value of
approximately HK$88.8 million in the Huarong Portfolio
back to China Huarong at a total consideration of RMB63.7
million for the purpose of realizing further working capital
and concentrating effort on other businesses of the Group.

The amount of cash recovered from the Huarong Portfolio
was RMB498.6 million in aggregate, which is equal to
the cost of acquiring the Huarong Portfolio. Having taken
into account the effect of RMB appreciation during the
past few years and the interest generated from the cash
recovered, the Group was able to achieve a breakeven
investment, as a whole, in investing in the Huarong
Portfolio.

The Orient Portfolio

The disposal of the Orient Portfolio was substantially
completed in 2009. The revenue contribution for the year
was only HK$1.7 million (2008: HK$40.0 million). The
decrease in revenue contribution was due to and was
in line with the decrease in the amount of distressed
assets outstanding and pending disposal. To summarize,
the cumulative cash recoveries of the Orient Portfolio
was approximately RMB662.2 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$749.9 million) in aggregate, representing
a recovery rate of 3.1%. In the opinion of the Board,
the disposal of the Orient Portfolio was successfully
completed.
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MANAGING DIRECTOR’'S STATEMENTS ES A LKLEH L

Business Review & Prospects (Continued)

Financial Investments (Continued)

Distressed Assets Business (Continued)

The Orient Portfolio (Continued)

During the year, the Group, in partnership with certain
investors, acquired a second portfolio of distressed assets
owned by China Orient Asset Management Corporation
(the “Second Orient Portfolio”). The Group’s participating
interest in the Second Orient Portfolio is approximately
46% with a cost of investment amounted to approximately
HK$118.1 million (after netting off cash recovered and
included in the distressed assets package). Revenue
contribution from the Second Orient Portfolio for the year
was approximately HK$44.2 million. The Board set a target
of completing the disposal of the Second Orient Portfolio
in two years. For the year ended 31 December 2009, the
cumulative cash recoveries of the Second Orient Portfolio
was approximately RMB618.3 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$700.2 million) in aggregate, representing
a recovery rate of 1.7%.
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MANAGING DIRECTOR’'S STATEMENTS ES A LKLEH L

Business Review & Prospects (Continued)
Financial Investments (Continued)
Distressed Assets Business (Continued)
Other Financial Investments

The Group strategically invested directly and indirectly in
certain PRC enterprises, which have potential for separate
listing. These enterprises are engaged in, but not limited
to, power related, banking related, financial services and
information technology businesses. As at 31 December
2009, the carrying value of these strategic investments
was approximately HK$435.5 million in aggregate (2008:
HK$435.3 million) with individual allocation detailed below:
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435.5

CUP Fh [ 4R B

China UnionPay (“CUP”) is the largest bank card
association and credit card issuers in the mainland China
having a very bright business prospect.

SINOMA

The Group has an effective interest in approximately 23.1
million shares in the shares capital of SINOMA, which are
unlisted shares for the time being. The Group is pursuing
the conversion of these shares into listed H shares. After
conversion, the shares will be freely disposable.
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Business Review & Prospects (Continued)
Bai Nian De Cheng

The Group invested RMB56.0 million (equivalent to
HK$63.4 million) in It R BFEMEIZZEH L (“Bai Nian De
Cheng”). Bai Nian De Cheng is a closed-end fund which
is discretionary operated by a professional fund manager.
The fund will invest principally in equity interests, loan
capital and convertible notes of target investees which
have potential for separate listing. The Group made the
investment for the purpose of leveraging the expertise and
the investment network of the fund manager.

Zggame

On 11 February 2010, Shenzhen Zggame Network Co.,
Ltd. (“Zggame”) succeeded in obtaining a listing status on
the ChiNext of the Shenzhen Stock Exchange. Zggame is
a online game developer and operator based in Shenzhen
and is the first on-line gamer listed on the ChiNext of the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange. The Group has an indirect
effective interest in approximately 9 million shares of the
A shares of Zggame. Since its listing, the A shares of
Zggame was trading at a market price of over RMB30.0
per share. Based on a market price of RMB30.0 per share,
the estimated unrealized gain approximates to HK$270.4
million in aggregate. However, the Group’s A shares are
subjected to a one-year lock-up period ending on 10
February 2011. The Group can only recognize the gains,
which amount may be significantly different from the
current estimation, upon selling of the A shares after the
lock-up period.

XD Electric

The Group is beneficially interested in approximately 16.7
million A shares in XD Electric. The A shares of XD Electric
was listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange on 28 January
2010 at the issue price of RMB7.9 per share. Currently,
the A shares of XD electric was trading at market price
of around RMB7.7 per share. Based on a market price
of RMB7.7 per share, the estimated unrealized gain
approximates to HK$88.7 million. However, the Group’s A
shares are subjected to a one-year lock-up period ending
on 27 January 2011. The Group can only recognize the
gains, which amount may be significantly different from
the current estimation, upon selling of the A shares after
the lock-up period.
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MANAGING DIRECTOR’'S STATEMENTS ES A LKLEH L

Business Review & Prospects (Continued)
China New Material

The Group holds HK$40.0 million exchange notes in China
New Material (Zhongpu) Holdings Limited (“China New
Material”) which are capable of converting into the listed
securities of China New Material upon listing.

Growth Strategies

The Board has decided to concentrate its effort on
investing in the natural resources and energy sectors.
Currently, the Group is considering certain investment
opportunities in coal, power and petrochemical projects for
the purpose of extending the source of recurring income
and expanding the magnitude of recurring earnings of the
Group.

Strategic Shareholder

On 10 February 2010, the Company issued 364,140,000
new shares to CGNPC International Limited (“CGNCL”") at
a price of HK$2.00 per share for the purpose to broaden
the shareholder base and strengthen its capital base. A
net proceed of approximately HK$718.0 million was raised
to further enhance the Group’s working capital for future
business developments. CGNCL becomes a strategic
shareholder of the Company with an equity interest of
approximately 16.67%.

On the same date, the Company entered into a non-
legally binding letter of intent with CGNCL for the purpose
of co-investing in projects recommended by CGNCL.
The projects shall be resources, energy and nuclear
related such as new nuclear power assets, general power
assets, uranium mine resources and application of nuclear
technology. The projects shall also satisfy certain return
requirements and legal and financial due diligence.
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MANAGING DIRECTOR’'S STATEMENTS ES A LKLEH L

Growth Strategies (Continued)
Strategic Shareholder (Continued)

CGNCL is a wholly owned subsidiary of China Guangdong
Nuclear Power Holding Co., Ltd. (“CGNPC”) which is a
company established in the PRC under the leadership of
the State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration
Commission of the State Council of PRC. CGNPC and its
subsidiaries, known as China Guangdong Nuclear Power
Group (“CGNPG”) currently owns Guangdong Daya Bay
Nuclear Power Station and Ling Ao Nuclear Power Station
Phase | with nearly 4,000 MWe of installed generating
capacity. Ling Ao Nuclear Power Station Phase Il, Liaoning
Hongyanhe Phase |, Yangjiang Nuclear Power Station
Phase | and Ningde Nuclear Power Station Phase | involve
over 17,000 MWe of installed generating capacity, which
are currently under construction. As of 31 December, 2008
the total assets of CGNPG stood at RMB105 billion with
its net assets valued at RMB35 billion.

Given the strong background of CGNPG, the Board
believes that, CGNPG will bring in quality projects to
the Group which will broaden the Group’s sources and
magnitude of recurring income in the future.

Natural Resources Venture

On 18 March 2010, bR EEBBRKEERFRAF (“Beijing
Runda”), a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company,
and Shanxi Guoyang New Energy Co., Ltd. (“Shangxi
Guoyang”) entered into a Capital Increase Agreement
pursuant to which the registered capital of BE5AZHRHE
EABRAR (“Guoyang Tiantai”) will be increased from
RMB450.0 million to RMB2,000.0 million (equivalent
to approximately HK$2,260.0 million) (the “Capital
Increase”). Pursuant to which, Beijing Runda and Shangxi
Guoyang will contribute RMB980.0 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$1,107.4 million) and RMB670.0 million
(equivalent to HK$757.1 million) respectively in full as paid
up capital of Guoyang Tiantai prior to the 10th day upon
the Capital Increase Agreement becoming effective.
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MANAGING DIRECTOR’'S STATEMENTS ES A LKLEH L

Growth Strategies (Continued)
Natural Resources Venture (Continued)

Following the Capital Increase, both the registered and
paid up capital of Guoyang Tiantai will be RMB2,000.0
million (equivalent to approximately HK$2,260.0 million)
and the capital contribution of Beijing Runda and
Shanxi Guoyang in Guoyang Tiantai will be RMB980.0
million (equivalent to approximately HK$1,107.4 million)
and RMB1,020.0 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$1,152.6 million), representing 49% and 51% of
the registered capital of Guoyang Tiantai respectively.
Following the Capital Increase, Guoyang Tiantai will be
treated as an associate of the Company.

By participating in the capital increase, the Group may
extend its business to the coal resource industry in the
PRC, thereby diversify the source of income and increase
the financial returns of the Group.

Winsway Coking Coal

On 30 March 2010, the Company concluded an
investment of USD25.0 million (equivalent to HK$195.0
million) by investing in the convertible note of Winsway
Coking Coal Holdings Limited (“Winsway Coking Coal”)
which is capable of converting into the then listed
securities upon the listing of Winsway Coking Coal in
accordance with agreed covenants. Winsway Coking
Coal is a conglomerate platform enterprise engaged in
the businesses of coal import, cross-border coal logistic
(mainly across the borders of China-Mongolia and China-
Russia) and equipment developments and operations,
selection processing and trading.
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Growth Strategies (Continued)
Petrochemical Projects

The Group has an intention to expand the business scale
of the existing petrochemical projects by strengthening
the utilization of raw materials, expanding the deeper
processing of raw material, manufacturing of high market
demand products and to extend the products line.
Amongst which, TZ United East has intention to construct
a 1.0 million tons heavy oil production facility, Zhong Hai
You Qi has intention to expand its oil refinery capacity
by 3.0 million tons and to construct a 0.6 million tons
lubricant oil facility.

By further expanding the production capacity of the
petrochemical operations, the Group can enjoy the benefit
of economic of scale which will eventually become a stable
source of revenue and profit of the Group.

Financial Review
Exchange Exposure

The Group’s principal assets, liabilities, revenue and
payments are denominated in HKD and RMB. Moreover,
the Board is capable of maintaining a net monetary asset
position denominated in RMB for the Group. Therefore, the
Board is confident that the Group’s exposure to exchange
rate fluctuations in respect of RMB will not have material
adverse effect on the financial position of the Group in
light of the continuous and mild appreciation of the RMB
to HKD exchange rate. In addition, the Board does not
anticipate that there is any material exchange exposure in
respect of other currencies.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has no
material liability denominated in other foreign currencies
other than RMB. There was also no hedging transaction
contracted for by the Group during the year.
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Financial Review (Continued)

Working Capital & Borrowings

At the end of the reporting period, the Group’s total
borrowings amounted to approximately HK$464.8 million
in aggregate. The composition of these borrowings is
summarized below:

SRR (&)

BEETREE
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464,800,000 7T ° {EERMEMR AT ¢

HK$'m Percentage

HE5T =)y

Short term borrowings EHEE 179.1 39%
Long term borrowings RHEE 285.7 61%
464.8 100%

Interests for all borrowings were charged at floating rates
ranging from 2.17% per annum to 4.86% per annum.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group’s cash and
bank balances was HK$1,979.7 million in aggregate. And
the Group’s net cash balance and net current assets were
approximately HK$1,514.9 million and HK$1,848.6 million
respectively. In view of the Group’s strong working capital
base and the relatively high level of net cash, the Board
is confident that the Group has adequate working capital
to meet daily operations and to finance future expansion.
Moreover, the Group has a sound and strong financial
position.

At the end of the reporting period, the Gearing Ratio and
Current Ratio of the Group were 9% (2008: 16%) and 3.2x
(2008: 2.1x) respectively.

During the year, the Company early redeemed its
convertible note with a principal amount of US$52.5
million (equivalent to approximately HK$409.5 million) at
a 5% discounted consideration of approximately US$49.9
million (equivalent to approximately HK$389.0 million).
All accrued interests on convertible note amounting to
approximately HK$0.6 million were waived and recognised
as other income.
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Financial Review (Continued)
Investment Properties

The increase in the carrying amount was due to increase
in fair values. There were no material addition or disposal
during the year.

Interest In Associates/Amounts Due from Associates

Both carrying amounts decreased significantly and were
due to the disposal of Cll and Z& &4 during the year.

Loan Receivables

These were loan made to certain independent borrowers
for the purposes of utilizing a portion of the Group’s idle
funds for better returns and to increase interest income in
the current low deposit rates period.

Deposits, Prepayments and Other Receivables

Amounts in 2009 were principally the fair value of
the proceeds at initial recognition to be received by
installments amounting to approximately HK$236.9 million
(amongst which approximately HK$142.1 million will be
settled by the end of 2011 and thus was classified as non-
current asset; the remaining will be settled by the end of
2010 and thus was classified as current asset) in respect
of the disposal of Cll. Amounts in 2008 were principally
the proceeds receivable amounting to approximately
HK$165.6 million in respect of the disposal of subsidiaries
in the year before.

Bank Balances and Cash

The significant increase in bank balances and cash was
mainly due to the receipt of a huge amount of invested
funds following the disposal of the two associates, Cll and
EABEF during the year.
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Financial Review (Continued)

Other Major Accounting Items

During the year, the board composition of a subsidiary
engaged in petrochemical operations was changed.
Consequently, the Group lost its control over the
subsidiary, which was then reclassified as a jointly
controlled entity. Due to this reason, the carrying balances
of certain major accounting items in the consolidated
statement of financial position (such as property, plant
and equipment, inventories, deposit, prepayments and
other receivables, trade payables, borrowings and minority
interest) decreased significantly.

Capital Structure

At the end of the reporting period, the shareholders’
fund of the Group was approximately HK$5,169.4 million
and has increased by approximately HK$299.8 million or
approximately 6% compared to that as at 31 December
2008. The increase was mainly due to increase in retained
profit.

During the year, the Company paid HK$163.9 million to
shareholders of the Company as final dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2008, which has an effect of reducing
the overall capital.

Human Resources

At the end of the reporting period, the Group employed
approximately 1,460 (2008: 1,620) employees in Hong
Kong and in the PRC. The Group offers its employees
competitive remuneration packages, which are consistent
with the prevailing market practices. The Group’s
remuneration policies remain unchanged during the year.
Total staff costs for the year was approximately HK$92.6
million (2008: approximately HK$87.0 million).

The decrease in the number of employees was due to the
deemed disposal of a petrochemical subsidiary during the
year. The deemed disposal was a result of the Group lost
its control over the board of directors of that subsidiary.
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Appreciation

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my
appreciation and gratitude to our shareholders for their
support and all the Group’s employees for their hard work
and dedication in carrying out their duties and in achieving
the Group’s business goal.

On behalf of the Board, | am glad to welcome China
Guangdong Nuclear Power Group to be a shareholder of
the Company and am looking forward to having a pleasant
and fruitful partnership going ahead.

By order of the Board of
Silver Grant International Industries Limited

Gao Jian Min
Managing Director

Hong Kong, 9 April, 2010
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS EEG/t

Executive Directors
Gao Jian Min Managing Director

Mr. Gao, aged 50, was appointed as an executive director
and served as the Managing Director of the Company on
22 June 1998. He is also appointed as directors of various
companies of the Group. Mr. Gao is also an executive
director of Jiangxi Copper Co., Ltd (Stock Code: 358) and
Qingling Motors Co. Ltd. (Stock Code: 1122), the H shares
of both companies are listed on the Stock Exchange.
Mr. Gao graduated from the Qing Hua University with a
bachelor degree in engineering. He has over 20 years of
experience in finance, industrial investment and property
investment and development.

Liu Tianni Deputy Managing Director

Mr. Liu, aged 46, was appointed as an executive director
of the Company on 26 May 2001. Mr. Liu is the Deputy
Managing Director of the Company. Mr. Liu is also a
director of various companies of the Group. He graduated
from the Beijing Normal University with a master degree in
science. He has over 15 years of experience in corporate
administration and trade businesses. Mr. Liu is also the
independent non-executive director of Chongqging Iron &
Steel Company Limited (Stock code: 10583), the H shares
of which are listed on the Stock Exchange.

Gu Jianguo

Mr. Gu, aged 47, was appointed as an executive director
of the Company on 25 May 1999. Mr. Gu is currently a
director and general manager of Well Kent International
Holdings Co., Ltd. (“Well Kent”). Mr. Gu obtained a master
degree and a Ph. D degree in 1991 and 1994 respectively.
He has over 20 years of experiences in commercial and
investment banking, business management, and financial
accounting and management. He is also an executive
director of Cinda International Holdings Limited (“Cinda
International”) (Stock code: 111) which shares are listed on
the Stock Exchange.
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS EEG/t

Executive Directors (Continued)
Tang Baoqi

Mr. Tang, aged 50, was appointed as an executive director
of the Company on 14 March 2008. Mr. Tang is a Senior
Economist. He obtained his bachelor degree in economics
from the Hubei School of Finance and Economics in
1983. From 1983 to 1999, he worked in the head quarter
of China Construction Bank and was responsible for
credit administration. From 1999 to 2000, he worked
in China Cinda Asset Management Corporation (“China
Cinda”), a substantial shareholder of the Company and
was responsible for the management of debt assets. At
present, Mr. Tang is the financial controller of Well Kent
which is a wholly owned subsidiary of China Cinda and is
in charge of the management of debt assets and financial
management. Mr. Tang has over 14 years of experience in
banking and finance.

Chow Kwok Wai

Mr. Chow, aged 43, is one of the Deputy General
Managers and is the Qualified Accountant of the
Company. He is responsible for the finance and
accounting matters of the Group. Mr. Chow joined the
Company in October 1993 and was appointed as an
executive director of the Company on 20 April 2004. Mr.
Chow has worked in Price Waterhouse, which is now
known as PriceWaterhouseCoopers and has accumulated
valuable audit experience there. Mr. Chow received his
bachelor degree in social sciences from the University
of Hong Kong in 1990. Mr. Chow is a Fellow Member of
the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and a
Fellow CPA of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Mr. Chow has over 15 years of experience in
accounting, financial management and corporate finance.
Mr. Chow is also an independent non-executive director
of Lijun International Pharmaceutical (Holding) Co., Ltd.
(Stock Code: 2005) which H shares are listed on the Stock
Exchange. He is also a non-executive director of Cinda
International (Stock code: 111) which shares are listed on the
Stock Exchange.
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS EEG/t

Executive Directors (Continued)
Li Xianli

Mr. Li Xianli, aged 36, was appointed as an executive
director of the Company on 9 April 2010. Mr. Li is currently
a non-practicing member of The Chinese Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. He graduated from the
Central University of Finance and Economics with a
bachelor degree in economics in 1996. From 1996 to
2000, Mr. Li was involved in the financial management
work in the finance department of China Guangdong
Nuclear Power Holding Co., Ltd. (“CGNPC”). From 2001
to 2002, Mr. Li was the finance manager of Galaxy New
Technology Development Co. which is a wholly owned
subsidiary of CGNPC. From 2003 to 2006, Mr. Li was
the senior manager and assistant to general manager of
the finance department of China Gas Holdings Limited
(stock code: 384), whose shares are listed on the Stock
Exchange. From 2007 to 2009, Mr. Li was the financial
controller of China Parking Holdings Limited. At present,
Mr. Li is the senior manager of the accounting department
of Daya Bay Nuclear Power Finance Corporation Co.,
Limited, which is a wholly owned subsidiary of CGNPC.

Non-executive Directors
Chen Xiaozhou Chairman

Mr. Chen, aged 48, was appointed as an executive
director of the Company and was elected the Chairman of
the Board on 13 February 2006. He was redesignated as
a non-executive director of the Company on 1 September,
2006. He is currently the chairman of Well Kent and the
chairman and executive director of Cinda International
(Stock code: 111), which shares are listed on the Stock
Exchange and a non-executive director of China National
Materials Co., Ltd. (Stock Code: 1893), the H-shares
of which are listed on the Stock Exchange. Mr. Chen
obtained a master degree in economics from the Research
Institute of the People’s Bank of China in 1988 and
obtained a master degree in commerce from the University
of New South Wales, Australia in 2003. Mr. Chen has over
18 years of experience in the banking and finance sectors.
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS EEG/t

Non-executive Directors (Continued)
Hui Xiao Bing Vice-chariman

Mr. Hui, aged 56, was appointed as an executive director
of the Company and Vice-chairman of the Board on 22
June 1993. He was redesignated as a non-executive
director of the Company on 1 September, 2006. Mr.
Hui was the ex-deputy managing director of China
Everbright Financial Holdings Limited. Mr. Hui was also
the ex-president of China Construction Bank, Shenzhen
Branch. He previously worked for the Research Centre for
Economic Development of the State Council of the PRC
and China Investment Consultancy Company. He has over
20 years of experience in banking and finance. Mr. Hui
graduated from the Inner Mongolia Industrial University
with a bachelor degree in engineering. Mr. Hui is currently
the chairman and chief executive officer of Huiheng
Medical, Inc. whose shares are traded on the Over-The-
Counter Bulletin Board (“OTC BB”) of the Nasdaq in the
USA.

Yuen Wing Shing

Mr. Yuen, aged 63, was appointed as an executive
director of the Company on 22 June 1993. He was
redesignated as a non-executive director of the Company
on 1 September, 2006. Mr. Yuen is the managing director
of Yugang International Limited (“Yugang”) (Stock Code:
613). He is also an executive director of Y. T. Realty Group
Limited (Stock Code: 75) and Cross-Harbour (Holdings)
Limited (Stock Code: 32). All of the aforesaid companies
are public companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Mr.
Yuen holds a diploma in management studies from The
Hong Kong Polytechnic University. Prior to joining Yugang
in 1992, he had held senior management positions with a
major bank in Hong Kong for over 20 years.
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS EEG/t

Non-executive Directors (Continued)
Yang Zhao

Mr. Yang, aged 48, was appointed as a non-executive
director of the Company on 9 April 2010. Mr. Yang is
currently the general manager of the capital operations
department of CGNPC, the managing director of CGNPC
International Limited, a director of Fujian Ningde Nuclear
Power Co., Limited and Taishan Nuclear Power Joint
Venture Co., Limited. Mr. Yang is a Senior Economist and
a member of the National Technical Committee on Risk
Management of Standardization Administration of China.
He graduated from Beijing Foreign Trade Institute with a
bachelor degree in economics in 1984, from University
of International Business and Economics with a master
degree in economics in 1987, from Zhejiang University
with a master degree in engineering in 1999, and from
University of International Business and Economics with
a PhD in economics in 2001. Mr. Yang served various
government departments including the Department of
Trade of Hainan Province from 1989 to 2002, and his last
position was a party member and vice director of the
Department of Foreign Economic and Trade Cooperation,
and officer of the Office of Electrical Import and Export
of Hainan Province. Mr. Yang was the general manager
of Shenzhen Daya Bay Commercial Investment &
Management Co. Limited and the vice general manager
of CGNPC Energy Development Co. Limited from 2002 to
2005, the general manager of assets operation department
of CGNPC, a director of Guangdong Nuclear Power
Joint Venture Co., Limited, a director of CGNPC Uranium
Development Co. Limited and Yangjiang Nuclear Power
Co., Limited and general manager of Shenzhen Nengzhihui
Co., Limited from 2006 to 2009.
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS EEG/t

Independent Non-executive Directors
Kang Dian

Mr. Kang, aged 61, was appointed as an independent non-
executive director of the Company on 8 May 1998. He is
presently a director of Springridge Investment Management
Limited, which is principally engaged in the provision of
consulting and management services and is the chairman
of the supervisory committee of Shenzhen Development
Bank Company Limited. Mr. Kang graduated from Beijing
Institute of Iron and Steel Engineering (now known as the
University of Science & Technology of Beijing) in the PRC,
with a bachelor degree majoring in engineering in 1982. In
1984, he graduated from the Graduate School of Academy
of Social Science of China in the PRC and obtained a
master degree in economics. Mr. Kang was the director
and vice-president of Guangdong Enterprise (Holdings)
Limited, a holding company of a conglomerate group,
from 1994 to 2000. From 1990 to 1994, Mr. Kang was
the vice-president of China National Packing Co.. From
1987 to 1990, Mr. Kang was the vice-president of China
Agribusiness Trust & Investment Co.. Mr. Kang is also
the Consultant to the Finance & Securities Commission
of All China Lawyers Association since 1996. During the
period from 11 June 2002 to 10 June 2008, Mr. Kang was
an independent non-executive director of BYD Company
Limited (Stock Code: 1211) which H shares are listed on
the Stock Exchange.

Zhang Lu

Mr. Zhang, aged 57, is an independent non-executive
director of the Company and was appointed since 4 May
2000. Mr. Zhang was the ex-executive vice president
and treasurer of Citic Ka Wah Bank Limited, responsible
for both the Treasury and International Business. He
previously worked for Bank of China and Citic Industrial
Bank. Mr. Zhang graduated from Szechuan Institute of
Foreign Languages. He has engaged in the banking
business for over 30 years.
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS EEG/t

Independent Non-executive Directors (Continued)
Hung Muk Ming

Mr. Hung, aged 45, was appointed as an independent
non-executive director of the Company on 23 December
2004. He is a Certified Public Accountant (Practicing) and
is a Fellow CPA of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. He is also a fellow member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, a Fellow
of the Hong Kong Institute of Directors and an associate
of The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators.
Mr. Hung received his bachelor degree in social sciences
from the University of Hong Kong in 1990. Mr. Hung also
received a master degree in corporate governance from
the Hong Kong Polytechnic University in 2008. From 2
December 2008 till now, Mr. Hung is an independent non-
executive director of Cinda International (Stock code: 111),
whose shares are listed on the Stock Exchange. Mr. Hung
has over 15 years of experience in the accounting and
audit sector.
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PROFILE OF SENIOR MANAGEMENT S EEASEN

Kwok Chung Lun

Mr. Kwok, aged 55, joined the Company in July 1995.
Mr. Kwok is the Managing Director of Beijing East Gate
Development Co., Ltd. (“Beijing East Gate”), which is
a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company. Mr. Kwok
pursued study in the People’s University. Mr. Kwok has
over 20 years of experience in property investment and
development.

Zhang Shuhua

Miss Zhang, aged 56, is the Deputy Managing Director of
Beijing East Gate. Miss Zhang pursued study in Beijing
Radio and Television University. Miss Zhang has over 20
years of experience in finance and accounting. At the date
of this report, Miss Zhang has retired.
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Corporate Governance Practices

The Company is committed to maintaining and ensuring a
standard of corporate governance that is consistent with
market practices. The Company has applied the principles
and complied with all the applicable code provisions of the
Code on Corporate Governance Practices (“Code”) as set
out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules for the year ended
31 December 2009.

The Company will continuously review and improve its
corporate governance practices to ensure that business
activities and decision-making processes are regulated in
a proper and prudent manner.

The following summarizes the Company’s key corporate
governance practices.

Board of Directors

The Board led by the Chairman, steers the Group’s
business direction. The management, led by the Managing
Director, which is also the Chief Executive Officer of
the Group, is responsible for the Group’s management
and operations. The division of responsibilities between
the Chairman and the Managing Director are clearly
established and set out in writing. The role of the
Chairman and the Managing Director are separated and
are performed by different persons to avoid concentration
of authorities to one single person.

The Board is responsible for formulating the Group’s long-
term strategies, setting business development goals,
assessing the results of management policies, monitoring
management’s performance and ensuring the existence
of an effective internal control system. The independent
non-executive directors serve the important function
of ensuring and monitoring the basis for an effective
corporate governance framework.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT A REBHE

Board of Directors (Continued)

The current Board comprises six executive directors,
four non-executive directors and three independent non-
executive directors which composition is set out in the
section headed Corporation Information on page 4 and the
biographies of the directors are set out on pages 24 to 30.

Members of the Board possess the appropriate expertise
and skills to discharge their duties.

The Company’s directors Messrs. Chen Xiaozhou,
Gu Jianguo and Tang Baogi are also directors and/
or senior officers within the group of China Cinda
Asset Management Corporation, which is a substantial
shareholder of the Company. The Company’s directors
Messrs. Gao Jian Min and Liu Tianni are also directors
and shareholders of Silver Grant Group Limited, which is
a substantial shareholder of the Company. The Company’s
director Mr. Yang Zhao is also a director and/or senior
officer within the group of CGNPG, which is a substantial
shareholder of the Company. Save for the aforesaid,
there is no relationship between members of the Board,
in terms of financial, business, family or other significant
relationship.

To assist the Board in discharging its duties and to
fulfil the requirements of the Code, two standing board
committees were set up under the Board: the Audit
Committee and the Remuneration Committee. When it
become necessary, the Board will set up ad hoc board
committee to handle specific issues and report back to
the Board.

The Board considers that each independent non-executive
director is independent in character and judgment and
that they all meet the specific independence criteria as
required by the Listing Rules. The Company has received
from each independent non-executive director an annual
confirmation confirming his independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. In addition, the independent non-
executive directors are explicitly identified in all corporate
communications.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT A REBHE

Board of Directors (Continued)

All directors are regularly updated on governance and
regulatory matters. There is an established procedure for
directors to obtain independent professional advice, at the
expense of the Company, in the furtherance of their duties.

The full board will meet regularly and at least four times
throughout a year to review the overall strategy and to
monitor the operations as well as the financial performance
of the Group. Notice of at least 14 days will be given to all
directors for all full board meetings and the directors can
include matters for discussion in the agenda if necessary.
Agenda and the accompanying board papers in respect
of full board meetings are sent out in full to all directors
no less than three days before the meeting. Minutes of
full board meetings and meetings of board committee
are properly kept and all directors have access to board
papers and the related materials.

During 2009, four full board meetings were held and the
attendance of each director is set out below:

Name of director

Number of meetings attended
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Attendance rate

BEEHA HESBAH HE=E
Chen Xiaozhou 3 out of 4 75%
bR = A PR HE =R
Hui Xiao Bing 3 out of 4 75%
HhE PR HE =R
Gao Jian Min 4 out of 4 100%
=ER PR AR PR
Liu Tianni 4 out of 4 100%
G| PN POR AR PR
Gu Jianguo 4 out of 4 100%
A PR H PR
Tang Baoqi 4 out of 4 100%
ERE PR AR PR
Yuen Wing Shing 3 out of 4 75%
FOKH PR HE =R
Chow Kwok Wai 4 out of 4 100%
JE B (& PR H PR
Kang Dian 4 out of 4 100%
JEz POR A S PR
Zhang Lu 4 out of 4 100%
SR T POR AR S PR
Hung Muk Ming 4 out of 4 100%
HEREA PR H PR
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Board of Directors (Continued)

According to the Articles of Association of the Company,
the Board has the power to appoint any person as a
director either to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to
the Board. The director so appointed shall held office until
the first general meeting (in the case of filling a casual
vacancy) or until the next annual general meeting (in the
case of an addition to the Board) following his appointment
and be eligible for re-election. In other cases, all directors,
including the Chairman, Vice Chairman and Managing
Director, shall retire by rotation at least once every three
years at annual general meetings and be eligible for re-
election.

All non-executive directors and independent non-executive
directors have been appointed for a specific term of
service. They are also subject to retirement by rotation and
re-election at the annual general meeting of the Company
in accordance with Article 101 of the Company’s Articles
of Association.

Securities Dealing by Directors

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”)
set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own
code of conducts for securities transactions by directors
of the Company. All directors have confirmed, following
specific enquiry by the Company, that they have complied
with the required standards set out in the Model Code
throughout the year ended 31 December 2009.

The Company has also adopted codes of conduct
regarding securities transactions by relevant employees (as
defined in the Code) on terms no less exacting than the
required standards set out in the Model Code.
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Audit Committee

The Company established an audit committee (the “Audit
Committee”) in 1999. The composition and professional
qualifications of the members of the Audit Committee
complies with the requirements under Rules 3.21 of the
Listing Rules. The Audit Committee has a written terms of
reference that conform to the provisions of the Code.

The current Audit Committee comprises three independent
non-executive directors, namely Mr. Kang Dian (committee
chairman), Mr. Zhang Lu and Mr. Hung Muk Ming. The
principal duties of the Audit Committee includes the review
and supervision of the Group’s financial reporting system
and internal control procedures, review of the Group’s
financial information and review of the relationship with the
external auditors and the Company.

The Audit Committee meets at least two times each year
to review the reporting of financial and other information
to shareholders, the system of internal controls, risk
management and the effectiveness and objectivity of the
audit process. The Audit Committee also provides an
important link between the Board and the Company’s
external auditors in matters coming within the scope
of its terms of reference and keeps under review the
independence and objectivity of the external auditors.

During the year, the work performed by the Audit
Committee includes the review of the annual results for
the year ended 31 December 2008, the internal control
system of the Group for 2008 and the interim results for
the period ended 30 June 2009.

The Group’s annual results for the year ended 31
December, 2009 have also been reviewed by the Audit
Committee.

The Audit Committee together with the Board have
reviewed the internal control system of the Group and were
satisfied that it is operating effectively and is appropriate
for the Group for the time being.
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Audit Committee (Continued) EREER(E)

ERZE@FARAFAMAREHE  SKEZ
HERESIIT :

During the year, two Audit Committee meetings were held
and the attendance of each member is set out below:

Name of director Number of meetings attended Attendance rate

EEpnE HEERAH HE=
Kang Dian 2 out of 2 100%
i £t PR R R U FRR
Zhang Lu 2 out of 2 100%
SR R R S R
Hung Muk Ming 2 out of 2 100%
HEREA MR R R

Remuneration Committee

The Company established a remuneration committee (the
“Remuneration Committee”) in 2005 and adopted a written
terms of reference which conform to the provisions of the
Code. The current Remuneration Committee comprises
two independent non-executive directors namely, Mr. Kang
Dian (committee chairman) and Mr. Zhang Lu.

The principal duties of the Remuneration Committee are
to ensure that there is no director or any of his associates
is involved in deciding his own remuneration and that the
Company has an equitable and competitive remuneration
policy to attract and retain talent persons to serve the
Company.
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Remuneration Committee (Continued)

The remuneration package for each employee is structured
according to his quality and qualification. The remuneration
package will contain a combination or modification of
some or all of the following four main components:

1. Basic salary

Basic salary ranges for each position are established
with reference to the responsibilities and the duties
attached to the position. The actual salary for the
person filling the position is determined based on the
experience and ability of the individual selected for
the position.

The basic salary ranges are reviewed periodically by
reference to the general market and by comparison
to comparable positions at competitors in the
relevant industry. The actual salaries of employees
are reviewed annually and may be adjusted from
time to time based on the cost of living and financial
performance of the Company.

Salaries are base remuneration and not intended
to reward performance, either individually or
corporately. Performance is rewarded through the
other components of the remuneration plan.

2. Incentive bonus

Incentive bonus is linked to individual and corporate
performance. The incentive bonus for each employee
is determined with reference to his position and his/
her performance during the year.

FMEES(#)

BUEBTIMHMGFERENNEREERXE
REE - FMEGEAATOABEEFES —
BB B ARARAK - TR AT BEA FTIEA -

—. EX%Fe
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Remuneration Committee (Continued)

3 Share option

Share options to subscribe for shares in the Company
are granted to employees from time to time at the
discretion of the Board, in order to retain valuable
employees and to motivate future performance of the
employees.

Share options granted to individual employee
are determined with reference to his position, his
performance and his ability to contribute to the
overall success of the Group.

4, Other benefits

The Group offers other customary and/or mandatory
benefits to employees, such as statutory retirement
scheme, employee compensation and medical
insurance, paid annual leaves and child education
allowance, with reference to the prevailing practices
in relevant jurisdictions.

The committee meets regularly to review the Company’s
human resources matters and remuneration policies.
During the year, two Remuneration Committee meetings
were held and the attendance of each member is set out
below:

Name of director

Number of meetings attended

FHEER(E)
=. BERE

EEgr THRNBERARERLBR
% HRBARRRD - NRBEER
METIWHENE THES HIE-

ERMETERNBRERE SHER
i~ RILEE R R BEKLATEN TR

s o

/q. HAbiEF

AEENG2ERWAEEEERE A
BB Bl 8 B 1R 18 % /0 e/ kooa il 1
MAEN  MEAERAKSFE  RBEHR
& SITREERR  BHFRETX
HE R -

FMZEeTHARSRBENARANAL
ERFERFTHEE - FHEZEEFAHRE
FMAEE  SREZHFEXREIMT

Attendance rate

B HESRRE HE =
Kang Dian 2 out of 2 100%
JER 4 PN A A

Zhang Lu 2 out of 2 100%

o B PR AP E R
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Remuneration Committee (Continued)

During the year, the Remuneration Committee has
reviewed and approved the annual salary adjustments
for the year 2010 and the payment of discretional
performance bonus and director fees for the year ended
31 December 2009 after taking into consideration the
results of the Group, the performance of the directors, the
senior management and the employees and the prevailing
market practices.

Details of the emoluments paid to all directors are set out
in notes 9 to the consolidated financial statements.

Nomination of Directors

Currently, the Company does not set up any nomination
committee. The Company will consider establishing a
nomination committee at appropriate time.

The Board shall have the collective responsibility to
consider and assess the candidates for directorships
based on their characters, qualifications and experience
appropriate for the Company’s businesses, and nominate
candidates for directorships accordingly.

On 9 April 2010, Mr. Yang Zhao was nominated and
appointed as a non-executive director of the Company and
Mr. Li Xianli was nominated and appointed as an executive
director of the Company.

Auditors’ Remuneration

The Group’s consolidated financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2009, were audited by
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu (“Deloitte”) at a total fees of
approximately HK$2.1 million. The said audit fee was
approved by the Audit Committee and endorsed by the
Board. In addition, the Group also paid fees of not more
than HK$0.2 million in aggregate to Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu for the provision of taxation services during the
year 2009.

The Audit Committee considers that the taxation services
did not (in terms of the nature of the services and the
amount of fees paid in relation to the audit fees) affect the
independence of Deloitte.
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Directors’ Responsibility Statement

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
financial statements for each financial period, which
give a true and fair view of the state of the affairs of the
Group and of the results and cash flow for that period.
In preparing the financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2009, the directors have selected suitable
accounting policies and applied them consistently;
adopted appropriate Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and Hong Kong Accounting Standards;
made adjustments and estimates that are prudent and
reasonable; and have prepared the consolidated financial
statements on the going concern basis. Up to the date
of this report, the directors are not aware of any material
uncertainties that will seriously affect the going concern
assumption of the Group.

The directors are also responsible for keeping proper
accounting records, which disclose with reasonable
accuracy at any time the financial position of the Company.
The directors also have general responsibilities for setting
up an appropriate internal control system, which is mainly
to safeguard the assets of the Group and to prevent and
detect fraud and other irregularities. The directors have
reviewed the internal control system of the Group and are
satisfied that the internal control system of the Group is
functioning properly.
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Communication with Shareholders

The Company endeavours to maintain a high level of
transparency in communicating with shareholders and
investors at large. In order to enhance the transparency
of shareholders’ voting in general meeting, separate
resolutions are proposed at general meeting on each
substantially separate issue, including the election of
individual director and all resolutions are voted on by poll.
The Company will engage external scrutineer to count
the vote. The poll voting results will be published on the
Stock Exchange’s website and on the Company’s website
at a later time on the same business day. In addition,
the requirement for resolutions to be voted by poll is
stated in the circular or annual report to be despatched
to shareholders. Moreover, at general meeting but
before voting, the chairman of the meeting will explain to
shareholders the detailed procedures for conducting a
poll.

The Company has maintained a website at http://www.
silvergrant.com.hk which enable shareholders, investors
and the general public to have an open access to the
information of the Company. Financial information and
all corporate communications of the Company are made
available on the Company’s website and are updated
regularly.

Shareholders who wish to raise any queries with the Board
may write to the Company Secretary at Suite 4901 49/F,
Office Tower, Convention Plaza, 1 Harbour Road, Wanchai,
Hong Kong.
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The Board present its annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2009.

Principal Activities

The Company is an investment holding company and
engaged in property investment and securities trading.
The Company and its subsidiaries are principally
engaged in property investment, other investments,
distressed assets business and production and trading of
petrochemical products. Details of the principal activities
of the Company’s subsidiaries and the Group’s associates,
jointly controlled entities are set out in note 52 and details
of principal activities of the special purpose vehicle which
hold the Group’s investment in distressed assets are set
out in note 53 to the consolidated financial statements.

Results and Appropriations

The results of the Group and appropriations of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2009 are set
out in the consolidated income statement on page 56.

The Board recommend the payment of a final dividend of
HK$0.10 per share to the shareholders on the register of
members on 26 May 2010, amounting to approximately
HK$218,485,000.

Fixed Assets

The Group’s leasehold land and buildings were revalued
at 31 December 2009. Net Surplus on revaluation of the
leasehold land and buildings amounted to approximately
HK$28,356,000 of which an amount of approximately
HK$7,119,000 has been credited to the consolidated
income statement as reversal of impairment loss
previously recognised and an amount of approximately
HK$21,237,000 has been credited to the asset revaluation
reserve.
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Fixed Assets (Continued)

During the year, the Group and the Company revalued all
of its investment properties at 31 December 2009. The
net increase in fair value of investment properties, which
has been credited directly to the consolidated income
statement, amounted to approximately HK$58,444,000.

Details of the valuation and movements of the investment
properties and property, plant and equipment of the
Group and of the Company during the year are set out in
notes 15 and 16 to the consolidated financial statements
respectively.

Details of the major investment properties of the Group
at 31 December 2009 are set out in the section under
“Summary of Investment Properties” of this Annual Report.

Share Capital

Details of movements during the year in the share capital
of the Company are set out in note 34 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Distributable Reserves of the Company

The Company’s reserves available for distribution to
shareholders as at 31 December 2009 comprised the
retained profits of approximately HK$324,633,000.

Appointment of Directors and Change in Profile
of Director

Mr. Yang Zhao has been appointed as a non-executive
director of the Company effective from 9 April 2010. Mr.
Li Xianli has been appointed as an executive director of
the Company effective 9 April 2010. Both of them were
recommended by CGNPG. On behalf of the Board, | would
like to give my welcome to Mr. Yang and Mr. Li for joining
the Board.

The Company received notification of change in personal
particulars from Mr. Hui Xiao Bing in respect of his new
directorship in Huiheng Medical Inc., which shares are
traded on the OTCBB in USA. The profile of Mr. Hui has
been updated accordingly.
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Directors

The directors of the Company during the year and up to
the date of this report were:

Executive directors

Gao Jian Min (Managing Director)

Liu Tianni (Deputy Managing Director)
Gu Jianguo
Tang Baoqi
Chow Kwok Wai
Li Xianli (appointed on 9 April 2010)
Non-executive directors

Chen Xiaozhou (Chairman)
Hui Xiao Bing (Vice Chairman)
Yuen Wing Shing
Yang Zhao (appointed on 9 April 2010)
Independent non-executive directors

Kang Dian
Zhang Lu
Hung Muk Ming

The term of office of each director, including the non-
executive directors and independent non-executive
directors, is the period up to his retirement by rotation in
accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association.

In accordance with the provisions of the Company’s
Articles of Association, Messrs. Gao Jian Min, Tang
Baoqi, Li Xianli, Yuen Wing Shing, Yang Zhao, Kang Dian
and Hung Muk Ming will retire at the forthcoming annual
general meeting, and they, being eligible, offer themselves
for re-election. The remaining directors shall remain in
office.
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Directors’ Service Contracts

Other than as disclosed in the section headed “Connected
Transaction” below, no director proposed for re-election
at the forthcoming annual general meeting has a service
contract, which is not determinable by the Group within
one year without payment of compensation (other than
statutory compensation).

Directors’ Interest in Shares

As at 31 December 2009, none of the directors and the
chief executive of the Company nor any of its associates
had any interests or short positions in any shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or
any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”)
as recorded in the register as required to be kept by the
Company under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Issuers. None of the directors or their spouses
or children under the age of 18, had been granted any
right to subscribe for the equity or debt securities of the
Company or any of its associated corporation, or had
exercised any such right during the year.

Share Options

Details of the share option scheme adopted by the
Company on 27 May 2002 (the “Option Scheme”) are set
out in note 48 to the consolidated financial statements.

During the year, no share options were granted to the
directors and other employees under the Option Scheme.

Arrangements to Purchase Shares or Debentures

At no time during the year was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements to enable the
directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in, or debenture of, the Company
or any other body corporate, and neither the directors
nor the chief executive nor any of their spouse or children
under the age of 18, had any right to subscribe for the
securities of the Company, or had exercised any such
right.
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Directors’ Interests in Contracts of Significance

Other than as disclosed in the section headed “Connected
Transaction” below, no contracts of significance to which
the Company or its subsidiaries was a party and in which
a director of the Company had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at
any time during the year.

Substantial Shareholders

As at 31 December 2009, persons other than a director
or chief executive of the Company having interest in
5% or more of the issued share capital of the Company
as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under Section 336 of SFO were as follows:

Long positions in shares and underlying shares of the
Company as at 31 December 2009 are set out below:

ESRERSHHER
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Percentage

Number of of the issued

ordinary share capital

Name of substantial shareholder Capacity shares Total interests  H2HEBTR

TERRER 54 EERRHHE G £k ok =R N d

Silver Grant Group Limited Beneficial owner 153,586,022 153,586,022 8.44%
REEEFRAR ERMAA (Note i)
(Mt )

China Cinda Asset Management Interest of controlled corporation 402,064,000 402,064,000 22.08%
Corporation RS EE R (Note i)
HEEEEEEELT (Hzt i)

China Guangdong Nuclear Power Interest of controlled corporation 364,140,000 364,140,000 20.00%
Holding Co., Ltd. RS EE RS (Note i)
HEERZEEEARAR (HEt iy

Liu Yang Investment manager 110,000,000 110,000,000 6.04%
P BEEE (Note iv)

iz iv)



Silver Grant International Industries Limited $R 2R &2 5 R A 7

DIRECTORS’ REPORT EEE &

Substantial Shareholders (Continued)

Notes:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

Messrs. Gao Jian Min and Liu Tianni, both of whom are
directors of the Company, each has a 30% interest in Silver
Grant Group Limited as at 31 December 2009.

The following is a breakdown of the interests in shares
of the Company held by China Cinda Asset Management

FERR(E)

Htet -

iy PERLERBXRGELRLE BEHELARF
2 RIZTAF+-A=Z+—HBHEEH
BIREEEBRAF30%E °

(i) ATATREZEEEEARMFAEALRA
ZRB s A -

Corporation:

Total interest in shares

ROEREH
Name of Name of Percentage Direct Indirect
controlled corporation controlling shareholder of control interest interest
STEEEER EERRER ZEHEs =R HiEER EEE
Well Kent International China Cinda Asset 100% — 402,064,000
Investment Company Management Corporation
Limited PREEEEEIEQRA]
FERBRRERRAR
Catic Limited Well Kent International 100% 2,064,000 -
Investment Company
Limited
ERERIREFRAT
Regent Star International Well Kent International 100% 400,000,000 -

Limited
ERBERARAR

Investment Company
Limited
FERBIFIRERRATR

The following is a breakdown of the interests in shares of
the Company held by China Guangdong Nuclear Power

Holding Co., Ltd.:

iy ATRTPBEERZEEEERARMMFER
REZ R ARED

Total interest in shares

R EREH
Name of Name of Percentage Direct Indirect
controlled corporation controlling shareholder of control interest interest
ZEEEEE EERREE ZEHEs = HiEEs HEkEE
CGNPC International Limited China Guangdong Nuclear 99.99% 364,140,000 -

Power Holding Co., Ltd.
HEERZEEERRAF

The following is a breakdown of the interests in shares of

(iv) ATRBIRZLMBEARR ZEMDERA

the Company held by Ms. Liu Yang: £
Total interest in shares
ROEREH
Name of Name of Percentage Direct Indirect
controlled corporation controlling shareholder of control interest interest
ZEEEER EERRER ZEHEs =R HiEER EEEE
Atlantis Investment Liu Yang 40% — 110,000,000
Management Limited 2|k
Atlantis Investment Liu Yang 90% — 110,000,000
Management (Hong Kong) 2k

Limited
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Substantial Shareholders (Continued)

Other than as disclosed above, the register required to
be kept under Section 336 of the SFO showed that the
Company had not been notified of any other interest or
short position in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company as at 31 December 2009.

Appointment of Independent Non-executive
Directors

The Company has received, from each of the independent
non-executive directors, an annual confirmation of
his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities (“Listing Rules”) on
the Stock Exchange. The Company considers all of the
independent non-executive directors are independent.

Connected Transaction

A service agreement dated 28 December 2004 was
entered into between Mr. Gao Jian Min (“Mr. Gao”) and
the Company. Pursuant to the terms and conditions set
out therein, the Company agreed to employ and Mr. Gao
agreed to serve the Company as a Managing Director by
providing the Company with the services as described in
the service agreement for a term of three years from 28
December 2004 to 27 December 2007, which term shall
continue thereafter until determined by either party giving
to the other not less than 3-months prior written notice.

Purchase, Sales or Redemption of the Company’s
Listed Securities

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of its listed
securities.

FERR#E)

B E XTI EES - RIBEFEZ KBRS
BHMEATHFENELMABT - AR
AYEEEEER _TTNFT _A=1—
BEARR B KA B A A A
ISR R TR ©

REBIUFYITES

ARRAREBMBEBLIFATESRIEH T
Er EmRAT EHARA)EI KA T
HE T EPEL O FEER LK - ARARR
BB IEMITESRH RIBIUM -

BERXRZ

R-ZZENE+_A-1+N\B ag&R&4E
(IExE)EARAEIT MR HE R
BRI RGEY - ARARRZERE
EakE MetEREXBHAARQRE
RGBS - BARRIREREBZRA
BYUZIRKG  TH=F B_ZTNF+=
A+ N NBEZZEZ+F+-H=++tH
IF - B EFEIEEAN -G TY
FALR=EAZEBMEABALIERIE ©

BE - HEIWEARQF 2 LhEE

FR ARAHEEFAMBARGERED -
HEXBRARRFEMN EHES -
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Emolument Policy

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is
set up by the Remuneration Committee and is based on
their merit, qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the directors of the Company are
decided by the Remuneration Committee, having regard to
the Company’s operating results, individual performance
and comparable market practices.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an
incentive to directors and eligible employees, details of the
scheme is set out in note 48 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Annual General Meeting

The annual general meeting of the Company will be held at
Boardroom [lI-IV, Mezzanine Floor, Renaissance Harbour
View Hotel Hong Kong, 1 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong
Kong on Wednesday, 26 May 2010 at 10:00 a.m..

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to
the Company and within the knowledge of its directors,
during the year and up to the date of this report, there
is sufficient public float, as not less than 25% of the
Company’s issued shares as required under the Listing
Rules.

< BUR

AEERENMEBRR AT HEE SRIE
BHIhiE - EEREENBIE -

ARRBEENME I EFHEZESKEZREA
NEMEERE EARARAHEENT

BIEPIRERE

AAREERM—BBBETEEREFT R
BEREEN —IAEE - T8 ZFBHI
REFE M IRERMIFE 48

BRRBFEXRE

RARER —_E—FEFAR - +RA(EH
S EFTRIEREEBEFEZEREL
BEESREEHBERZRE=-_RNBTRRA
FRE -

ABEFERENZHM

REBEARBDRENARENRAESHA
B REARBEARSH  ARANDEH
TEROBRAL PR ETRAUNATHRELZ

25% RRFFIE -
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Major Customers and Suppliers

The Group’s revenue comprises rental income from leasing
of properties, dividend income from listed securities,
net gain on disposal of held-for-trading investments,
income from property management, income from sales
of properties, interest income from interest in distressed
assets and income from production and trading of
petrochemical products.

The aggregate amount of purchases and revenue
attributable to the Group’s five largest suppliers and
customers were less than 30% of the Group’s total
purchases and revenue for the year.

Closure of Register of Members

The register of members will be closed from Thursday,
20 May 2010 to Wednesday, 26 May 2010, both days
inclusive, during which period no transfers of shares of
the company will be effected. In order to qualify for the
proposed final dividend and to determine the identity
of the shareholders who are entitled to attend and vote
at the forthcoming annual general meeting, all duly
completed transfer form accompanied by the relevant
share certificates must be lodged with the share registrar
of the Company, Tricor Secretaries Limited, at 26th Floor,
Tesbury Centre, 28 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong
Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, 19 May 2010.

Events After the Reporting Period
Details of significant events occurring after the end of the

reporting period are set out in note 51 to the consolidated
financial statements.

EREFRHER

AEENBRABREHEMEZESWA - L
MEFZBEEBWRA - HERFIEEEREZF
Wik MEEERA  WEHERA - TR
BERDNBWA N A TEmEEKH
BN -

FR - ARERAIARERREFPHNRRR
BERBADRMEARS B RBAEREA
HETR30% °

EERERNBFER

AARER-_T—TFRA-+H(EHM)
RE-_Z-ZBFRAA-TAB(EH=)(ER
MABREENR)  EEHERAQRFREEMZ
BHBEELFE - ABRFAEBKEE
DR RBRERBETAELFEERRRE
RERGRIEZRE - IEEZZRMDIE
PXHEREBHEKRE  VER_T—ZTHA
TABEHD) TFEBE=+oRREAR
AIMRMOBFPERE  SEWEIHERA
Al AL ABBETERRER 285 & HEE
0261 o

AHERRER

BFRABRERREBEEZERFTRZFFTHR
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Auditor

A resolution will be submitted to the annual general
meeting to re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
as auditor of the Company.

By order of the Board
Chen Xiao Zhou
Chairman

Hong Kong, 9 April 2010
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Deloitte.
=2)

To the members of
Silver Grant International Industries Limited
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements
of Silver Grant International Industries Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred
to as the “Group”) set out on pages 56 to 189, which
comprise the consolidated and the Company’s statements
of financial position as at 31 December 2009, and the
consolidated income statement, consolidated statement
of comprehensive income, consolidated statement
of changes in equity and consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory
notes.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation and the true and fair presentation of these
consolidated financial statements in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the
“HKICPA”) and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
The responsibility includes designing, implementing and
maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and
the true and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying
appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting
estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

>
RERREXEARQAIIMULRR
(EZBEMALBBERE LR F])

AAZBEN (A TR ]) B BRI R E
56 EEF189RREBKREXZARAF A
THEBEIERRDREMBARATEHEIE
SEDNGEEMBRE - MEEVBRRE
BERZZTNAE+ZA=+—HH EBEARA
BEABRMEAEEABREHEZAL
FENGARAR HFAZHKRAR HA
REEHINMGERATRER URETES
AHIRERBE 2 Ne EL AP S AR R -

ESHREUBBRARENER

ERAERAAEREBEEEGAMAE(E
BEETEAE])BOENTETBEREEN R
BERARIGRS REEMN AT RZE
REMBHRE - EETRERG Bk
HEEH NEEM AT RES P BEHRER
EARBE A BED RS - AEREMBRER T FE
RN EFF SRR T & 2y E R RRERM ¢ &
BNEAEENGHRE  RIREBERTEH
BEMNGFHEE -
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Auditor’s Responsibility

Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit
and to report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with section 141 of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. We conducted
our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the HKICPA. Those standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to
whether the consolidated financial statements are free
from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain
audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation and true and fair presentation of the
consolidated financial statements in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors of the Company, as well
as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

RBEWELE

BN EERREBERMANERYZESEEY
BHREFHER - HPINREERBEER
BIRGIZE 14115 AR (ER—EEEE) M
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Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give
a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company
and of the Group as at 31 December 2009 and of the
Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance
with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
9 April 2010
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT &Z4W#H &

For the year ended 31 December 2009
BE—FETNFL-A=+—HIFFE

2009 2008
—EEAEF —ZTENF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
k3 FET FEIT
Property management fee income IERRE L= PN 6 139,000 147,068
Rental income EaUA 6 65,821 54,431
Sales of petrochemical products ARt IEREE 6 74,668 45,662
279,489 247,161
Cost of sales SHE KA (165,578) (147,938)
113,911 99,223
Income from investment in distressed @i@AK TR B B BIRE
assets through establishment of a TREEZIWA
special purpose vehicle 6 45,866 39,993
Dividend income from listed EmEAFRBRA
securities 6 3,910 1,132
Other income, gains and losses EMUA - e & EE 7 177,882 195,545
Change in fair value of held-for- RIEEEREAREE
trading investments 48,548 (35,351)
Administrative expenses THEA (140,640) (117,776)
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale H & ]t HE % & zs
investments 17,898 —
Reversal of revaluation deficit &Y % = (f 5 1E B
(revaluation deficit) of leasehold (EfEBE)
properties 16 7,119 (19,141)
Change in fair value of investment BWEMERNREED
properties 15 58,444 (20,130)
Loss on fair value change on RERREAAERERE
convertible note classified as BB EEN R IRREE
financial liabilities at fair value AREBEEFERE
through profit or loss 37 - (6,289)
Change in fair value of structured EEMCRESFZANE
finance securities EE) (3,174) 1,715
Impairment loss on available-for-sale 7]t B & & & B {EE R
investments - (25,390)
Impairment loss on deposits, e~ BN R R E A FE UK
prepayments and other receivables  JFfEEE 31 - (21,115)
Finance costs % E R 8 (24,470) (25,520)
Gain on disposal of associates unk==i RN = s 103,678 —
Share of results of associates B ENRIES 36,497 22,472
Share of results of jointly controlled  #{5 f[FIFE 4| A B 24
entities 8,071 (2,426)
Profit before taxation B A5 AT A 453,540 86,942
Taxation charge M\ H 11 (42,210) (5,190)
Profit for the year F AR T 12 411,330 81,752
Attributable to: FEMG -
Owners of the Company ViN/NEIE ZEDN 406,278 87,057
Minority interests DB R 5,052 (5,305)
411,330 81,752
Earnings per share (in HK dollar) BRAEF (ASETIITR) 13
— Basic — X 0.223 0.048
— Diluted — #58 0.220 0.048
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME ZREZ2H KRR

For the year ended 31 December 2009
BE—FETNFL-A=+—HIFFE

2009 2008
—EEhE —ZTENF
HK$’°000 HK$’000
FET FAET
Profit for the year F A& 411,330 81,752
Other comprehensive income Hth 2 E=F
Exchange difference arising on REEECZERER
translation 40,503 52,702
Fair value gain (loss) arising on AEHERESEMHELESZ
revaluation of available-for-sale RAEAF(ERE)
investments 17,898 (111,455)
Reclassification adjustment — BT — AJEEE
impairment loss on KB REEE
available-for-sale investments - 25,390
Reclassification adjustment — By#AE — HEHEE
transfer to profit or loss on HEREEEERR
disposal of available-for-sale
investments (17,898) —
Gain arising on revaluation of EHEEYFEEA 2 WS
leasehold properties 21,237 7,007
Share of other comprehensive (R N B N 2 B4
income of associates and NGIEE ey
jointly controlled entities 9,046 (56,252)
Reclassification adjustment — BYHAE — HEBE QT
transfer to profit or loss on FElEsiamk
disposal of associates (8,954) —
Income tax relating to components ERAKEMEERF 2
of other comprehensive income FriS#i (2,842) (1,301)
Other comprehensive income FREMEE @A (BRFE)
for the year (net of tax) 58,990 (83,909)
Total comprehensive income FAZH RN BT
for the year 470,320 (2,157)
Total comprehensive income S H @A BT
attributable to: FEAh
Owners of the Company ViN/NEIE DN 463,651 9,261
Minority interests DER R E 6,669 (11,418)
470,320 (2,157)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 44 Btk R & R Bt it R &

As at 31 December 2009
REZFENFF=—A=1—H

The Group
A%

2009

2008

The Company
ANE
2009 2008

-2kl —TT)\F bl 2T )\F
Notes ELEXN) HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
Kz FET FET FET FET
ASSETS &E
Non-current assets FRBEE
Investment properties REME 15 2,288,512 2,188,262 17,590 16,798
Property, plant and equipment Y ER NG 16 223,198 462,444 74,872 65,674
Land use rights i 17 26,785 26,842 - —
Goodwill mE 18 7,001 11,392 - —
Investments in subsidiaries RERKBAR 19 - = 224,591 169,713
Amounts due from subsidiaries U B A AIFR 19 - — 1,930,163 796,217
Interest in associates AN [ 3 20 132,951 783,991 20,000 20,000
Interest in jointly controlled entities HEEGHIARER 21 198,396 66,717 5,180 12,973
Structured finance securities HEEHSHES 24 9,042 12,216 9,042 12,216
Available-for-sale investments AEHERE 25 435,494 314,019 105,640 2,140
Loan receivables R E R 26 339,751 = 339,751 -
Deposits, prepayments and BE TBRZ R EM L
other receivables 31 142,111 — - —
3,803,241 3,865,883 2,726,829 1,095,731
Current assets RBEE
Inventories, at cost FE — BHEA 28 298 66,597 = =
Investment in distressed assets through #8745 % B H &5
establishment of a special purpose BRETREE
vehicle 27 144,201 148,247 - —
Held-for-trading investments FEEERE 29 132,816 70,027 40,324 15,368
Trade receivables FEU AR 3R 30 10,118 11,794 = -
Deposits, prepayments and other BE TR TR AL
receivables 31 115,074 207,323 5,786 166,963
Amounts due from subsidiaries I AR 19 - - 357,804 2,300,536
Amounts due from associates NG 22 102,397 982,626 18,007 =
Amounts due from jointly e UNCIE
controlled entities 23 98,080 63,074 43,715 63,074
Loan receivables R E R 26 111,975 79,790 78,000 —
Available-for-sale investments AHHERE 25 - 121,277 - 63,500
Taxation recoverable A EFTR - 1,128 = =
Bank balances and cash RITEBR IR 32 1,979,724 792,376 622,523 40,503
2,694,683 2,544,259 1,166,159 2,649,944
TOTAL ASSETS BEHAE 6,497,924 6,410,142 3,892,988 3,745,675
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As at 31 December 2009
REZFENFF=—A=1—H

The Group
A%

2009

2008

The Company
ANE
2009 2008

LS ST\ 5 ekl —TT)\F
Notes IGLEX) HK$'000 [LECHN] HK$'000
/ifa FET FETL FHET FET
EQUITY A
Capital and reserves EXRf@EE
Share capital R 34 364,142 364,142 364,142 364,142
Reserves f#fE 35 4,805,276 4,505,489 2,559,656 2,575,355
Equity attributable to Owners of the — ARNAFHEA AELRA
Company 5,169,418 4,869,631 2,923,798 2,939,497
Minority interests DER RS 93,187 202,420 - =
TOTAL EQUITY RAMEE 5,262,605  5072,051 2,923,798 2,939,497
LIABILITIES =
Non-current liabilities ErBaE
Borrowings B 36 285,731 48,260 152,300 3,450
Deferred tax liabilities EXETIEARE 38 103,497 87,954 5,317 3,951
389,228 136,214 157,617 7,401
Current liabilities RBEE
Trade payables ERTRRR 39 99,200 113,833 - —
Accrued charges, rental deposits and ~ Ezt B R BEERE K
other payables HEREMAT 40 397,988 207,741 15,544 9,279
Amount due to an associate JE{T R & DAl 41 22,789 13,500 = 13,500
Amounts due to subsidiaries R BRRIR 42 - = 694,879 385,823
Borrowings fBE 36 179,058 336,839 101,150 1,150
Convertible note BB ER 37 = 389,025 - 389,025
Taxation payable ERHIE 147,056 140,939 - =
846,091 1,201,877 811,573 798,777
TOTAL LIABILITIES EE4E 1,235,319 1,338,091 969,190 806,178
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES RAREEHSE 6,497,924 6410142 3,892,988 3,745,675
Net current assets FREBEE 1,848,592 1,342,382 354,586 1,851,167
Total assets less current liabilities ZBEZERAEEE 5,651,833  5208,265 3,081,415 2,946,898

The consolidated financial statements on pages 56 to 189
were approved and authorised for issue by the board of
directors on 9 April 2010 and are signed on its behalf by:

Chen Xiaozhou 3
Director %

FEOHEFIOAZEANBRRCESRE
EERN_T-TFOANARAITRRESE
17 R TIIRERREBRER -

Gao Jian Min 2R
Director &%
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY &RE R E B R &K

For the year ended 31 December 2009
E_EENFAf A=, —HILFE

Attributable to Owners of the Company

ARAREERARERE
Asset Capital
Share Share revaluation  redemption Other  Translation Retained Minority Total
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total interests equity
B& RfEE EEEGER EARERRE HfbaR EiGf REEF A HHRRER hasE
(note)
W)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT 713 7T FET FET 713 7T 7AT TET 7T
At 1 January 2008 1200851818 364,142 277,087 43505 13,992 86,670 257,811 2,062,620 5,006,027 12,658 5,018,685
Profit (lss) for the year ERiaHIEE) = = - - - - 87,067 87,057 (5,305) 81,752
Other comprehensive income EREMRERT
for the year - - 5,706 - (86,065) 2,563 - (77,796) (6,113) (83,909)
Total comprehensive income FREEANEE
for the year - - 5,706 - (86,065) 2,563 87,057 9,261 (11,418) (2,167)

Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 43) WEKBAR H243) - - _ _
Incorporation of a non-wholly owned KU -Fik2EHE

- - - - 198,958 198,958

subsidiary KEBAA - - - - - - - - 200 222
Transfer on disposal of leasehold HERENEREE

properties - - (2154) - - - 2,154 - - -
Dividend (note 14) ReHiz14) - - - - - - (145,657) (145,657) - (145,657)
At 31 December 2008 1200812318 364,142 2,117,281 47,067 13,992 605 260,374 2,006,174 4,869,631 202,420 5,072,051
At 1 January 2009 R2009%1A18 364,142 2,117,281 47,057 13,992 605 260,374 2,006,174 4,869,631 202,420 5,072,051
Profit for the year EREH = - - - - - 406,218 406,218 5,052 411,330
Other comprehensive income FRzmE

for the year - - 18,395 - (588) 39,566 - 57,373 1,617 58,990
Total comprehensive income FR2EEHEE

for the year - - 18,395 - (588) 39,566 406,218 463,651 6,669 470,320
Deemed disposal of a subsidiary BRI E-FHEA

(note 4) - - - - - - - - (153029 (115002
Dividend (note 14) - - - - - - (163,864) (163,864) = (163,864)
At 31 December 2009 20005124318 364,142 2,117,281 65,452 13,992 17 299,940 2,248,588 5,169,418 93,187 5,262,605
Note: HieE -

Fair value change of available-for-sale investment measured
at fair value is recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in other reserve, until the available-for-sale
investment is disposed of or is determined to be impaired, at
which time the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in
other reserve is reclassified to profit or loss.

BAREMEARHEREZ AREEZSHNEME
g A R RN E b - EEZ AR ER
BHEREERBER - ZAINEBREERERNZR
A ERBEREEEERER -
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH

For the year ended 31 December 2009
BE—FETNFL-A=+—HIFFE

FLOWS HRERERER

2009 2008
—sens [EEEEEVC
Notes HK$°000 HK$°000
Kzt FET FET
Operating activities e
Profit before taxation BR 758 A1 V2 71 453,540 86,942
Adjustments for: FE
Share of results of associates AL N REE (36,497) (22,472)
Share of results of jointly controlled — # {5 £ [E 5 H A T 4R
entities (8,071) 2,426
Amortisation of other asset Hfth & EEHE SR = 1,371
Depreciation of property, plant and VI - BB RRETTE
equipment 11,202 11,614
Amortisation of land use rights o Hb {5 A A A 5 574 46
Finance costs Bi5E 24,470 25,520
Change in fair value of HIEEEREAAEE
held-for-trading investments (48,548) 39,301
Income from investment in AR B S EEIRE
distressed assets through TREEZIWA
establishment of a special
purpose vehicle (45,866) (39,993)
Interest income L2 A (116,755) (113,150)
Gain on disposal of available-for- HEHEERERE
sale investments (17,898) —
Impairment loss on available-for- A SR EREEE
sale investments - 25,390
Impairment loss on deposits, RE - AR EH Ath UK
prepayments and other REEE
receivables - 21,115
Gain on disposal of associates S B A AR ES (103,678) —
Net loss on disposal of property, HEME  BEKRHEZ
plant and equipment BI85 187 163
(Reversal of revaluation deficit) HEW(EHEERLRE)
revaluation deficit of leasehold HhEE
properties (7,119) 19,141
Change in fair value of investment WEMEIRBEEE)
properties (568,444) 20,130
Loss on fair value change on RER&RIE AN ERERR
convertible note classified as BYHAENIRRER
financial liabilities at fair value AREZEER
through profit or loss - 6,289
Change in fair value of structured EEMLERESFZ ANE
finance securities o 3,174 (1,715)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH

For the year ended 31 December 2009
BE—FETNFL-A=+—HIFFE

FLOWS HRERERER

2009 2008
—EEBNEF —ZEENF
Notes HK$°000 HK$°000
Kzt FET FEIT
Operating cash flows before EBECEIAMNLEES
movements in working capital BN 50,271 78,168
Decrease in inventories FERD 18,753 7,611
Increase in held-for-trading BEBEEIRELEM
investments (14,241) (42,248)
Decrease in trade receivables FEW R FOR 1,310 1,454
Decrease in deposits, prepayments &% « TET 3R K H fh fE Uk
and other receivables N 737 17,910
Decrease in restricted bank balance ES& P A & &40 — 163,677
(Decrease) increase in trade FERTBRFR O 4 ) 38 0
payables (7,560) 2,798
Decrease in amount due to holding  JEff— &R AYIEAL A &5
company of a shareholder N - (96,676)
Increase (decrease) in accrued EEER - ke kHAM
charges, rental deposits and other e RIE 0 OBt 2>)
payables 4,172 (19,970)
Cash generated from operations IR SIS IH & 53,442 112,724
Interest paid S (24,470) (25,520)
Tax paid SRR (21,284) (9,319)
Net cash from operating activities EEERELE 72 2R 7,688 77,885
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 48R ERER

For the year ended 31 December 2009
BE—FETNFL-A=+—HIFFE

2009 2008
—zzrs [EEECIIE
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Kzt FET FET
Investing activities REXEK
Purchase of distressed assets and BATNREER
injected into a special purpose ARFIR B SRS
vehicle 27 (278,633) —
Receipt of income and principal WERGEB A L R 5k B RO # B AR
repayment from recovery of AR B EDWEED
distressed assets purchased WA R AR E B
through establishment of a special
purpose vehicle 328,545 —
Proceeds on disposal of investment  H&EREYEFTSHIE
properties = 1,061
Receipt of consideration receivable  YEUEERE Y E
from disposal of investment FrSskE
properties - 89,519
Receipt of consideration receivable  WEXHHEEH B AT EXR
from buyer of the disposed Z PR30
subsidiaries 165,620 —
Purchase of property, plant and BAME  BERERE
equipment (9,909) (61,979)
Purchase of investment properties AR EYE = (1,202)
Purchase of land use rights BB B T AR = (797)
Purchase of available-for-sale BATHEHERE
investments (42,833) (392,122)
Dividend received from associates B e & A AR B 152,000 318,600
Interest received BT B 116,755 113,150
Repayment from associates N AER 966,474 149,448
Advance to associates B R E IR (84,530) (348,252)
Advance to a jointly controlled entity 2437 3 [F 5 %I A &7 F0E (54,364) —
Repayment from a jointly controlled  YgER— & F£ R & A &)
entity BN 19,358 59,556
Advance of loan receivables B EWER (451,726) (79,790)
Receipt of loan receivables W ER FE UL E SR 79,790 —
Proceeds on disposal of property, HEDE  MERERES
plant and equipment A 94 667
Proceeds on disposal of assets HEIEREHE 2 BEEMTS
classified as held-for-sale B = 5,000
Proceeds on disposal of available- & ATt SR E TS HKIE
for-sale investments 66,710 18,33
Proceeds on disposal of associates  HERE N T AERIE 252,343 —
Receipt of principal repayment of WHEBEERESASEN
structured finance securities - 1,645
Proceeds on deregistration of an FESH— [ A RIFTBRIR
associate — 44,445
Acquisition of investment in a jointly Uk —RIHERIEEI A FIRE
controlled entity — (55,556)
Acquisition of subsidiaries U BB T8 2 A 43 - 50,680
Deemed disposal of a subsidiary RELE —FEREBAF 44 (62,981) —
Net cash from (used in) investing WEXBIE(FTA)FRE
activities 1,162,713 (92,694)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH

For the year ended 31 December 2009
BE—FETNFL-A=+—HIFFE

FLOWS HRERERER

2009 2008
—EEBNEF —EET)N\F
Notes HK$°000 HK$°000
Kzt FET FET
Financing activities RLE
Redemption of convertible note B O A iR =45 (389,025) —
Repayment of bank loans EERITER (1,077,505) (228,926)
Dividend paid ERRE (163,864) (145,657)
Bank loans raised RITERRE 1,286,251 248,122
Advance from associates e N B 2R 150,000 =
Repayment to associates BB N A B (13,500) (264,630)
Increase in amount due to an A AREED 2 B —H
associate from recovery of B A A58 N
distressed assets 27 22,789 —
Increase in other payables from B R & E Uz At RE S R
recovery of distressed assets 0 27 197,503 —
Loan from minority shareholder of a —MfMB AR Z D HREERK
subsidiary 1,853 20,889
Capital injection from minority DB B AR A
shareholder - 2,222
Net cash from (used in) financing BVEEBEE (A FE e
activities 14,502 (367,980)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and IR& RIR&E(E LN
cash equivalents OR A ) %58 1,184,903 (382,789)
Cash and cash equivalents at the ReERREFEFIEEE
beginning of the year 792,376 1,152,840
Effect of foreign currency rate GINEEBE SR B v RO &
changes 2,445 22,325
Cash and cash equivalents at the RERREFEFREE
end of the year 1,979,724 792,376
ANALYSIS OF THE BALANCES OF ReRBESZSELHBIIT
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Bank balances and cash IRTTEBR MRS 1,979,724 792,376
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #& B s R Mz

For the year ended 31 December 2009
BE—FETNFL-A=+—HIFFE

1.

General

The Company is a public limited company
incorporated in Hong Kong and its shares are listed
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”). The addresses of the registered
office and principal place of business of the Company
are disclosed in the section headed “Corporate
Information” in the annual report.

In view of the increase in the underlying investments
which are predominantly denominated in Renminbi
(“BMB”), and RMB is also the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the subsidiaries of
the Company operates, the directors re-evaluated
the functional currency of the Company and
changed the functional currency from Hong Kong
dollars (“HKD”) to RMB as RMB better reflects the
underlying transactions, event and condition that are
relevant to the Company. For the convenience of the
financial statements users, the consolidated financial
statements are presented in HKD, as the Company’s
shares are listed on the Stock Exchange.

The Company is an investment holding company and is
engaged in property investment and securities trading
and investments. The Company and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) are principally engaged in property investment,
other investments, distressed assets business and
production and trading of petrochemical products.
Details of the principal activities of the Company’s
subsidiaries and the Group’s associates, jointly
controlled entities and the special purpose vehicle are
set out in notes 52 and 53 respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #& B s R Mz

For the year ended 31 December 2009
BE—FETNFL-A=+—HIFFE

2.

Application of new and revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)

In the current year, the Group has applied the
following new and revised standards, amendments
and interpretations (“new and revised HKFRSs”)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”).

HKAS 1 (Revised 2007) Presentation of financial statements

HKAS 23 (Revised 2007)  Borrowing costs

HKAS 32 & 1 Puttable financial instruments and
(Amendments) obligations arising on liquidation
HKFRS 1 & HKAS 27 Cost of an investment in a subsidiary,

(Amendments) jointly controlled entity or associate

HKFRS 2 (Amendment) Vesting conditions and cancellations

HKFRS 7 (Amendment) Improving disclosures about financial
instruments

HKFRS 8 Operating segments

HK(IFRIC) — Int 9 & Embedded derivatives

HKAS 39 (Amendments)

HK(IFRIC) — Int 13 Customer loyalty programmes

HK(IFRIC) — Int 15 Agreements for the construction of
real estate

HK(IFRIC) — Int 16 Hedges of a net investment in a
foreign operation

HK(IFRIC) — Int 18 Transfers of assets from customers

HKFRSs (Amendments) Improvements to HKFRSs issued in

2008, except for the amendment
to HKFRS 5 that is effective for
annual periods beginning on or
after 1 July 2009

HKFRSs (Amendments) Improvements to HKFRSs issued in
2009 in relation to the amendment
to paragraph 80 of HKAS 39

2.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #& B s R Mz

For the year ended 31 December 2009
BE—FETNFL-A=+—HIFFE

2.

Application of new and revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

Except as described below, the adoption of the new
and revised HKFRSs has had no material effect on
the consolidated financial statements of the Group
for the current or prior accounting periods.

New and revised HKFRSs affecting presentation
and disclosure only

HKAS 1 (Revised 2007) Presentation of financial
statements

HKAS 1 (Revised 2007) has introduced terminology
changes (including revised titles for the consolidated
financial statements) and changes in the format and
content of the consolidated financial statements.

HKFRS 8 Operating segments

HKFRS 8 is a disclosure standard that has not
resulted in a redesignation of the Group’s reportable
segments nor changes in the basis of measurement
of segment profit or loss, segment assets and
segment liabilities (see note 6).

Improving disclosures about financial
instruments (amendments to HKFRS 7 Financial
instruments: Disclosures)

The amendments to HKFRS 7 expand the disclosures
required in relation to fair value measurements
in respect of financial instruments which are
measured at fair value. The Group has not provided
comparative information for the expanded disclosures
in accordance with the transitional provision set out
in the amendments.

2.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #& B s R Mz

For the year ended 31 December 2009
BE—FETNFL-A=+—HIFFE

2.

Application of new and revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs affecting the reported
results and/or financial position

HKAS 23 (Revised 2007) Borrowing costs

In previous years, the Group expensed all borrowing
costs that were directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of a qualifying asset
when they were incurred. HKAS 23 (Revised 2007)
removes the option previously available to expense
all borrowing costs when incurred. The adoption of
HKAS 23 (Revised 2007) has resulted in the Group
changing its accounting policy to capitalise all such
borrowing costs as part of the cost of the qualifying
asset. The Group has applied the revised accounting
policy to borrowing costs relating to qualifying assets
for which the commencement date for capitalisation
is on or after 1 January 2009 in accordance with
the transitional provisions in HKAS 23 (Revised
2007). The revised accounting policy does not
have a material effect on the reported results and
financial position of the Group for the current or prior
accounting periods.

The Group has not early applied the following
new and revised standards, amendments or
interpretations that have been issued but are not yet
effective.

HKFRSs (Amendments) ~ Amendment to HKFRS 5 as part of

Improvements to HKFRSs 2008'

HKFRSs (Amendments)  Improvements to HKFRSs 2009

HKAS 24 (Revised) Related party disclosures’

HKAS 27 (Revised) Consolidated and separate financial

statements’

2.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #& B s R Mz

For the year ended 31 December 2009
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2.

Application of new and revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)

(Continued)

HKAS 32 (Amendment)

HKAS 39 (Amendment)

HKFRS 1 (Amendment)

HKFRS 1 (Amendment)

HKFRS 2 (Amendment)

HKFRS 3 (Revised)

HKFRS 9
HK(IFRIC) — Int 14
(Amendment)
HK(IFRIC) — Int 17
HK(IFRIC) — Int 19

July 2009.

Classification of rights issues’
Eligible hedged items’

Additional exemptions for first-time
adopters®

Limited exemption from comparative
HKFRS 7 disclosures for first-time
adopters’

Group cash-settled share-based
payment transactions’

Business combinations’

Financial instruments’

Prepayments of a minimum funding
requirement’

Distributions of non-cash assets to
owners'

Extinguishing financial liabilities with
equity instruments’®

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1

July 2009 and 1 January 2010, as appropriate.

January 2010.

February 2010.

July 2010.

January 2011.

January 2013.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1

2.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #& B s R Mz

For the year ended 31 December 2009
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2.

Application of new and revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

The application of HKFRS 3 (Revised) may affect
the Group’s accounting for business combination for
which the acquisition date is on or after 1 January
2010. HKAS 27 (Revised) will affect the accounting
treatment for changes in the Group’s ownership
interest in a subsidiary.

HKFRS 9 “Financial instruments” introduces new
requirements for the classification and measurement
of financial assets and will be effective from 1
January 2013, with earlier application permitted.
The standard requires all recognised financial assets
that are within the scope of HKAS 39 “Financial
instruments: Recognition and measurement” to be
measured at either amortised cost or fair value.
Specifically, debt investments that (i) are held within
a business model whose objective is to collect the
contractual cash flows and (ii) have contractual
cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal outstanding are
generally measured at amortised cost. All other debt
investments and equity investments are measured at
fair value. The application of HKFRS 9 might affect
the classification and measurement of the Group’s
financial assets.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of the other new and revised standards,
amendments or interpretations will have no material
impact on the consolidated financial statements.
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For the year ended 31 December 2009
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3.

Significant accounting policies

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs issued by
the HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis, except for
properties and certain financial instruments, which
are measured at revalued amounts or fair values. The
principal accounting policies adopted are as follows:

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and entities
(including special purpose entities) controlled by the
Company (its subsidiaries). Control is achieved where
the Company has the power to govern the financial
and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain
benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed
of during the year are included in the consolidated
income statement from the effective date of
acquisition or up to the effective date of disposal, as
appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the
financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies into line with those used by other
members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and
expenses are eliminated on consolidation.
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For the year ended 31 December 2009
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3.

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Minority interests in the net assets of consolidated
subsidiaries are presented separately from the
Group’s equity therein. Minority interests in the net
assets consist of the amount of those interests at
the date of the original business combination and the
minority’s share of changes in equity since the date
of the combination. Losses applicable to the minority
in excess of the minority’s interest in the subsidiary’s
equity are allocated against the interests of the
Group except to the extent that the minority has a
binding obligation and is able to make an additional
investment to cover the losses.

Business combinations

The acquisition of businesses is accounted for using
the purchase method. The cost of the acquisition
is measured at the aggregate of the fair values,
at the date of exchange, of assets given, liabilities
incurred or assumed, and equity instruments issued
by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree,
plus any costs directly attributable to the business
combination. The acquiree’s identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities that meet the
conditions for recognition under HKFRS 3 Business
Combinations are recognised at their fair values at
the acquisition date.

Goodwill arising on acquisition is recognised as an
asset and initially measured at cost, being the excess
of the cost of the business combination over the
Group’s interest in the net fair value of the identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities recognised.
If, after reassessment, the Group’s interest in the
net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities exceeds the cost of
the business combination, the excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.
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3.

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Business combinations (Continued)

The interest of minority shareholders in the acquiree
is initially measured at the minority’s proportion of the
net fair value of the assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities recognised.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on acquisitions prior to 1
January 2005

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of net assets and
operations of another entity or a jointly controlled
entity for which the agreement date is before
1 January 2005 represents the excess of the cost of
acquisition over the Group’s interest in the fair value
of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the relevant
acquiree at the date of acquisition.

For previously capitalised goodwill arising on
acquisition of net assets and operations of another
entity or a jointly controlled entity after 1 January
2001, the Group has discontinued amortisation from
1 January 2005 onwards, and such goodwill is tested
for impairment annually, and whenever there is an
indication that the cash generating unit to which the
goodwill relates may be impaired (see the accounting
policy below).

Goodwill arising on acquisitions on or after 1
January 2005

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business for
which the agreement date is on or after 1 January
2005 represents the excess of the cost of acquisition
over the Group’s interest in the fair value of the
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
of the relevant business at the date of acquisition.
Such goodwill is carried at cost less any accumulated
impairment losses.
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3.

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Goodwill (Continued)

Goodwill arising on acquisitions on or after 1
January 2005 (Continued)

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is
carried at cost less any accumulated impairment
losses and is presented separately in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill
arising from an acquisition is allocated to each of the
relevant cash-generating units, or groups of cash-
generating units, that are expected to benefit from
the synergies of the acquisition. A cash-generating
unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested
for impairment annually, and whenever there is an
indication that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill
arising on an acquisition in a financial year, the cash-
generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated
is tested for impairment before the end of that
financial year. When the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit is less than the carrying amount
of the unit, the impairment loss is allocated to reduce
the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the
unit first, and then to the other assets of the unit
pro rata on the basis of the carrying amount of each
asset in the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is
recognised directly in profit or loss. An impairment
loss for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent
periods.

On subsequent disposal of the relevant cash-
generating unit, the attributable amount of goodwill
capitalised is included in the determination of the
amount of profit or loss on disposal.
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Investments in subsidiaries, associates and
jointly controlled entities

Investments in subsidiaries, associates and jointly
controlled entities are stated in the Company’s
statement of financial position at cost less any
identified impairment loss. Income from investments
in subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled
entities is accounted for by the Company when the
Company’s right to receive the dividend payment has
been established.

Investments in associates

An associate is an entity over which the investor has
significant influence and that is neither a subsidiary
nor an interest in joint venture. Significant influence is
the power to participate in the financial and operating
policy decisions of the investee but is not control or
joint control over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates
are incorporated in these consolidated financial
statements using the equity method of accounting.
Under the equity method, investments in associates
are carried in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost as adjusted for post-acquisition
changes in the Group’s share of net assets of the
associate, less any identified impairment loss. When
the Group’s share of losses of an associate equals or
exceeds its interest in that associate (which includes
any long-term interests that, in substance, form part
of the Group’s net investment in the associate), the
Group discontinues recognising its share of further
losses. An additional share of losses is provided for
and a liability is recognised only to the extent that the
Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations
or made payments on behalf of that associate.
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3.

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Investments in associates (Continued)

Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s
share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities of the associate
recognised at the date of acquisition is recognised
as goodwill. The goodwill is included within the
carrying amount of the investment and is not tested
for impairment separately. Instead, the entire carrying
amount of the investment is tested for impairment
as a single asset. Any impairment loss recognised is
not allocated to any asset, including goodwill, that
forms part of the carrying amount of the investment
in the associate. Any reversal of impairment loss is
recognised to the extent that the recoverable amount
of the investment subsequently increases.

Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair
value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities over the cost of acquisition, after
reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit or
loss.

Where a group entity transacts with an associate
of the Group, profits and losses are eliminated to
the extent of the Group’s interest in the relevant
associate.

Joint ventures

Jointly controlled entities

Joint venture arrangements that involve the
establishment of a separate entity in which venturers

have joint control over the economic activity of the
entity are referred to as jointly controlled entities.
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3.

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Joint ventures (Continued)
Jointly controlled entities (Continued)

The results and assets and liabilities of jointly
controlled entities are incorporated in the
consolidated financial statements using the equity
method of accounting. Under the equity method,
investments in jointly controlled entities are carried
in the consolidated statement of financial position at
cost as adjusted for post-acquisition changes in the
Group’s share of net assets of the jointly controlled
entities, less any identified impairment loss. When the
Group’s share of losses of a jointly controlled entity
equals or exceeds its interest in that jointly controlled
entity (which includes any long-term interests that, in
substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in
the jointly controlled entity), the Group discontinues
recognising its share of further losses. An additional
share of losses is provided for and a liability is
recognised only to the extent that the Group has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of that jointly controlled entity.

Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the
Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of the
jointly controlled entity recognised at the date of
acquisition is recognised as goodwill. Goodwill is
included within the carrying amount of the investment
and is not tested for impairment separately. Instead,
the entire carrying amount of the investment is tested
for impairment as a single asset. Any impairment loss
recognised is not allocated to any asset, including
goodwill, that forms part of the carrying amount
of the investment in the associate. Any reversal of
impairment loss is recognised to the extent that the
recoverable amount of the investment subsequently
increases.
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3.

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Joint ventures (Continued)
Jointly controlled entities (Continued)

Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair
value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities over the cost of acquisition, after
reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit or
loss.

When a group entity transacts with a jointly controlled
entity of the Group, profits or losses are eliminated
to the extent of the Group’s interest in the jointly
controlled entity.

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn
rentals and/or for capital appreciation.

On initial recognition, investment properties are
measured at cost, including any directly attributable
expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are measured at fair value
using the fair value model. Gains or losses arising
from changes in the fair value of investment
properties are included in profit or loss for the period
in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon
disposal or when the investment property is
permanently withdrawn from use and no future
economic benefits are expected from its disposals.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the
asset (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset) is included in the profit or loss in the period in
which the item is derecognised.
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including leasehold
land and buildings held for use in production or
supply of goods or services, or for administrative
purposes (other than construction in progress)
are stated at cost or fair value less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment loss.

Construction in progress includes property, plant
and equipment in the course of construction for
production or for its own use purposes. Construction
in progress is carried at cost less any recognised
impairment loss. Construction in progress is
classified to the appropriate category of property,
plant and equipment when completed and ready for
intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the
same basis as other property assets, commences
when the assets are ready for their intended use.

Leasehold land and building originally classified
as investment properties carried at fair value is
transferred to property, plant and equipment at a
deemed cost equal to its fair value at the date of
change in use as evidence by commencement of
owner occupation.

Leasehold land and buildings held for use in
the production or supply of goods or services,
or for administrative purposes, are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at their
revalued amount, being the fair value at the date
of revaluation less any subsequent accumulated
impairment losses and subsequent accumulated
depreciation. Revaluations are performed with
sufficient regularity such that the carrying amount
does not differ materially from that which would
be determined using fair values at the end of the
reporting period.

TEETHHERE)
M BERRE

ME BERRGERFEEREE
REERAMBAITHRERERE(ER
TN BEE + it RIEFTHIRA A
KRR ERERRZFANERRFRE
ERAR

ERIEEEEEENTEERERZ
M - BB REAE o R IEZABRAR
ZETREEBBIE - TEIENTHKE
AHARBERERER YR -
ﬁ%& SE2EEER o WEBE T
BEEREMYEEEMER - TTREE
@%E’:‘Tﬁmﬁﬁ B FIRETE o

RIENRAREIER  DERREMEL
HE L3RBT Thiz AR B A1EE A
RENEE RN AR EBRRA/KAEE
ERNE G S

FERMFLEXRBEERLIRE A
® - HAETREERRRNES LR
BT DREEHERSESMBRRER
WINRR - MEHENEEEERZAA
EREEMER 2 REBMEEERNER
ZRBWE - AR TEHETER - FRE
BEERABERRMEE 2 AAERE
BEXREE -



Silver Grant International Industries Limited iR 2BHE B X AR A

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #& B s R Mz

For the year ended 31 December 2009

EiE

3.

—FENEFASt—AULEE

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Any revaluation increase arising on revaluation of
leasehold land and buildings is recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in asset
revaluation reserve, except to the extent that it
reverses a revaluation decrease of the same asset
previously recognised in profit or loss, in which case
the increase is credited to profit or loss to the extent
of the decrease previously charged. A decrease in
net carrying amount arising on revaluation of an asset
is recognised in profit or loss to the extent that it
exceeds the balance, if any, on the asset revaluation
reserve relating to a previous revaluation of that
asset. On the subsequent sale or retirement of a
revalued asset, the attributable revaluation surplus is
transferred to retained profits.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost or fair
value of property, plant and equipment other than
construction in progress over their estimated useful
lives, using the straight line method.

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising
on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the item) is included
in profit or loss in the period in which the item is
derecognised.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable and represents
amounts receivable for goods sold and services
provided in the normal course of business, net of
discounts and sales related tax.
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Revenue recognition (Continued)

The income from investment in distressed assets
through establishment of a special purpose vehicle
is recognised on a time basis by reference to the
estimated future cash flows and at the effective
interest rate. The effective interest rate is the rate
that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
inflows arising from recoveries or collection, net
of the estimated future cash outflows arising from
directly attributable costs such as management fee
and incentive bonus through the expected life of
the distressed assets, to the assets’ net carrying
amounts on initial recognition.

Other interest income is accrued on a time basis
by reference to the principal outstanding and at the
effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate
that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
receipts through the expected life of the financial
asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

Commission income is recognised when services are
provided.

Sales of petrochemical products are recognised
when goods are delivered and title have passed.

Property management fee income is recognised
when management service is rendered.

Rental income under operating leases is recognised
on a straight line basis over the term of the leases.

Dividend income from investments is recognised
when the shareholders’ rights to receive the payment
have been established.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
in the statement of financial position when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. Financial assets and
financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value.
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition or issue of financial assets and
financial liabilities (other than financial assets and
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss)
are added to or deducted from the fair value of the
financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate,
on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into one of
three categories: financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss (“FVTPL"); loans and receivables; and
available-for-sale financial assets. All regular way
purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised
and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the time
frame established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.

3.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset
and of allocating interest income over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees, points paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial asset,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest
basis for debt instruments other than those financial
assets classified as at FVTPL, of which interest
income is excluded in net gains or losses.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at FVTPL has two subcategories,
including financial assets held for trading and those
designated as at FVTPL on initial recognition.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

° it has been acquired principally for the purpose
of selling in the near future; or

° it is a part of an identified portfolio of financial
instruments that the Group manages together
and has a recent actual pattern of short-term
profit-taking; or

° it is a derivative that is not designated and
effective as a hedging instrument.

3.
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3.

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(Continued)

A financial asset other than a financial asset held for
trading may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial
recognition if:

° such designation eliminates or significantly
reduces a measurement or recognition
inconsistency that would otherwise arise; or

° the financial asset forms part of a group of
financial assets or financial liabilities or both,
which is managed and its performance is
evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance
with the Group’s documented risk management
or investment strategy, and information about
the grouping is provided internally on that basis;
or

° it forms part of a contract containing one or
more embedded derivatives, and HKAS 39
permits the entire combined contract (asset or
liability) to be designated as at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value,
with changes in fair value arising from remeasurement
recognised directly in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise. The net gain or loss recognised
in profit or loss excludes any dividend or interest
earned on the financial assets.

3.
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3.

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market. Subsequent to
initial recognition, loans and receivables (including
trade receivables, deposits and other receivables,
amounts due from associates/jointly controlled
entities/subsidiaries, bank balances and cash and
loan receivables) are carried at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less any identified
impairment losses.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives
that are either designated or not classified as
financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss, loans and receivables or held-to-maturity
investments.

Available-for-sale financial assets are measured at
fair value at the end of the reporting period. Changes
in fair value are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in other reserve, until the
financial asset is disposed of or is determined to
be impaired, at which time, the cumulative gain or
loss previously accumulated in the other reserve is
reclassified to profit or loss (see accounting policy on
impairment loss on financial assets below).

For available-for-sale equity investments that do not
have a quoted market price in an active market and
whose fair value cannot be reliably measured, they
are measured at cost less any identified impairment
losses at the end of the reporting period (see
accounting policy on impairment loss on financial
assets below).
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Loans and receivables — investment in
distressed assets through establishment of a
special purpose vehicle

Investment in distressed assets through establishment
of a special purpose vehicle is stated at amortised
cost using effective interest method less impairment
allowance. The impairment allowances are made
on the interest in distressed assets when there is
objective evidence of impairment as a result of the
occurrence of certain loss events that will impact on
the estimated future cash flows, and are measured
as the difference between the carrying amount
of the investment in distressed assets through
establishment of a special purpose vehicle and the
present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the original effective interest rate. The
adjustment is recognised as impairment loss in profit
or loss. Where the actual future net cash flows are
more than expected, the revised cash flow will be
discounted using the original effective interest rate.
The adjustment to the carrying amount is credited
in profit or loss to reflect the revised cash flows
discounted using the original effective interest rate.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are
assessed for indicators of impairment at the end of
the reporting period. Financial assets are impaired
where there is objective evidence that, as a result
of one or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the financial asset, the estimated future
cash flows of the financial assets have been affected.

For an available-for sale equity investment, a
significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of
that investment below its cost is considered to be
objective evidence of impairment.
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3.

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of
impairment could include:

° significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

° default or delinquency in interest or principal
payments; or

o it becoming probable that the borrower will
enter bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as
trade receivables, are assessed not to be impaired
individually are subsequently assessed for impairment
on a collective basis. Objective evidence of
impairment for a portfolio of receivables could include
the Group’s past experience of collecting payments,
an increase in the number of delayed payments in the
portfolio past the average credit period, observable
changes in national or local economic conditions that
correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, an
impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss when
there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired,
and is measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the original
effective interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of
the impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of the estimated future cash flows discounted
at the current market rate of return for a similar
financial asset. Such impairment loss will not be
reversed in subsequent periods.
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3.

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced
by the impairment loss directly for all financial
assets with the exception of trade receivables, other
receivables, amounts due from associates/jointly
controlled entities/subsidiaries, where the carrying
amount is reduced through the use of an allowance
account. Changes in the carrying amount of the
allowance account are recognised in profit or loss.
When trade receivables, other receivables, amounts
due from associates/jointly controlled entities/
subsidiaries are considered uncollectible, it is written
off against the allowance account. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are
credited to profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if,
in a subsequent period, the amount of impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
loss was recognised, the previously recognised
impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss to
the extent that the carrying amount of the asset at
the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed
what the amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised.

Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity
investments will not be reversed in profit or loss
in subsequent periods. Any increase in fair value
subsequent to impairment loss is recognised directly
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
other reserve. For available-for-sale debt investments,
impairment losses are subsequently reversed to
profit or loss if an increase in the fair value of the
investment can be objectively related to an event
occurring after the recognition of the impairment
loss.
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3.

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued
by a group entity are classified according to the
substance of the contractual arrangements entered
into and the definitions of a financial liability and an
equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of the Group after
deducting all of its liabilities. The Group’s financial
liabilities are generally classified into financial
liabilities at FVTPL and other financial liabilities.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability
and of allocating interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees, points paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial liability,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest
basis other than those financial liabilities classified as
at FVTPL, for which the interest expense is excluded
in net gains or losses.
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3.

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)

Convertible note at fair value through profit or
loss

Financial liabilities at FVTPL represent convertible
note designated at fair value through profit or loss on
initial recognition.

A financial liability may be designated as at FVTPL
upon initial recognition if:

° such designation eliminates or significantly
reduces a measurement or recognition
inconsistency that would otherwise arise; or

° the financial liability forms part of a group of
financial assets or financial liabilities or both,
which is managed and its performance is
evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance
with the Group’s documented risk management
or investment strategy, and information about
the grouping is provided internally on that basis;
or

° it forms part of a contract containing one or
more embedded derivatives, and HKAS 39
permits the entire combined contract (asset or
liability) to be designated as at FVTPL.

The convertible note with embedded derivatives
whose economic risks and characteristics are not
closely related to those of the host contract (the
liability component) as a whole is designated as
financial liabilities at FVTPL on initial recognition.

Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
issue of the convertible notes designated as financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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3.

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)

Convertible note at fair value through profit or
loss (Continued)

Subsequent to initial recognition, the entire
convertible note with embedded derivatives are
measured at fair value, with changes in fair value
recognised directly in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities including borrowings, trade
payables, accrued charges and other payables,
amounts due to subsidiaries and amount due to an
associate are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest method.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct
issue costs.

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights
to receive cash flows from the assets expire or,
the financial assets are transferred and the Group
has transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the financial assets. On
derecognition of a financial asset, the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum
of the consideration received and receivable and the
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in
other comprehensive income is recognised in profit
or loss.
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3.

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Derecognition (Continued)

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the
obligation specified in the relevant contract is
discharged, cancelled or expires. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable
is recognised in profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Cost is calculated using the
weighted average method.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets, which are assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those
assets until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale. Investment
income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing
costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which they are incurred.
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3.

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Impairment losses other than goodwill (see the
accounting policy in respect of goodwill above)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its assets to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets
have suffered an impairment loss. If the recoverable
amount of an asset is estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset
is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment
loss is recognised as an expense immediately,
unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued
amount under another standard, in which case the
impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease
under that standard.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses,
the carrying amount of the assets is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount,
but so that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal
of an impairment loss is recognised as income
immediately, unless the relevant asset is carried at
a revalued amount under another standard, in which
case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as
a revaluation increase under that standard.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable
profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from profit
as reported in the consolidated income statement
because it excludes items of income or expense that
are taxable or deductible in other years and it further
excludes items that are never taxable or deductible.
The Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using
tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax base used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all
deductible temporary difference to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which those deductible temporary differences
can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from
goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in
a business combination) of other assets and liabilities
in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit
nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences associated with investments
in subsidiaries and associates, and interests in
joint ventures, except where the Group is able to
control the reversal of the temporary difference
and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax
assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments and interests are
only recognised to the extent that it is probable that
there will be sufficient taxable profits against which
to utilise the benefits of the temporary differences
and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable
future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at the end of the reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow
all or part of the asset to be recovered.
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3.

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured
at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
period in which the liability is settled or the asset
is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period. The measurement of
deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax
consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting
period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its
assets and liabilities. Deferred tax is recognised in
profit or loss, except when it relates to items that are
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity, in which case the deferred tax is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity respectively.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each
individual group entity, transactions in currencies
other than the functional currency of that entity
(foreign currencies) are recorded in the respective
functional currency (i.e. the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates)
at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of
the transactions. At the end of the reporting period,
monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date.
Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair
value was determined. Non-monetary items that
are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are not retranslated.
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3.

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Foreign currencies (Continued)

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the retranslation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which they arise. Exchange differences arising
on the retranslation of non-monetary items carried
at fair value are included in profit or loss for the
period, except for exchange differences arising on
the retranslation of non-monetary items in respect
of which gains and losses are recognised directly in
other comprehensive income, in which cases, the
exchange differences are also recognised directly in
other comprehensive income.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated
financial statements, the assets and liabilities of the
group entities which are stated at functional currency
other than HKD are translated into the presentation
currency of the Group (i.e. HKD) at the rate of
exchange prevailing at the end of the reporting
period, and their income and expenses are translated
at the average exchange rates for the year. Exchange
differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
(the translation reserve). Exchange differences in
relation to foreign operations are recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which the foreign operation is
disposed of.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Foreign currencies (Continued)
Change in functional currency

Functional currency of a group entity is changed only
if there is a change to the underlying transactions,
events and conditions relevant to the entity. The
effect of a change in the translation functional
currency is accounted for prospectively. At the date
of change, the entity translates all items into the new
functional currency using the prevailing exchange rate
at that date and the resulting translated amounts for
non-monetary items are treated as the historical cost.
Exchange differences arising from the translation of
foreign operations recognised in translation reserve
are not recognised in profit or loss until the disposal
of the operation.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other
leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of
the relevant lease.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the term of
the relevant lease. Benefits received and receivable
as an incentive to enter into an operating lease are
recognised as a reduction of rental expense over the
lease term on a straight-line basis.
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3.

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Leasing (Continued)
The Group as lessee (Continued)

Land use rights represent the prepaid lease payments
of leasehold interests in land under operating lease
arrangements which is classified as medium-term
lease other than those held to earn rentals and/or
for capital appreciation purpose and classified as
investment properties which is carried at fair value.

Leasehold land and buildings

The land and building elements of a lease of land and
building are considered separately for the purpose
of lease classification. Leasehold land which title is
not expected to pass to the lessee by the end of the
lease term is classified as an operating lease unless
the lease payments cannot be allocated reliably
between the land and building elements, in which
case, the entire contract is classified as a finance
lease. To the extent the allocation of the lease
payments can be made reliably, leasehold interests
in land are accounted for as land use rights except
for those that are classified and accounted for as
investment properties under the fair value model.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to the state-managed retirement benefit
schemes for staff in the People’s Republic of China,
excluding Hong Kong and Macau (the “PRC”),
and to the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme for
staff in Hong Kong are charged as expense when
employees have rendered service entitling them to
the contributions.
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—FENEFoASt—AULEE

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future, and
other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
end of the reporting period, that have a significant
risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year, are discussed below.

Estimated cash flows of the distressed assets
and investment in distressed assets through
establishment of a special purpose vehicle

As at 31 December 2009, the carrying amounts
of investment in distressed assets through
establishment of a special purpose vehicle
was HK$144,201,000 (2008: HK$148,247,000).
Determining the recoverability of investment in
distressed assets through establishment of a
special purpose vehicle requires an estimation of
the future cash flows, including cash inflows arising
from recoveries, disposal or collection, and cash
outflows arsing from directly attributable transaction
costs such as management fees. Where the actual
future net cash inflows are less than expected, an
impairment loss may arise. Where the actual future
net cash inflows are more than expected, a gain will
be recognised. Details of the investment in distressed
assets through establishment of a special purpose
vehicle are disclosed in note 27.

Fair value of investment properties

At the end of the reporting period, the Group’s
investment properties are stated at fair value of
HK$2,288,512,000 (2008: HK$2,188,262,000) based
on the valuation performed by an independent
qualified professional valuer. In determining the fair
value, the valuers have based on market value basis
which involves, inter-alia, certain estimates, including
comparable market transactions, appropriate
capitalisation rates and reversionary income
potential. In relying on the valuation, management
has exercised their judgment and is satisfied that the
method of valuation is reflective of the current market
conditions.
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4.

5a.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

Determination of fair value of structured finance
securities

The Group’s investment in structured finance
securities represent a debt security with interest
payments based on United States Treasury
Bond and distribution from preference shares in
a private company which invests in a portfolio
of asset-backed securities. The fair value of the
structured finance securities is determined by the
directors with reference to the valuation provided
by the counterparty financial institution. Details of
assumptions used to determine the quoted price by
the counterparty financial institution are set out in
note 24.

During the year ended 31 December 2009, the
Group had loss of HK$3,174,000 (2008: gain of
HK$1,715,000) from the change in fair value of the
structured finance securities.

Capital risk management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities
in the Group will be able to continue as a going
concern while maximising the return to shareholders
through the optimisation of the debt and equity
balance. The Group’s overall strategy remains
unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net
debt, which includes the borrowings, net of cash and
cash equivalents and equity attributable to owners
of the Company, comprising issued share capital,
reserves and retained profits.

The management of the Group reviews the capital
structure on a continuous basis taking into account
the cost of capital and the risk associated with the
capital. The Group will balance its overall capital
structure through new share issues and the issue of
new debt or the redemption of the existing debt.
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5b.

Financial instruments 5b. £ I E
Categories of financial instruments SRMIAZEA
The Group The Company
AEH ZRATF
2009 2008 2009 2008
“EZEAGF EEEYNGEN —ZTh 5 Eegits
RLCK N HK$'000 WGLREIOLI HK$'000
FET FET FET FAETL
Financial assets EMEE
FVTPL RIEEREARE
BRI
— Held-for-trading — BEEE 132,816 70,027 40,324 15,368
— Designated as FVTPL  — fEFEARERR
BARERE 9,042 12,216 9,042 12,216
Loans and receivables BN W R TE 3,042,446 2,283,802 3,395,320 3,366,916
Available-for-sale financial RIftHESRE E
assets 435,494 435,296 105,640 65,640
Financial liabilities SHMEE
FVTPL RIEEREARE
BRI
— Designated as FVTPL ~ — 38E AN EZR
AT R IR - 389,025 - 389,025
Amortised cost HSH RN 955,763 704,596 963,873 405,131
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5b. Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies

The Group’s and the Company’s major financial
instruments include structured finance securities,
available-for-sale investments, investment in
distressed asset through establishment of a special
purpose vehicle, held-for-trading investments,
amounts due from subsidiaries, associates and
jointly controlled entities, trade receivables, deposits
and other receivables, loan receivables, bank
balances and cash, trade payables, other payables
and accrued charges, amount due to an associate,
amounts due to subsidiaries, borrowings and
convertible note at fair value through profit or loss.
The risks associated with these financial instruments
and the policies on how to mitigate these risks
are set out below. The management manages and
monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate
measures are implemented on a timely and effective
manner.

There has been no significant change to the Group’s
and the Company’s exposure to market risks or the
manner in which it manages and measures the risk
from prior year.

Market risks
Interest rate risk management

The Group’s fair value interest rate risk as at 31
December 2009 relates primarily to its fixed-rate PRC
government bonds, fixed-rate amounts due from
jointly controlled entities, fixed-rate loan receivables
and fixed-rate other payable. The Group’s fair value
interest rate risk as at 31 December 2008 related
primarily to its fixed-rate PRC government bonds,
fixed-rate amounts due from associates and jointly
controlled entities, fixed-rate loan receivables,
fixed-rate other payable, fixed rate borrowings and
convertible note. The Company’s fair value interest
rate risk as at 31 December 2009 relates primarily
to its amounts due from subsidiaries and jointly
controlled entities and fixed-rate loan receivables.
The Company’s fair value interest rate risk as at 31
December 2008 relates primarily to its amounts due
from subsidiaries and jointly controlled entities and
convertible note.

5b.
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5b. Financial instruments (Continued)

Market risks (Continued)

Interest rate risk management (Continued)

The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk as at
31 December 2009 primarily relates to its bank
balances carried at prevailing deposit rate, floating-
rate borrowings and other payable to minority
shareholder of a subsidiary. The Group’s cash flow
interest rate risk as at 31 December 2008 primarily
related to its bank balances carried at prevailing
deposit rate, floating-rate borrowings and other
payable to minority shareholder of a subsidiary.
The Company’s cash-flow interest rate risk as at
31 December 2009 principally related to its bank
balances carried at prevailing deposit rate, amounts
due from subsidiaries and floating-rate borrowings.
The Company’s cash flow interest rate risk as at
31 December 2008 primarily relates to its bank
balances, amounts due from subsidiaries and
floating-rate borrowings.

The Group and the Company has not used any
interest rate swaps in order to mitigate its exposure
associated with fluctuations relating to interest cash
flows. However, the management monitors interest
rate exposure and will consider other necessary
actions when significant interest rate exposure is
anticipated. In addition, the Group has concentration
risk on its floating rate bank balances and borrowings
which expose the Group significantly towards the
change in the People’s Bank of China interest rate.

5b.
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5b. Financial instruments (Continued) 5b. &I E (&)
Market risks (Continued) SR ()
Interest rate risk management (Continued) FIERfEEE (&)
The sensitivity analyses below have been determined VAT B9 8RR 1 5 4T TH R R Z B F R 5t
based on the exposure to the floating-rate BHEE N EMENK T —REHER R
borrowings and other payable to minority shareholder ZDERRER - HRIF B ST E A FE UL
of a subsidiary, floating-rate amounts due from B R RIFIE RIZIZ N R BRIRTT4
subsidiaries and variable-rate bank balances at BRI NSRS BAR ) @ B LA R B S ) B
the end of the reporting period and the reasonably EMEEA LI B R EBEFE AN
possible change taking place at the beginning of BRI ENBRAEMG - EFERD
each year and held constant throughout the year. RIS IRIE R B LR B #1585
The directors remained using 150 basis points for R A50 B B LAERTIZ A L& R (SR 1T
assessing interest rate risk on the above balances REERERIN) BN R E R - ERLA10(Z
(except for bank balances) after considering the TENE  50) BREIEFT R RITTHE G2
impact of the volatile financial market conditions. MERE  EBRAZERIMERRITLE
The directors used 10 (2008: 50) basis points BREE B BN E o WA I R £l 4
for assessing interest rate risk on bank balances ERERTTAEERBRIN) HER 150 (ZZFEN
because they considered that the fluctuations on F150) B EA THRERI10EE
the interest rate on bank balances would be less —ETNFE 0EZMEF TR
significant. If interest rates had been 150 basis points RERITRARI REBH M — T E - HEF
(2008: 150 basis points) higher/lower for the above Nm AR EEZZEAT
balances (except for bank balances) and 10 basis
points (2008: 50 basis points) higher/lower for bank
balances and all other variables were held constant,
the potential effect on post-tax profit for the year is
as follows:
The Group The Company
REH PN
2009 2008 2009 2008
Lkl )\ Rl — T\
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FEr FET FET
Increase/decrease in post- #i0 (R4 EEBRTL
tax profit for the year S A (4,349) 613 907 2,689
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5b. Financial instruments (Continued)

Market risks (Continued)

Foreign currency risk management

As at 31 December 2008, the directors considered
that the Group’s and the Company’s exposure to
foreign currency risk is primarily arisen from the
amounts due from subsidiaries of HK$1,980,307,000
which were denominated in RMB, which were
not denominated in the functional currency of the
Company. After the Company changed its functional
currency from HKD to RMB during the year ended
31 December 2009, the Group’s and the Company’s
exposure to foreign currency risk is primarily
arisen from the amounts due from subsidiaries of
HK$422,762,000 which were denominated in HKD.

The major financial assets and liabilities of the
Group denominated in currencies other than the
functional currency of the respective group entities
are amounts due from jointly controlled entities, bank
balances and cash, loan receivables, borrowings
and convertible note. The major financial assets and
liabilities of the Company denominated in currencies
other than the Company’s functional currency are
amounts due from/(to) subsidiaries, amounts due
from jointly controlled entities, bank balances and
cash, loan receivables, borrowings and convertible
note. Other than the items stated above, the directors
consider that the Group’s exposure to foreign
currency exchange risk is insignificant as the majority
of the Group’s transactions are denominated in the
functional currency of each individual group entity.
The equivalent amount of HKD are set out below:

5b.

ERMITEE)
iRk (E)
SR R B RE

RZFEZENF+=-_A=+—H EFFR
BAE B RARFFIER AR RINE
bE = @ b 2 E AR 8 1,980,307,000 7
TZEREBRARIR HAARES
FTEEMN - MIENMEEBRETES
i » KRR ZZZENF+ZRA=+—
Hig BRENEEEKHRBEBEEAR
B RNEBRARQ R ZINE R R EAR
TREBNAE T RET B B2 422,762,000
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5b. Financial instruments (Continued) 5b. &R IE(#&)
Market risks (Continued) SR (Z)
Foreign currency risk management (Continued) SR R B (42 )
The Group The Company
AEE /N

2009 2008 2009 2008
L T T \F S — T T/\F
LLCH  HK$'000 EELEHIM HK$'000
TET FET TRET TET

Amounts due from JFE U Ff 8 A R /0B
subsidiaries
— HKD — BT - — 422,762 —
— RMB — AR - — — 1,980,307

— — 422,762 1,980,307

Amounts due from jointly — FEUR FEREHEHIA T ZE
controlled entities

— United States Dollars — XE7T 39,891 59,250 39,891 59,250
— RMB — AR - 3,824 - 3,824
39,891 63,074 39,891 63,074
Bank balances and cash RITHEBRIRE
— HKD — BT 871,379 1,754 464,323 —
— United States Dollars — X0 3,960 2,708 1,519 449
— RMB — AR - 13,535 — 18,586
875,339 17,997 465,842 13,984
Convertible note AR E R
— United States Dollars — X7 — 389,025 - 389,025
Loan receivables FEUE SR
— United States Dollars — XL 78,000 — 78,000 —
Amounts due to FERHIB AR ZIA
subsidiaries
— HKD — BT - — 6,992 —
— United States Dollars — =TT - — 687,887 —
- — 694,879 —
Borrowings BE

— HKD — BT 253,450 = 253,450 =
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5b. Financial instruments (Continued) 5b. &I E(#&)

Market risks (Continued)

Foreign currency risk management (Continued)

Basis of sensitivity analysis as at 31 December 2009:

During the year, the Company changed its functional
currency from HKD to RMB, sensitivity analysis
is prepared to demonstrate the effect of foreign
exchange differences by 10% change in exchange
rate of the functional currency against the relevant
foreign currencies of the Company and respective
subsidiaries, assuming all other variables were
held constant. A positive number below indicates
an increase in post-tax profit where the functional
currencies weaken 10% against the relevant
foreign currencies of the Company and respective
subsidiaries. For a 10% strengthening of the
functional currencies of the Company and respective
subsidiaries, there would be an equal and opposite
impact on the profit for the year.

miS ()

S EmEEEE ()

—ETNEFT A=+ —HZEERES
A E A

FA- REREBEDEEEREBEEA
R%  BREMAIZEZEFTE &
FEDITIB R G E AR F 285
B 88 2 B 4R 1 51 B R 2 10% B Y
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B G EAAREK B 2 RAENESS 10%
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5b. Financial instruments (Continued) 5b. &I E(#&)
Market risks (Continued) mERE(Z)
Foreign currency risk management (Continued) IR EEE ()
Basis of sensitivity analysis as at 31 December 2008: ZEENFTA=T—HABREIN
BE
Before the change in functional currency from HKD RERNEEERETEARK 2
to RMB, the directors considered that, as HKD is Al - EERABMNBITEITE N - A
pegged to United States dollars, the subsidiaries BLRNEEE 2WB AR T ERER
with HKD as functional currency are not subject BATHETHEXRZESMBRENZ
to significant foreign currency risk from change in SNEE B - Bt R B T BRETTIMNG
foreign exchange rate of HKD against United States H fth SN ) B SR BT BURRIE AT ©
dollars and hence only consider the sensitivity of HREBEMBRARILIEABTIENRE
the change in foreign exchange rate of HKD against BB B TIRITEROBBRE DT IRT
currencies other than United States dollars. The RN REBEBELIINEE - ASEm
sensitivity analysis for relevant subsidiaries with 52K E)  EEIA10% 1EFE(H I EE &L
functional currencies not denominated in HKD but % B /) o NILRBURE DTSR INEE &
having bank balances deposited in HKD are also Thee M TE B 10% « BRE%E M A] &
excluded as the amount is insignificant. As a result RE#@FIE AR KRG 2B
of the volatile financial market, the directors using NAIZEREZRERZFE - AT ZIE
10% for the purpose of assessing foreign currency FRTEARBIREBZWBARZY
risk. The sensitivity analysis below demonstrated BEE M N A EINE5510% M 5| BUEL &
the effect of the foreign exchange differences by sa FAE 0. FAINSE 10% AR 7 KA M
10% change in exchange rate of the functional BRR M ERR - HEHAFE 2R
currencies against the relevant foreign currencies of FIFERARRER 2 ZE -
the Company and respective subsidiaries, assuming
all other variables were held constant. A positive
number below indicates an increase in post-tax profit
where the functional currencies weaken 10% against
the relevant foreign currencies of the Company and
respective subsidiaries. For a 10% strengthening
of the functional currencies of the Company and
respective subsidiaries, there would be an equal and
opposite impact on the profit for the year.
The Group The Company
rEH AT
2009 2008 2009 2008
“EEANG EERYNCEN —ETNF il
HK$’°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FEIT

Profit or loss — post-tax v A 2k B 18 46,766 199,978 5,817 199,767
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5b. &I E(#&)

5b. Financial instruments (Continued)

Market risks (Continued)

Price risk management

Equity and debt investments

As at 31 December 2009 and 2008, the Group is
exposed to equity securities price risk through its
available-for-sale equity investments and held-for-
trading investments and debt securities price risk
through its investments in PRC government bonds.
In addition, as at 31 December 2008, the Group
was exposed to security price risk in respect of
the conversion option embedded in the convertible
note which allows the note holder to convert to the
Company’s ordinary shares. However, sensitivity
analysis in relation to the impact on fair value of the
embedded option due to change in Company’s share
price and share price volatility is not presented as
the entire convertible note was redeemed during the
year. For available-for-sale investments measured at
cost less impairment, as the fair value could not be
measured reliably, they have not been included in the
sensitivity analysis.

miS ()

B EZmE

AR EERE

RZZEZNFR_ZTEZENF+ A
=+—H  AEBREAH L ERER
BERFBEEERERBERAEENRTE
BT 2 EREFNER R R EEERRAE
HERRR - B RZEEN\E+=
A=+—8  XEBETHEELFERR
% 1 THIR S R A T HRAR 32 8 A SR AR
AT EBFE ABBRAR AT @R
%o AR - BRARRRDERES &
A% 1 808 B 1 T 2 # A R IR AR 2 A 7
ENFRESITEMA TRREER A
FWREERMARTE2H - UKATRKR
WETRAAHEERE  BREAR
BETREAEHERE  WETEERHE
EAWMET -
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5b. Financial instruments (Continued) 5b.

Market risks (Continued)

Price risk management (Continued)

Equity and debt investments (Continued)

The sensitivity analysis below have been determined
based on the exposure to equity and debt price
risks at end of the reporting period. If the prices of
the respective available-for-sale equity investments
in listed equity securities and held-for-trading
investments had been 10% (2008: 10%) higher/lower,
assuming all other variables were held constant, the
impact to the Group and the Company would be:

ERMITEE)

miS ()

Bk mpREE (E)

REREBERE (&)

THBREDTIRRARERRZ
BARERERRARMET - HEHH
L RRANE 7 2 AT AR R A R
EEERE 2 ERE MR 10% (=
ZZNF 10%) - BREMHAAAE
AEAERFIE  YAEERANRAFNE

BB US S B -
aKet :

The Group The Company
REH VNN
2009 2008 2009 2008
b3 Yl T )\F Rl T T )\F
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FEIT FET FEIT
Held-for-trading HIEEBKE:
investments:
Increase/decrease in post- EJE R % Al
tax profit for the year En,m 13,282 7,003 4,032 1,637
Available-for-sale AHHERE:
investments:
Increase/decrease in other Fr#i1& Hith 2 ) F1E
comprehensive income R (ZEZEN
(net of tax) (2008: F  FRBRTE R
Increase/decrease in #h0, /)
post-tax profit for the
year) 425 4,881 = =

10% (2008: 10%) change in equity and debt
investment price represents the directors’
assessment of the reasonably possible change in
equity price.

10% (ZZZ)\F : 10%) RARAS K2 (&4
KA BERRKRESHE RGBS AT AE
RS EEH o
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5b. Financial instruments (Continued) 5b. &I E(#&)

Market risks (Continued)

Price risk management (Continued)

Equity and debt investments (Continued)

As at 31 December 2009 and 2008, the Group is
exposed to concentration risk on the available-for-
sale investment in listed equity securities and held-
for-trading investments as they comprise equity
shares issued by several companies listed on the
Stock Exchange (2008: New York Stock Exchange
and the Stock Exchange).

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by the management
to finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the
effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The management
monitors the utilisation of bank borrowings and
ensures compliance with loan covenants.

Liquidity tables

The following table details the Group’s and the
Company’s remaining contractual maturity for its
non-derivative financial liabilities based on the agreed
repayment terms. The table has been drawn up
based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial
liabilities based on the earliest date on which the
Group and the Company can be required to pay. The
table includes both interest and principal cash flows.
To the extent that interest flows are floating rate, the
undiscounted amount is derived from existing interest
rate at the end of the reporting period.

miS ()

Bk mpREE (E)

REREBERE (&)

R-TBAER-FENET-A
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BB o FXFIRE T AR
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TE\E BT PRI ) °

REBE S @S

REERDECRAR  AREERL#
FEEERRZ —EKFNESRES
FEEHRAmEEEZERRERRES
MEBERTE BEEERRITERK
B AR IR LA AR <7 B ARG
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5b. Financial instruments (Continued) 5b. &I E(#&)
Liquidity risk (Continued) RBESEE(E)
Liquidity tables (Continued) TEELIZ (&)
The Group REE
Total
undiscounted
Less than 6 months More than cashflow Carrying
6 months to 1 year 1-2 years 2-5 years 5 years KB value

SRAER AMERE-F -EmE ZERE BBEE  RERAR RHEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET AT &L AL T&r AL

As at 31 December REEBNETZR

2009 =t-H
Trade payables R 99,200 - - - - 99,200 99,200
Other payebles EfpEfih 368,985 - - - - 368,985 368,985
Amount due to Er—-ABEATR
an associate 22,789 - - - - 22,789 22,789
Borrowings s 97123 95,663 188,616 100,588 10,160 492,150 464,789
588,097 95,663 188,616 100,588 10,160 983,124 955,763
As at 31 December RZBENETZR
2008 =t-A
Trade payables EfiE 113,833 = = = = 113,833 113,833
Other payebles EfffEfizn 192,164 - - - - 192,164 192,164
Amount due to an JEf—fmE Al
associate 13,500 - - - - 13,500 13,500
Borrowings A& 36,049 318,356 28,088 11,337 13,430 407,060 385,099
Convertible note (Note) — EERER (#/2) 389,025 - - - - 389,025 389,025

744,571 318,356 28,088 11,337 13,430 1,115,782 1,093,621
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5b. Financial instruments (Continued)

5b. &I E(#&)

Liquidity risk (Continued) RBESEE(E)
Liquidity tables (Continued) TEELIZ (&)
The Company RAF
Total
undiscounted
Less than 6 6 months cashflow Carrying
months to 1 year 1-2 years 2-5 years FEB value
SWAMER AMiAZ-§ —-ZWE ZEERE SHEE BEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEr AT AT TET AT FEr
As at 31 December 2000  R=FFAE+=A
=t+-A
Other payebles EthERF 15,544 - - - 15,544 15,544
Amounts due to subsidiaries  ERHEBAT: 694,879 - - - 694,879 694,879
Borrowings B8 53,335 52,792 104,468 52,296 262,891 253,450
763,758 52,192 104,468 52,296 973,314 963,873
As at 31 December 2008  R=FENF+=A
=t+-A
Other payables EAbfERF 1,208 - - - 1,208 1,208
Amount due to an associate  EREAAF 13,500 - = = 13,500 13,500
Amounts due to subsidiaries  [ER—RHBATR 385,823 = = = 385,823 385,823
Borrowings &8 699 699 1,335 2,547 5,280 4,600
Convertible note (Note) MAREE (H:2) 389,025 - - - 389,025 389,025
790,255 699 1,335 2,547 794,836 794,156
Note: HiaE -

As at 31 December 2008, the undiscounted cash flow of
convertible note is based on the actual redemption amount
as it has been fully redeemed during the year ended 31

December 2009.

The amounts included above for variable interest rate

instruments for non-derivative financial liabilities is

subject to change if changes in variable interest rates

differ to those estimates of interest rates determined

at the end of the reporting period.

RZZBZENFT_A=+—H  AJBERRE
MABARERRERNZRER —ETNEF
ToRA=tT—HZFAZHMER 2 ERED
SEATEM

B BFIEEAREHRAE 2 (5317
REZR U EIOTES A EZEF
X SBERKE -
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5b. Financial instruments (Continued)

Credit risk

The Group’s and Company’s maximum exposure
to credit risk in the event of the counterparties
failure to perform their obligations as at the end
of the reporting period in relation to each class of
recognised financial assets is the carrying amount
of those assets as stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position and Company’s
statement of financial position respectively. The
Group has significant concentration of credit risk in
respect of other receivables, especially for amounts
due from a buyer of the disposed associate of
HK$236,880,000 (2008: amount due from buyer
of the disposed subsidiaries of HK$165,620,000),
amounts due from two associates of HK$102,397,000
(2008: HK$982,626,000), amounts due from two
jointly controlled entities of HK$98,080,000 (2008:
HK$63,074,000), loan receivables from three
independent third parties of total HK$451,726,000
(2008: HK$79,790,000) and the cash collected
from distressed asset but not yet distributed (as
detailed in note 27) of HK$100,993,000 (2008:
HK$144,299,000). The Company has concentration
risk with respect to its amounts due from subsidiaries
of HK$2,287,967,000 (2008: HK$3,096,753,000)
which are mainly due from ten subsidiaries. In
order to minimise the credit risk, the Group and the
Company review the recoverable amount of each
individual debt and each major counterparty noted
in other receivables, associates and jointly controlled
entities, loan receivables and the cash collected from
distressed asset but not yet distributed throughout
the year to ensure that adequate impairment losses
are made for irrecoverable amounts at the end of
the reporting period. In this regard, the Group and
the Company consider that the Group’s and the
Company’s credit risk are significantly reduced.

5b.

ERMITEE)
EERR

RABRERR R IEFRERT
HEAMEBERAEBRAQF D HER
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R - RZEEED RRGE T BN
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EANGEEBESETRAR  LHEEEK
i & B & A 7] B R /9 5} 78 236,880,000
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J\4F : 982,626,000/% 7T ) * F& W R
F A H A 515K 98,080,000 T (=&
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B om(=Z & T N\ F :79,790,000) &
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M F£27) #9100,993,000/% (= &
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5b. Financial instruments (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

The Group has a concentration of credit risk on liquid
funds deposited with a few major banks. However,
the credit risk on ligquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are banks with good reputation.

The Group has exposure to credit risk in respect
to its investment in distressed assets through
establishment of a special purpose vehicle. The
underlying assets of the distressed assets are debts
that are either already in default, under bankruptcy
protection, or in distress and heading toward such
a condition. The collectivity of these debts might
affect the amount recoverable from the investment in
distressed assets through establishment of a special
purpose vehicle.

Fair value

The fair value of financial assets and financial
liabilities are determined as follows:

° the fair value of financial assets with standard
terms and conditions and traded on active
liquid markets are determined with reference to
quoted market bid prices;

° the fair value of structured finance securities
is determined with reference to the valuation
provided by the counterparty financial
institution. Major assumptions are stated in note
24;

° the fair value of other financial assets and
financial liabilities (excluding derivative
instruments) are determined in accordance
with generally accepted pricing models based
on discounted cash flow analysis using prices
or rates from observable current market
transactions as inputs; and

5b. &I E(#&)

FERBE)

AEBRESHFRNEREERITME
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5b. Financial instruments (Continued)

Fair value (Continueqd)

° the fair value of option-based derivative
instruments (as included in convertible note),
is estimated using option pricing model (the
Binomial model).

The directors consider that the carrying amounts
of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded
at amortised cost in the consolidated financial
statements approximate their fair values.

Fair value measurements recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position and
statement of financial position

The following table provides an analysis of financial
instruments that are measured subsequent to initial
recognition at fair value, grouped into Levels 1 to
3 based on the degree to which the fair value is
observable.

° Level 1 fair value measurements are those
derived from quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active market for identical assets or liabilities.

° Level 2 fair value measurements are those
derived from inputs other than quoted prices
included within Level 1 that are observable
for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as
prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

° Level 3 fair value measurements are those
derived from valuation techniques that include
inputs for the asset or liability that are not
based on observable market data (unobservable
inputs).

5b.

DAREGE)

NHIRASERNITETAEERZ

ATREEERARREEA)
AHARESHERE(—BRA) Mk

BEERANE KA LD E I TS
WMEMNEHEENEREEZREER
ez AR ERT -

DAEZFTEBRES BN R R
AR 2R R

T%%ET?& RAAREZEEDER
“HENERTA  HRERERR

LAT?)E%E%‘%E’]@/‘ME#E%TE :

s FHBHNAAREMEREBARN
AEMS ERRNEEXAEM
GRS RE CREHE)

e FIEWNAAEBENEREBTE
EEHENAREENEERR
B2 WEMEZ B (BER) RE
Ei (Bl ERSH)RENE

=
o

. —ENAREMERBEBR
QF%ELE’JF T FEAR 5 AT 17
BROMSEER (T REBRZE

B) Z FHE AT -



Annual Report 2009 4E i

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #& B s R Mz

For the year ended 31 December 2009
BE—FETNFL-A=+—HIFFE

5b. Financial instruments (Continued)

5b. &I E(#&)

Fair value measurements recognised in the

consolidated statement of financial position and

statement of financial position (Continued)

DAEZTEREEMBMRRERR B
MR RER (&)

The Group The Company
158 NG
31 December 2009 31 December 2009
“ESAFTA=T-A Z2ENETAZT-A
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
58 528 =8 a5 5-8 228 =8 k]
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
FE7 AT AT TET A7 TET TAT AT
Financial assets at FVTPL ~ WEHEZRALEEEN
SHEE
Structured finance BRUSHES
securities - - 9,042 9,042 - - 9,042 9,042
Non-derivative financial HEEERE 7 TE
assets held for trading SREE 132,816 - - 132,816 40,324 - - 40,324
Available-for-sale HESRER
financial assets
PRC government bonds HEE R 5,662 - - 5,662 - - - -
Total &% 138,478 - 9,042 147,520 40,324 - 9,042 49,366

There were no transfers between Level 1 and 2 in the

current year.

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements

of financial assets and financial liabilities

RAFWRAE—FRE _FHNE
oo

F-FEMEERTMABEZARER
ERE

The Group
and the Company
AEERAAT
Structured
finance  Convertible
securities note
it G
SRS REE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
At 1 January 2009 “ETNF—H-H 12,216 389,025
Total unrealised gains or losses: R W EBRSE
— Change in fair value of structured finance — REHSRES ANES
securities (3,174) —
Redemption of convertible note BEOTAREE = (389,025)
At 31 December 2009 RZZEZNE+-_A=1T—H 9,042 -

117
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Revenue and segment information

WAR D EBER

2009 2008
—zens [EEEIC
HK$’000 HK$°000
FE7 T

Revenue is analysed as follows: WADHIT:
Sales of petrochemical products BREIERBE
Property management fee income MEEEBERA

Income from investment in distressed

purpose vehicle

Rental income LA
ETEHFEREUMA

Dividend income from listed securities

74,668 45,662
139,000 147,068

BIBKTFRENFHEBRETR
assets through establishment of a special ~ &EZUA

45,866 39,993
65,821 54,431
3,910 1,132

329,265 288,286

The Group has adopted HKFRS 8 “Operating
segments” with effect from 1 January 2009. HKFRS
8 is a disclosure standard that requires operating
segments to be identified on the basis of internal
reports about components of the Group that are
regularly reviewed by the chief operating decision
maker, represented by the board of directors of the
Company for the propose of allocating resources
to segments and assessing their performance.
In contrast, the predecessor standard (HKAS 14
“Segment reporting”) required an entity to identify
two sets of segments (business and geographical)
using a risks and returns approach. In the past,
the Group’s primary reporting format was business
segment. The application of HKFRS 8 has not
resulted in a redesignation of the Group’s reportable
segments as compared with the primary reportable
segments determined in accordance with HKAS 14.
Nor has the adoption of HKFRS 8 changed the basis
of the measurement of segment profit or loss.

AEEBE-_TENEF A BHERAF
BB mEENERIELEN] - F
B BREENFEBHFE —WERER
EAAEEEBZZERRE(RERAR
AlZEER)ERENGERD K MF
HERI AT EMEM AR B AKX
2 NEREERBAIEED B2 E
# o MR REER(FESTERE
1455 D RE2 8 DR EBRBERARR K&
E#FIER D MBS B (EBRME) -
AEEBNREZTEER/RVAREE D
e BRBEEB G ENE14REE
ZEBERREDRELE - AT
BREEESRIBEHAER ST
AEREDE - WME B BHHREERE
85k 1& - T E D EBm A KB R 2 YW
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—EEANFT A= —HIEFE

Revenue and segment information (Continued)

The Group is currently organised into six operating
divisions: distressed assets business, investments
(including the results from held-for-trading
investments, available-for-sale investment, structured
finance securities and loan receivables), sales of
properties, property leasing, property management
and production and trading of petrochemical
products. These operating divisions are the basis of
the internal reports about components of the Group
that are regularly reviewed by chief operating decision
maker in order to allocate resources to segments and

to assess their performance.

WAR D EER (&)

AEERFHANELERHEK - TR
BEXRY REBESFEERE
AHEERE  ERUESRESFNIER
ERZEB) MEHE MEHE
MEEER AR ETEMEENMEE -
I EEERFIRARNEE T ELERR
EEREDBERD L RFFEERE
Fff T B B AN SR B - (B AR R BB 0 2 BB
WEE R R D P2

Segment revenues and results DERAREE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue INTRAEERAREEREEDERZ
and results by operating segments: ST
Year ended 31 December 2009
BE-EEAETCA=T-AL
Production
and trading of
Distressed petrochemical
assets Sales of Property Property products
business  Investments properties leasing management  FH{IER  Consolidated
TREEER IESE VES] LERHE S
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000
7% FEn 7R 7 71 FEr
Revenue WA 45,866 3,910 65,821 139,000 74,668 329,265
Results |
Segment profit (l0ss) AiaR (58) 36,945 108,726 (632) 76,107 13,178 (7,556) 226,768
Other unallocated income, gains and losses AfpRARMA bERER 131,716
Reversal of revaluation deficit of leasehold BENFEREEDE
properties 719
Corporate expenses LFER (35,839)
Finance costs HHER (24,470)
Gain on disposal of associates HEREDARLE 103,678
Share of results of associates EEBENIEE 36,497
Share of results of jointly controlled entities (RN 8,071
Proft before taxation Sy 453,540
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6.

Revenue and segment information (Continued) 6. WARDIER(E)
Year ended 31 December 2008
HETZRN\ET-A=t-AL
Production
and trading of
Distressed petrochemical
assets Sales of Property Property products
business  Investments properties leasing ~ management  AALIER  Consolidated
FREERH & NEHE IS NEER EEREE e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT TAT TAT AT TAT TAT AT
Revenue WA 39,998 1,132 - 54,431 147,068 45,662 288,286
Results E4
Segment profit (loss) AHEH (58) 33902 (50,443) (24.471) 6,208 11,547 (6,328) (29,495
Other unallocated income, gains and loses HM A W R 182,453
Revaluation deficit of leasehold properties EEVEERTT (19,141)
Loss on fair value change on convertblenote  REEREALERESRA
classified as financial liabilities at fair value HBAENTARES
through profit or loss LrEREEE (6,289)
Corporate expenses LFER (35,12)
Finance costs HHER (25,620)
Share of resuls of assoclates N 2472
Share of results of ointly controlled entities BIEAREHIATRE (2,426)
rofit before taxation iR 86,042
The accounting policies of the operating segments RSl e =t SR B RN E 7 M £ 3
are the same as the Group’s accounting policies et mE—3 - DEEMN(ER)E
described in note 3. Segment profit (loss) represents RO UREEENHYSELS Ig*,g*;qjem%]:
the results earned by each segment without mIsesivIBE ERERE 0 Hik
allocation of items which are not actively reviewed by SRR A - zmREE - BEkERE
the chief operating decision maker, including other TUASN Z R BT A - [ X U5 558 -
unallocated income, gains and losses, comprising ENTIE  BMELREZEBTFEN

interest income other than those from loan
receivables, net foreign exchange gain, net loss on
disposal of corporate property, plant and equipment
and certain miscellaneous unallocated income; and
share of results of associates and jointly controlled
entities. The unallocated corporate expenses,
finance costs, revaluation deficit or reversal of
revaluation deficit of leasehold properties used as the
Company’s head office, and loss on fair value change
on convertible note classified as financial liabilities
at FVTPL are not allocated into individual segment
as they are under central management. This is the
measure reported to the chief operating decision
maker for the purposes of resource allocation and
performance assessment.

RLR DAL FETERA KRB E A F] &
Hiﬂﬂﬂiﬁomﬁi N WNGIE=¢
CHISER  ARARIREZEEY
%Eﬁﬁﬁiiﬁﬁﬁ@%&%ﬁé%
EARBEREFEAVBAENIAK

EBR AR BEEEE  ERNPRERE
TWADEERBILDEL - BB RS
kD ERIBTEREZELERLESR
2T o
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6.

—EENF A=+ —HIFE
Revenue and segment information (Continued) 6. WARDIER(E)
Segment assets and liabilities PTHEEREE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets NTEASEEERABREE D IE
and liabilities by operating segments: DEIDHT
Production
and trading of
Distressed petrochemcial
assets Sales of Property Property products
business  Investments properties leasing  management  F#{tIER  Consolidated
TREEEK RE NEHE NERE WEER LERYE &a
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET AT AT FAT FAT AT FET
As at 31 December 2009 jome -3
t=R=1-H
Assets BE
Segment assets NBEE 144,201 1,029,856 41 2,308,706 29,205 21,7149 3,540,144
Property, plant and equipment nE BEREE 202,188
Interest in assoclates BENRER 132,951
Interest in jointly controlled entities RASSIAER 198,396
Amounts due from assoclates JENBE AR 102,397
Amounts due from jointly controlled entities ERLREHIATR 98,080
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables e BIFREHELR 244,044
Bank balances and cash KEBkRe 1,979,724
Consolidated assets GREE 6,497,924
Liabiliies B
Segment liabilities HHEE 197,508 23,144 844 98,355 161,100 300 481,246
Amount due to an associate ER-EREATR 22,189
Taxation payable RS 147,056
Deferred tax liabilities ELHRRE 103,497
Accrued charges, rental deposits and other R ER BHRER
payables EER 15,942
Borrowings [#E 464,789
Consolidated liabilities FREE 1,285,319
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6.

— ==

NFE+ZH=+—HIFE

Revenue and segment information (Continued)

6. WARDHERE)

Segment assets and liabilities (Continued) PEHEERERFE(E)
Production
and trading of
Distressed petrochemcial
assets Sales of Property Property products
business Investments properties leasing  management F#{tIER  Consolidated
TREERH %E S H ELENS NEER LERYE &8
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
i AT AT &z T Az TAL
As at 31 December 2008 REZENETZA=1-R
Assets BE
Segment assets PPEE 151,861 597,374 659 2,212,483 34,873 380,978 3,378,228
Property, plant and equipment % BEREE 174,089
Interest in associates BenmEs 783,991
Interest in jointly controlled entities HESHAARES 66,717
Amounts due from associates EUBERAR 982,626
Amount due from a jointly controlled entity EU-FAREHDEHN 63,074
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables 14 B Z R bR 169,041
Bank balance and cash ROEBRRS 792,376
Consolidated assets FREE 6,410,142
Liabilties &8
Seqment liabiies Ak - 10927 694 104,256 176,859 28,638 801574
Amount due to an associate Ef-ERENER 13,500
Taxation payable fEfHE 140,939
Deferred tax liabilties ERERERE 87,954
Borrowings - 385,099
Convertible note TARRR 389,025
Consolidated liabiliies GARE 1,338,091
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EiE

6.

—FENEFASt—AULEE

Revenue and segment information (Continued)

For the purposes of monitoring segment
performances and allocating resources between
segments:

° all assets are allocated to operating segments
other than interest in associates, interest in jointly
controlled entities, amounts due from associates
and amounts due from jointly controlled entities,
certain property, plant and equipment, certain
deposits, prepayments and other receivables and
bank balances and cash; and

° all liabilities are allocated to operating segments
other than amount due to an associate,
taxation payable, deferred tax liabilities, certain
accrued charges, deposits and other payables,
borrowings and convertible note.

The chief operating decision maker does not actively
review the results and operations of interest in
associates and interest in jointly controlled entities as
well as its amounts due from and to these entities.
The unallocated property, plant and equipment
represented by certain leasehold land and buildings
using as the Company’s Head Office and other
related fixed assets, other receivable represented by
consideration receivable for disposal of an associate
(2008: consideration receivable for disposal of
subsidiaries) and bank balances and cash, are not
allocated into individual segments as they are under
central management.

The chief operating decision maker does not review
the taxation payable and deferred tax liabilities while
liabilities such as borrowings and convertible note
were managed on a group basis.

6.

WAR T RBER ()
REESHBRARESE DR EE
R

s MBEERSETEEN I
K”?ﬁﬁﬁ%éﬂ?fﬁé' A2
DAL ERREERER &

Y SR 42 il Tm' ETWE-
MRt BTESE  ANMRK
&Eﬁﬂf‘% KARITRE R KRR

s HMARGBEHRAETREDT
T EERMN—EBE QAR
e BEEREBAE -
STER ReREMENT
ERABMRER -

= =

:F

% off i# o

B

-

|

TREERREWSLA T DR L
NEER - HREES QB &R E
NELERZEENEE - KDY
% BELE®RE  KKETARABE
ROHEE i R EF kA MAERREEE
E G HMEKRRARKREE-—BERRZ
EURRE(ZZZNEFE  HE—RHNEB
NAEIZEERE) RITEHRIEE
WERBDEEEDE - BZBAERKT
DECIEPREEREA

T“w Il Nﬁl
Mf‘i ﬁaﬁ il

TELERAREL R B RN ENREAR
BEEBIREE  MEBEWEERAIBRR
SEANEEEREIE -



Silver Grant International Industries Limited $R 2 BIFR B 25 R A 7

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #& B s R M=

For the year ended 31 December 2009
E_EENFAf A=, —HILFE

6. Revenue and segment information (Continued) 6. WARDIER(E)
Other segment information HihnBER
Production
and trading of
Distressed petrochemical
assets Sales of Property Property products
business Investments properties leasing  management RAtIER Unallocated ~ Consolidated
TREEXH k& ES NEAE NEER EEREE AFAE &4
HK§’000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$’000 HK$'000
iz F&r FEr Fér F&r FEr FEr &%

Year ended 31 December 2009  BZE-EFAFT-A=1-BLER
Amounts included in the measure of segment profit or loss or segment assets:

EENBENAERIN HAE L 8

Capital additions BARE

— property, plant and - 0% BERRE

equipment - - - 2,142 720 20 7021 9,909

Depreciaton i = - (242) (1701 (2,300) (125) (6,834) (11,202
Amortisation of land use rights ThERERS = = = = = (674) = (674)
Change in fair value of structured ~ £RBHEEZRC

finance securities DAERY = (3.174) - - - - - (3,174)
Interest income from loan BURETZHERA

receivables = 42,960 = = = = = 42,960
Change in fair value of BEEERENAEEY

held-for-trading investments - 48,548 - - - - - 48,548
Gain on disposal of LEMRHERERE

avallable-for-sale investments - 17,898 - - - - - 17,898

Change in fair value of investment ~ KANEAAEES

properties = = = 58,444 = = = 58,444
Net loss on disposal of property,  tENE HERRE
plant and equipment EEFETE = = = = (27) = (160) (187)

Amounts regularly provided to the chief operating decision maker but not included in the measure of segment profit or loss or segment assets:
BRI ERERRAM O B A DRI E RIS FEENSE:

Interest in associates Ly 38 - - 74,290 - - 30,009 31,652 182,951
Interest in jointly controlled entiies ~ £EFEI AT &S 5,180 = = = = 136,900 56,316 198,396
Share of results of associates BEBENRRE - - 2917 - - 30,009 3571 36,497
Share of results of jointly (P NG

controlled entities (7.794) - - - - 14,326 1,539 8,071
Gain (loss) on disposal of HERENRE

associates (58) - - 122,488 - - - (18.810) 103,678
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6. Revenue and segment information (Continued) 6. WARDIER(E)
Other segment information (Continued) HithpBER(E)
Production
and trading of
Distressed petrochemical
assets Sales of Property Property products
business Investments properties leasing  management RAtIER Unallocated ~ Consolidated
TREEXH RE VS NEEE nEER LERHE AFAR 58
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T F&r b7 F&r F&r 73 F&r &%
Year ended 31 December 2008~ BZ=SBN\F+=A=t-ALFE
Amounts included in the measure of segment profit or loss or segment assets:
ERABENIBRANPEE LR
Capital additions BARE
— property, plant and - 0% BERRE
equipment - - 3170 4,500 1,910 52,399 61,979
— investment properties - REnE - - 1,202 - - - 1,202
— land use rights - THERE - - - - 797 = 797
Depreciation e = (325) (1,398) (1,858) (1,937) (6,096) (11,614)
Impairment loss on deposits, f&d B REMELR
prepayment and other BEEE
receivables - (21,115) - - - - (21,115)
Impairment loss on available- HEARLERE
for-sale investments HERE (25,390) - - - - - 25,390)
Amortisation of land use rights ThERERS = = = = (46) = (46)
Change in fair value of GRteRER 0N
structured finance securities 29 1,715 - - - - - 1,715
Interest income from loan FURERZHERA
receivables 7,567 - - - - - 7,567
Interest income from structured ~ £EMEREAL
finance securities FISRA 1,320 - - - - - 1,320
Change in fair value of BEEERENAERY
held-for-trading investments (35,351) - - - - - (35,351)
Change in fair value of investment ~ RANEAAEEE
properties - - (20,130) - - - (20,130)
Net (loss) gain on disposal of i
property, plant and equipment Efz (BR) ha78 - (129) 16 (50) - - (163)
Amounts regularly provided to the chief operating decision maker but not included in the measure of segment profit or l0ss or segment assets:
BRI ERERRAN M O B AP RIERRADEEN £ R
Interest in associates BEDTER - 95,448 - - - 688,543 783,991
Interest in jointly controlled entities ~ RFEAIAFER - - - - - 53,744 66,717
Share of results of associates BIEBENEE - (3,879) - - - 26,351 20472
Share of results of jointly B ERRHATES
controlled entities = = = = = (1,813) (2,426)
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6.

Revenue and segment information (Continued) 6.

Information about major customers

There is no single customer contributing over 10%
of total revenue of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2009 and 2008.

Geographical information

The Group’s operations are located in the PRC and
Hong Kong. The Group’s revenue from external
customers is based on the location of the Group’s
operations to derive the revenue and information
about its non-current assets by geographical location
of the assets are detailed below:

WAR D EER (&)

IFREFHNESR

BE_ZTNER_TENFE+_A
=t BLEFEEREE-—EFRME
BB 2 10% °

1 35 & B

AEBZz2BMHRTEALEE A&
BHIMEEER ZRARERAEEZ
18 1 B DA RIS MR R 7% SRR B B E DA
I D EHERETIAT

Revenue Non-current assets
['ON FERBEE
(Note)
(Krat)

2009
—EEAF

HK$°000
FET

2008 2009 2008
—zz)\r EELICE —TT/\F
HK$'000 ELEKLI0) HK$’000
77 R T

Hong Kong BB 644 1,508 198,786 171,263
PRC R 328,621 286,778 2,678,057 3,368,385
329,265 288,286 2,876,843 3,539,648

Note: Non-current assets excluded financial instruments.
Revenue from major products and services
An analysis of the Group’s revenue from its major

products, investments and services is set out in note
6.

Hiat : ERDEETREEHMTE -

FEEMREREZBA

AEEEZER  RELRBEZWAD
HrE IR HIFEG ©



Annual Report 2009 3 127

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #& B s R M=

For the year ended 31 December 2009
BE—FETNFL-A=+—HIFFE

7. Other income, gains and losses 7. HaA > WEREER

2009 2008
—zzns BRI
HK$’000 HK$°000
7a7 TR

Interest income FLEMA
— bank deposits — RITER 8,815 9,951
— structured finance securities — BN RES = 1,320
— jointly controlled entity — HEZEH AR 1,711 2,717
— associates — BN 61,345 90,708
— loan receivables — EER 42,960 7,567
— others — Hftb 1,924 887
Commission income e WA 6,630 4,368
Net foreign exchange gain M 5 Uk 2 VKR 50,839 75,962
Net loss on disposal of property, plant and HEWE  FE R &G 2 EE
equipment FEE (187) (163)
Others Hfth 3,845 2,228
177,882 195,545
8. Finance costs 8. HMKEA
2009 2008
—EZhE eI
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Interest on bank borrowings RITEEFE
— wholly repayable within five years — BRAFANBEEER 18,065 15,246
— not wholly repayable within five years — BEARAFTRNBHEE 549 348
Interest on other loans wholly repayable ARAFRNBBEENEMBER
within five years AIpSS 5,856 3,698
Interest on convertible note classified as RIERXRANERBERER
financial liabilities at fair value through B aE 2 AR R EF 2
profit or loss - 6,228

24,470 25,620
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9.

Directors’ remuneration

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the
directors were as follows:

9. EEM=

ENRANTEESHMEMT

2009 2008
“EENE “3E)\E

Performance

MPF bhonus

Salariesand  contribution (Note iv)
Fees other benefits BEe ®ERA Total Total
e HERAMER it (i i) ] f%
Name of director EEp? HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FEr Fér FEr Fér FE7 AT
Chen Xiaozhou kR 500 - - - 500 500
Hui Xiao Bing B 500 - - - 500 500
Gao Jian Min BER 500 2,611 12 1,500 4,623 3,991

(Note i)
Wit i)

Liu Tianni BRR 400 - - - 400 400
Gu Jianguo BEd 400 - - - 400 400
Tang Baogi (note i BRE (Wit i) 400 - - - 400 400
Yuen Wing Shing =Y &) 300 - - - 300 300
Chow Kwok Wai R 400 1,112 12 1,050 2,574 2,403
Kang Dian A 400 - - - 400 400
Zhang Lu R 400 - - - 400 400
Hung Muk Ming SR 300 - - - 300 300
Chen Yongeun (note i ok (Wt i) - - - - - =
Total oz 4,500 3,128 24 2,550 10,797 9,994

No directors waived any emoluments in both years.

Notes:

(i) The amount includes the estimated value of quarter
provided amounting to approximately HK$935,000
(2008: HK$891,000).

(ii) Mr. Chen Yongcun resigned as director of the
Company on 27 February 2008.

(i) ~ Mr. Tang Baogqi was appointed as director of the
Company on 14 March 2008.

(iv) The performance related incentive payments are
determined having regard to the performance of
individuals and market trends.

RREFELREEETHEMS -

HiEE -

(i)

(ii)

(iv)

THRERRHEBEENHTEED
935,000/ 7L(= &= J\ 4 : 891,000

BIT) °

BKEFEEER-_ZSEZNF_A -+t

HEHIARRES -

BEREXER-_ZZNF=A+HEA

BEERARAES -

BMRMBEMZACATIRZE/MARE

KmiGBEREE
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10. Employees’ remuneration 10. EEM=E
The five highest paid individuals of the Group AEEBRAEERFALBEER(ZES
included two (2008: two) directors, details of NE:-MBESF BEHMESFE
whose emoluments are set out in note 9 above. The HHIN EXHF EBH=(=FZ N\
emoluments of the remaining three (2008: three) F:Z)BATHHESOT

individuals are as follows:

2009 2008
—zzns BRI
HK$’000 HK$°000
7a7 ST

Salaries and other benefits e Rk E At 2,155 2,544
Performance related incentive payments BRIFBEWN 2 RE 4,050 1,507
Retirement benefits costs RIRE AR 56 36

6,261 4,087
Their emoluments are within the following bands: BEHMEN T T 5@

Number of employees
EEAH

2009 2008

—sEnf [EEdCs

HK$500,001 to HK$1,000,000 500,001 7T21,000,0007# 7T - 1
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7T 21,500,000/ 7T 1 1
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 72 2,000,000/48 7T = 1
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001/87L%E2,500,000/ 7T 1 —
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,00187C%3,000,000/& 7T 1 =
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11. Taxation

11.

Bi1A

2009 2008
—zzns BRI
HK$°000

HK$’000
FAET TETT

Taxation charge (credit) comprises:

BEH (IRA) B :

Hong Kong Profits Tax BBMER 2,332 —
PRC Enterprise Income Tax R F TSR 25,465 12177
27,797 12177
Deferred taxation (Note 38) FEEHIE (Bt 38)
— current year — AFE 14,413 (7,073)
— attributable to change in tax rate — BB EREE S| - 86
14,413 (6,987)
Taxation charge attributable to the KAR R EK B AR B IE
Company and its subsidiaries S 42,210 5,190

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% (2008:
16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits for the
year ended 31 December 2009. No tax was payable
for the year ended 31 December 2008, as tax losses
were incurred for subsidiaries with operations in
Hong Kong.

The taxation charge of the PRC Enterprise Income
Tax for the year has been made based on the
Group’s estimated assessable profits calculated
in accordance with the relevant income tax laws
applicable to the subsidiaries in the PRC.

Under the Law of the People’s Republic of China
on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT Law”) and
Implementation Regulations of the EIT Law, the tax
rate of PRC subsidiaries is 25% from 1 January 2008
onwards.

EBFEHINEE_TETNF+ A
=+ — BB ERTREMNIZ16.5%
ZEZT)\F 1 16.5%)FTIR c BHEZE
ENE+-A=+—HIEE R E
B B A RSERIEBRMISE
FE RIS HL

FRZPBEEEMREHIIAKERF
Z M A R A R ET B FE SR BUE FIHRE A
AR BUEBIFHEMSZ BRI -

—ET ) N\F— A —BEPEARKLH
Bl RS BBOA ([ F0E D) RETFUE
BIENATIE AR 2 T AR BB B A R A eV B
E525% ©
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11.

Taxation (Continued)

11. BE(E)

The taxation charge for the year can be reconciled FNFIA S Al AR A W as 7= P R B AT
to the profit before taxation per the consolidated amAEERIT ¢

income statement as follows:

2009 2008

S PN )
HK$°000 HK$’000
FRT FET

Profit before taxation

BrEL A A 453,540 86,942

Taxation at the PRC Enterprise Income Tax

BEHBEEMEHRE25%

rate of 25% BIA 113,385 21,736
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for BB E SR A A5

tax purpose 2 4,702 11,038
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax LTS i B A SRR A IR 7S

purpose R (53,495) (21,509)
Tax effect of share of results of associates  E(GEF& AR E BN B L (9,124) (5,618)
Tax effect of share of results of jointly LRSI AR AR

controlled entities Mg 2 (2,018) 607
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RIERIEEENR ST E 227 8,853
Decrease in opening deferred tax asset HRAT R 5| B A FRR T

resulting from decrease in applicable tax FIEE B R D

rate - 86
Income tax exemption (Note) Fiefisne (M) (11,467) (9,998)
Taxation charge for the year FABIELZ L 42,210 5,190
Note: Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations in the Hiat - MEBERBEABERERER  BBAK

PRC, income from investment in distressed assets
through establishment of a special purpose vehicle

URHERENHBRETNREE 2
NETBERTECEMSHER

is not subject to PRC Enterprise Income Tax. ZA e
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11. Taxation (Continued)

The following is an analysis of the tax effect relating
to other comprehensive income:

2009
=
Before-tax

amount Tax expense
BRHAEH BB X
HK$°000 HK$°000
A7 A1

11. BE(E)

UTREBEMEEENHEBEEZEZD

o
2008
—TE)N\E
Net-of-tax Before-tax Net-of-tax
amount amount  Tax expense amount

BhkeE Il RBxh  BHEER
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FiEr TET TET TET

Exchange difference BEEEZER

arising on translation =5 40,503 - 40,503 52,702 - 52,702
Fair value change on MEHERE SR

revaluation of available- AL EE

for-sale investments 17,898 - 17,898 (111,455) - (111,455)
Reclassification B HE —

adjustment — EHERE

impairment loss on REEE

available-for-sale

investments - - = 25,390 - 25,390
Reclassification EE e

adjustment — transfer ~ HERAHE

to profit or loss on RERZES

disposal of available-for- &%

sale investments (17,898) - (17,898) - - -
Gain arising on BEAENE

revaluation of EE 7 W&

leasehold properties 21,237 (2,842) 18,395 7,007 (1,301) 5,706
Share of other EEBERRR

comprehensive income  HEFEAIAF

of associates and jointly ~ Et 2 ERF

controlled entities 9,046 - 9,046 (56,252) — (56,252)
Reclassification BHHE —

adjustments — transfer ~ HEBLR T

to profit or loss on fEzEak

disposal of associates (8,954) - (8,954) - - -

61,832 (2,842) 58,990 (82,608) (1,301) (83,909)
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12. Profit for the year

12. FRER

2009 2008
- -l — T )\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Profit for the year has been arrived at FREFLSHE (GTA) :
after charging (crediting):
Auditor’s remuneration % EX AN BN 2,095 2,190
Amortisation of land use rights o (55 PR A G 574 46
Depreciation e 11,202 11,614
Cost of inventories recognised as expenses 71F&EKAEAE A 77,371 47,351
Amortisation of other asset EL A 2 2 B — 1,371
Operating lease rentals in respect of land T REF 2 EEROES
and buildings 3,701 4,811
Staff costs including directors’ BTERBPEHIIAWTZ
remuneration set out in note 9 and the EEME RBRRERZ L
retirement benefit costs of HK$6,008,000 6,008,000/ 7T (ZZTF/)\F
(2008: HK$5,267,000) 5,267,000/ 7T) 92,599 87,019
Rental income under operating leases, 2EANZESKA HBRAX
less outgoings of HK$1,587,000 (2008: 1,587,000 7T (ZETNF
HK$2,195,000) 2,195,000/87T) (64,234) (52,236)
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13. Earnings per share 13. BRER
The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per RABEBABENERERNRESR
share attributable to the owners of the Company is MIHIRIE N Y BURET E TS

based on the following data:

2009 2008
—zzns BRI
HK$°000 HK$°000
szl AT

Earnings: &R :
Earnings for the purpose of basic earnings Bt EZREARZEF 2 2 F|
per share (profit for the year attributable (RRBHEE ANEEEAET)

to owners of the Company) 406,278 87,057
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares in AR A RZE B E#E L
respect of convertible note: Rz E
— finance costs waived upon redemption = — BIEERNEORERHE
(Note 37) (Hia 37) (648) —

Earnings for the purpose of diluted earnings AT ESREEET 2 827

per share 405,630 87,057
2009 2008
—EEhE —EE)\F
In thousand In thousand
Fr Fhg
Number of shares: BRAEE :
Weighted average number of shares for the RIAFHEFRERERN
purpose of basic earnings per share IIREFE R D 8RB 1,820,710 1,820,710
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares from  E7E#E @Ak 2 2
— convertible note — AREREE 19,396 =

Weighted average number of shares for the RIAFHEGREEEF]

purpose of diluted earnings per share e D& B 1,840,106 1,820,710
Note: The computation of diluted earnings per share for the Bfat - BATE 5 % &R FEE M-
year ended 31 December 2008 did not assume the BRAERE_ZEZENFT+ZA
conversion of the Company’s convertible note since =T —HZEREEANTRE R

its exercise would result in an increase in profit per RN B 2 AT RRER o

share.
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14. Dividend 14. A
2009 2008
- -l — T )\F
HK$°000 [EIEX00l]
FET FET
Dividend recognised as distribution during  FRERDIKAIALE
the year:
Final dividend of 2008, paid ZEEN\F2ENREAR SR
— HK$0.09 (2007: HK$0.08) 0.09%87C (ZEZ£4:0.08
per share BIT) 163,864 145,657

The final dividend of HK$0.1 (2008: HK$0.09)
per share and amounting to approximately
HK$218,485,000 (2008: HK$163,864,000) has been
proposed by the Board and is subject to approval by
the shareholders of the Company in the forthcoming
annual general meeting.

EEeERRNRBKREFR0BD
T(ZZEZTN\F : 0.0987T) ' RELEE
#9 7% 218,485,0008 TL(Z T T )\ £
163,864,000/ L) * HAFA R A Z
REREERRIAF RS L -

15. Investment properties 15. BEY =%
The Group The Company
rEE AN
2009 2008 2009 2008
b3 Yl T )\F Rl T T )\F
HK$°000 HK$’000 WL EHeJol0} HK$°000
FET TFET TFET T
Fair Value ARE
At the beginning RER
of the year 2,188,262 2,126,216 16,798 16,745
Exchange adjustment PE W% 41,806 82,035 - -
Additions )i - 1,202 — —
Disposals HE — (1,061) - -
Increase (decrease) in fair BREGARRZRIERZ
value recognised in the AaEEN Ol
consolidated income
statement 58,444 (20,130) 792 58
At the end of the year RER 2,288,512 2,188,262 17,590 16,798
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15. Investment properties (Continued)

At 31 December 2009, the legal titles of the Group’s
and the Company’s investment properties at carrying
value of approximately HK$17,590,000 (2008:
HK$16,798,000) situated in the PRC have not been
passed to the Group and the Company.

The carrying value of the investment properties
comprises:

The Group

15. REYXEE)

RZZEBEANFE+_A=+—H ' &
SERARANVRATEEEELY
A&17,590,000% (= & T )\ F
16,798,000 7T ) Ky I& & ¥ 2 2 £
ABEEAEBMEAAR -

BREWMEZREESE

The Company
AL RAT]

2009 2008 2009 2008

—t 2 AN —TT)\F S — T T)\F

HK$°000

HK$’000
FRET T TET T/8TT

HK$’000 HK$’000

Held under long term LARERFRAY, £ th{5 F
leases/land use rights: EHAEAE:
— situated in the PRC — R E 72,734 70,353 - —
Held under medium term  BLARRERFRAY,+ {F
leases/land use rights: EHAEE:
— situated in the PRC — RIAFRE 2,215,778 2,117,909 17,590 16,798
2,288,512 2,188,262 17,590 16,798

All the investment properties are held for rental

income under operating leases.

PIBIREMF AL ERORB (EWE
R -
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15.

Investment properties (Continued)

The fair value of the investment properties of the
Group and the Company at 31 December 2009
and 31 December 2008 have been arrived at on
the basis of a valuation carried out on that date by
Vigers Appraisal & Consulting Limited (“Vigers”),
an independent qualified professional valuer not
connected with the Group. Vigers are members
of the Institute of Valuers and have appropriate
qualifications and recent experience in the valuation
of similar properties in the relevant locations.
The valuation of the Group’s and the Company’s
investment properties was arrived at using direct
comparison method by reference to sales evidence
as available on the market and on the capitalisation
on the net income with due allowance for the
reversionary income and redevelopment potential,
where appropriate.

All the Group’s and the Company’s property interests
held under operating leases to earn rentals or for
capital appreciation purposes are measured using
the fair value model and are classified and accounted
for as investment properties.

15. REYXEE)

REBRARRMKEMER=SZTAN,
ER—EENF+-_A=+—HZAA
BEIERBRENEENTHERBRA A
([EA& AT ]) - — A ER 7N & B 30 4% A i
MBS B BEMERMEZBENEERE
EITRHEFTT o BUASHT 2 A ERT 2 & K
8 - WHEAEE B RN A R
2 HUMFEETHENLR - A&E
RARNE ZIZEYFREE 2T H T
REHELIBEE L2 RN EHEMNT IS R
REUE] 2 WA R EBEEE TR E R
BEAFTFWAREIGH E EF R
E=E o

FIBASERANGIAEERLN G
BRI E AR ER SN ST
RARBEEXNGE - WA B RIEAR
B o

137



Silver Grant International Industries Limited R 2 BIFR B 25 R A 7

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #& B sk R Mz

For the year ended 31 December 2009
—EEAFF At ALFE

EiE

16. Property, plant and equipment

16. % - BERRKRE

Leasehold
land and
buildings Leasehold  Furniture and Office Motor Plant and  Construction
HEL#H improvements fixtures equipment vehicles machinery in progress Total
REF HENEEE BRRE HAERR RE BERHRE ERIR &3
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT AT AT AT AT AT AT AT
The Group 15E
COST OR VALUATION  AiAfEEfE
At 1 January 2008 R=EZ)\E
-A-H 140,800 4,769 7,666 11,248 15,753 - - 180,236
Exchange adjustments ~ EX# 5% 256 - 213 3n 442 - - 1,283
Additions AE 51,744 - 5178 884 2,264 12 1,897 61,979
Acquisition of WEHBAR
subsidiaries (Note 43) (it 43) 15,120 - - 347 1,615 200,470 50,414 267,966
Disposals e g B (61) (391) (151) - - (1963)
Transfer 8= - - - - - (725) 725 -
Revaluation Bt (17,707) - - - - - - (17,707)
At 31 December 2008 R-ZENE
+-A=t-H 190,213 4,769 12,996 12,460 18,563 199,757 53,036 491,794
Exchange adjustments & 61 - 209 214 286 - - 770
Additions HE = 4,830 1,37 1,099 2,609 = = 9,909
Disposals ihe = (1.71) (2,225) (1,046) (419) - - (5,406)
Deemed disposal ofa ~ BRHE-FIHE
subsidiary (Note 44) A
(W 44) (14,616) - - (275) (672) (199.757) (53,036) (268,336)
Revaluation Bff 22,518 - - - - - - 22,518
At 31 December 2009 A-ZFENE
+-A=t-H 198,176 7,882 12,351 12,452 20,368 - - 251,229
Comprising: B
At cost ENAE - 7,882 12,351 12,452 20,368 - - 53,053
A professional B-ZENEY
valuation — 2009 B2t 198,176 - - - - - - 198,176
198,176 7882 12,361 12,452 20,368 - - 251,229
DEPRECIATION ik
At 1 January 2008 RZET)\E
-A-H - 4,452 4721 7457 7,260 - - 23,890
Exchange adjustments 3 5& - - 9 246 21 - - 552
Provided for the year FRER 5,730 317 510 851 2,427 1,779 - 11,614
Eliminated on disposals ~ HER - - 42) (873) (718) - = (1,133)
Eliminated on E 6
revaluation (5,573) = = = = = = (5,573)
At 31 December 2008 R-ZEN\E
T-A=1-H 167 4,769 5,284 8,181 9,180 1,179 - 29,350
Exchange adjustments ~ EXHE 1 - 61 140 145 - - 347
Provided for the year FEER 5,838 709 1,042 974 2,639 - - 11,202
Eliminated on disposals  HiERF - (1,717) (2,168) (1,000) (240) - - (5,125)
Eliminated on A b
revaluation (5,838) - - - - - - (5,838)
Deemed disposal ofa  BRHE-THE
subsidiary (Note 44) 27
(W3t 44) (90) - - (19) (17) (1,779) - (1,908)
At 31 December 2009  W-ZEhE
+-A=t-H 68 3,761 4219 8,276 1,707 - - 28,031
CARRYING VALUES FEE
At 31 December 2009 N-FEAE
+-A=t-H 198,108 412 8,182 4176 8,661 - - 223,198
At 31 December 2008 R-ZEN\E
R 190,056 - 7712 4219 9,383 197,978 53,036 462,444
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16. Property, plant and equipment (Continued) 16. Y% - BERREE)

Leasehold
land and
buildings Leasehold  Furniture and Office
HELH  improvements fixtures equipment  Motor vehicles Total
RkEF:  HENEEE R E WAERME e fit
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT AT A7 AT 27 AT
The Company O]
COST OR VALUATION HAHEGE
At 1 January 2008 R=F5\E-A-H 67,083 3,988 2121 911 3,028 77326
Additions HE - - - 12 = 12
Revaluation gt (3,225) = = = = (3,225)
At 31 December 2008 RZFENE2A
=1-f 64,058 3,988 2121 923 3023 74113
Additions & - - - - 495 495
Disposal L - (1,717) (2,121) (704) (418) (4,960)
Revaluation E 9,220 = = = - 9,220
At 31 December 2009 RZFENEFTZR
=1-f 73,278 2,071 = 219 3,100 78,868
Comprising: B
At cost A = 2,071 = 219 3,100 5,590
At professional valuation R-EENFr8%
— 2009 e 73,278 - - - - 73,278
73278 2,21 = 219 3100 78,868
DEPRECIATION it
At 1 January 2008 R=F5\E-A-H - 3,685 2121 664 12378 7843
Provided for the year EERE 2,310 303 = 81 212 2,906
Eliminated on revaluation EffRHH (2,310) = = = = (2,310)
At 31 December 2008 WZEENE2A
=1-f - 3,088 2121 745 1,585 8,439
Provided for the year FEER 2,243 - - 4 238 2,528
Eliminated on disposal HERHE = (1,717) 2,121) 650) (240) (4,728)
Eliminated on revaluation EffRHE (2,243) = = = = (2,243)
At 31 December 2009 RZTENFTR
==k = 2071 = 142 1,583 3,996
CARRYING VALUES BEE
At 31 December 2009 RZTENFTR
=1-A 73,278 - = 77 1517 74,872
At 31 December 2008 WZEENE2A
=1-A 64,058 -~ = 178 1438 65,674
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16. Property, plant and equipment (Continued) 16. Y% - BERREE)
The above items of property, plant and equipment LA W2 - BB R 2B E 2 Tt
are depreciated on a straight line over the following ZEMABEENE
years:
Leasehold land and buildings 50 years HETHREF 504
Leasehold improvements 3 years HEWMEEE 3
Furniture and fixtures 10 years RS 10 4F
Office equipment 5 years WAERNE 54
Plant and machinery 10 — 15 years R Kot 2% 10 — 154
Motor vehicles 6 — 10 years RE 6 — 104
At 31 December 2009, the legal titles of the RZEZENF+ZZA=+—H ' =K
Group’s and the Company’s properties with carrying SEERAARMUATEERESD A
value of approximately HK$24,879,000 (2008: #) 524,879,000 T(ZF T )\ F -
HK$38,284,000) and approximately HK$24,879,000 38,284,000 7T ) & 4 A& 24,879,000
(2008: HK$23,758,000) situated in the PRC have B (ZEZ /\F : 28,758,000 7T )
not been passed to the Group and the Company MYEFZEDARBPEREERAR
respectively. A] °
The carrying value of the leasehold properties HEMEZRAEBE
comprises:
The Group The Company
rEH RAF]
2009 2008 2009 2008
Lkl T )\ Rl — T\
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAET FET FET
Long term leasehold EEENRAEE
properties situated in L3
Hong Kong 161,700 141,250 48,400 40,300
Properties under medium  ZERRE bARR B+ b5 FR
term land use rights BRI
situated in the PRC 36,408 48,806 24,878 23,758
198,108 190,056 73,278 64,058
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16.

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

The fair value of the Group’s leasehold land and
buildings at 31 December 2009 and 2008 has been
arrived at on the basis of valuations carried out on
that date by Vigers and A-Plus Surveyors Limited
(“A-Plus”). The valuations were arrived at using direct
comparison method by reference to sales evidence
as available on the market. The revaluation surplus
on revaluation of the leasehold land and buildings
amounted to approximately HK$28,356,000 (2008:
revaluation deficit of approximately HK$12,134,000)
of which an amount of approximately HK$7,119,000
has been credited to the consolidated income
statement as reversal of impairment loss previously
recognised (2008: HK$19,141,000 had been
charged to the consolidated income statement as
revaluation deficit) and an amount of approximately
HK$21,237,000 (2008: HK$7,007,000) has been
credited to the asset revaluation reserve. Both Vigers
and A-Plus are independent qualified professional
valuers not connected with the Group, are members
of the Institute of Valuers, and have appropriate
qualifications and experiences in the valuation of
similar properties in the relevant locations.

Certain leasehold interest in land cannot be allocated
reliably between the land and buildings elements, the
leasehold interest in land continue to be accounted
for as property, plant and equipment.

16.

WX BERREE)

AREENHELTHEEFR_ZZAN
FR_ZEENF+_A=F+—HZA
REDERBETREEFENZMITE
RAR(MEEDHZBAEL 2 EE
FEEATE - REEENEREE B
K2REEMNTS A NSHNEE IR
MEE HELHWREFEHAFNF
¥ #728,356,0008 (=T T N\ F :
&= b B B 412,184,000/ T ) & F
#7,119,0008 L E MR R & W =
= /5 E fih DA T B8 2R 2 R B /&5 18 [B] 4%
(ZZZ )\ F :19,141,00078 7Tt E
BRRGEWRERIEAEREBRE) RS
#H #921,287,000% ;T(Z T T )\ F
7,007,000/ 7T ) E 5t A B E E i &
& o BARET RIEEMEE REALE I
EmEAENE LA EREEMERMT R A
HEMEENE  THEAEEERERY
FERAH B 2 B ST E A AL o

ETHEL RSBSOS
THREFED - Bl s HEERS
BEIIRRYE - BERRE -
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HE-FEAFF A=t FUFE
16. Property, plant and equipment (Continued) 16. Y% - BERREE)
If leasehold properties had not been revalued, they WEEMERTER  IZEWESIA
would have been included on a historical cost basis FE e AR AR B AEFIBR A0 TS
at the following amounts:
The The
Group Company
AEH RATE
HK$’000 HK$’000

17.

TETT TETT

COST S9N 162,145 38,848
Accumulated depreciation and impairment 2t E RIREERE
losses (61,177) (11,489)
CARRYING VALUE EEEE
At 31 December 2009 NZZEZNF+=H=1+—H 100,968 27,359
At 31 December 2008 RZEZENFE+—_A=1—H 121,170 29,602
Land use rights 17. L ERRE
The Group
KEH
HK$’000
FET
COST 2%
At 1 January 2008 R=ZFZTN\F—H—H —
Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 43) W B AR (B 43) 26,091
Additions NE 797
Amortised for the year EfT (46)
CARRYING VALUE BRTE{E
At 31 December 2008 WZEZENFE+—_A=+—H 26,842
Exchange adjustments E N T 517
Amortised for the year EfT (574)
At 31 December 2009 WZZEZNF+—H=1+—H 26,785

The land use rights of the Group are held under
medium-term lease in the PRC and amortised over

the term of the lease of 50 years.

Included in the balance was land use right
with carrying amount of HK$26,785,000 (2008:
HK$26,842,000) which was located in the PRC as at
31 December 2009. The Group was in the process of

obtaining the land use right certificates.

52

AERE 2 L (E RAERALN P BIA T H
HERBILIAHEEH 50 F#H -

R_BZANF+=-_A=+—HzLiE
FA#E 2 #4258 BR T {8 26,785,000 /8 7T (=
T )\ 4F : 26,842,000 JC ) =&AL 5 AR
o REBIEEFRE T (E AR 22



Annual Report 2009 4 i

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #& B sk R Mz

For the year ended 31 December 2009
BE—FETNFL-A=+—HIFFE

18. Goodwill 18. BHE
The Group
KEE
HK$’000
FET
COST B A
At 1 January 2008 R=ZFETN\F—H—H 38,525
Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 43) W B AR (Mt 43) 4,391
At 31 December 2008 R=FENF+=—H=1—8H 37,916
Deemed disposal of a subsidiary (Note 44) HBRIEE—RHEAR (At 44) (4,391)
At 31 December 2009 —ETNF+=—RA=1+—H 33,525
IMPAIRMENT RE
At 1 January 2008 and 31 December REZZBZENF—A—ARZZEZT/\FX
2008 and 2009 ZEENF+=A=1T—H 26,524
CARRYING VALUES AREIE
At 31 December 2009 REZZEZNF+=—A=1+—H 7,001
At 31 December 2008 RZZEZENF+_A=1+—8H 11,392

The carrying values of goodwill as at 31 December
2009 and 2008 allocated to the below CGUs:

R_ETZNFR_ZEZENF T+ A

Et—HSREATREELEM 2K

HEA :
The Group
REH
2009 2008
TEZAE s
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Property management (“Unit A”) YsEIE ([ERIAl) 7,001 7,001
Production and trading of petrochemcial Bt ITEREEREE
products (“Unit B”) (I¥EfzBl) = 4,391
7,001 11,392




Silver Grant International Industries Limited R 2 BIFR B 25 R A 7

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #& B sk R Mz

For the year ended 31 December 2009
BE—FETNFL-A=+—HIFFE

18.

19.

Goodwill (Continued)

The basis of the recoverable amounts of the
above Unit A and Unit B and the major underlying
assumptions are summarised below:

Unit A

The recoverable amount of Unit A has been
determined based on a value in use calculation.
That calculation uses cash flow projections based
on financial budgets approved by management
covering a five-year period based on estimated
growth rate of 3% (2008: 3%) with a discount rate
of 12% (2008: 12%). Cash flows for further five
years are extrapolated at zero growth rate. Another
key assumption for the value in use calculations is
the budgeted revenue and gross margin, which is
determined based on the unit’s past performance
and management’s expectations for the market
development.

In the opinion of the directors, there is no impairment
required as at the end of the reporting period.

Unit B

Goodwill was transferred to the cost of a jointly
controlled entity upon deemed disposal during the
year. Details of the deemed disposal are set out in

note 44.

Investments in subsidiaries and amounts
due from subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries

18.

19.

[k 1€ 2

BUAREMUBHNAKEEREIETE
AR REB A LA T -

BEfA

B AR B EE HEREREER
BET B AEREEEESZ
HEN3% (ZZEZNF : 3%)FHEEER
AFHBBEMSHIRESRIEN & 12%
(ZEZENEFE 12%)BRIR K- Hfg
FrHeRETATHRER - FHERA
MNE—EHEFEBRELABEVAREZF
Ko NEZEMNBEZRENEEEY
MHEEREZBHEE -

EERRRANAREHMRARERE

ZHE -
BB
RAFEBENRRALERSEE XA

THIARKAE - FRIEE ZFAB R
IR MIFE44 -

RERHE D 7R EWHE D TR

RERH B2 &

The Company
A F]

2009 2008

—sens [EEEIICE

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET

Unlisted shares, at cost JE MRS R ANME 224,591 169,713

Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries at 31
December 2009 are set out in note 52(a).

ARFANHBARAR-TRAF
TZA=+—HBZHFBHIRKE
52(a) °
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EiE

19.

CEFNFL A=+ —HIFFE
Investments in subsidiaries and amounts 19. RERHB AR REWKE QTR
due from subsidiaries (Continued) (&)
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEU R 2 a5

The Company

AT
2009 2008
—E2EEhE eI
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET
Non-current: FETED :
Non-interest bearing amount (Note i) BETESRE (Wit i) 744,265 796,217
Amount bearing interest at prevailing REBERIEERFE
Hong Kong prime lending rate B1.5%ETE S 58
minus 1.5% 64,874 —
Amount bearing fixed rate interest at R[E EFHZ3.8%5TE
3.8% per annum Gk 1,121,024 —
1,930,163 796,217
Current (Note ii): B (KT i)
Non-interest bearing amount BEESEE 177,829 339,043
Amount bearing interest at prevailing BB E R REERNE
Hong Kong prime lending rate 1.5%TE S5
minus 1.5% - 64,874
Amount bearing interest at prevailing REBERRESRFE
Hong Kong prime lending rate ATESEE 179,975 25,633
Amount bearing fixed interest rate at IZEE FHE3.8%TES 58
3.8% per annum — 1,870,986
357,804 2,300,536
2,287,967 3,096,753
Notes: HiaE
()  The principal amount of the amounts due from i) EHRKBAARZANEED

(ii)

subsidiaries is approximately HK$825,180,000 (2008:
HK$825,095,000) which are unsecured, non-interest
bearing and have no fixed repayment terms. In the
opinion of the directors, the amount will not be repaid
in the next 12 months from the end of the reporting
period and is discounted for three years (2008: one
year) using effective interest rate of 3.5% (2008: 3.5%)
per annum.

The amounts are unsecured and expected to realise
in the next 12 months from the end of the reporting
period.

825,180,000/ Jo(= T &T )\ £ :
825,095,000 70) BERT - 28K
REETERY EEEAREZE
BRAREHREN T ZEA AL
ERERU=ZF(ZZET)\F: —F)
ZEBEMNEIEN(ZTE )\ F:
3.5%)5TE o

(i) SB|ABERLBHARARSEHRR
TEARNFE -
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20. Interest in associates

20. BELQRES

The Group The Company
rEE RATF]
2009 2008 2009 2008
—EEAF EEEINGEN T T 5 Eegits
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FEIT FET FETT
Cost of investments in kN EC =)
associates PN
— unlisted — FEETH 107,019 632,246 20,000 20,000
Share of post acquisition B U B 1R 27 &
profits and other Hib2mEaH -
comprehensive income, HERE AR S
net of dividend received 25,932 151,745 - —
132,951 783,991 20,000 20,000
Particulars of the significant associates of the Group REBRARANEZBRE AR T
and the Company as at 31 December 2009 are set ENF+TZA=+—BZFEHIIRH

out in note 52(b).

s 52(b) e
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BE —ETNF+—_A=+—HIFFE

(i) The Group disposed of its 50% equity interest of
Cll to an independent third party for a consideration

of approximately HK$358,233,000 during the year.
In addition, according to the sales and purchase
agreement, Cll waived a receivable from the Group of
HK$150,000,000 as at the date of disposal. Net loss
of approximately HK$18,810,000 was recognised on
this disposal.

20. Interest in associates (Continued) 20. BENTRER(E)
The summarised financial information in respect of AEBEEHERNRZHEERHES
the Group’s significant associates is set out below: FIET
Cll Limited (‘ClI")  *REEEERHEHRY FEERLE AR (N
TEERRERRAF ([FE]) ARAR ([EREE]) BRAF RlERAR
2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008
b “TT)\C EEERba CTT)\F Eebijbal —T7)\F Eetljkal —3T)\F
HK$'000 WGICKOM HKS'000 WGICKMN HKS'000 WGICKM HKS'000 [EEKN0
A AT FAT AT A AT FAT AT
(Note i) (Note ii) (Note iii) (Note iif)
(/‘%7‘ i:‘l"/) (/%7‘ ﬂ?//) ( W E //I) ( /7]11; i)
Consolidated statement of GREBRNE
financial position
Non-current assets ERBAE - 502,980 - 700 296,673 115,755 230,201 276,783
Current assets THEE - 849,398 - 1114884 21,382 333,810 334,256 140,019
Current izbltes rHaE - (35769 - (992371)  (80421)  (226007)  (434139)  (477.908)
Non-current liabilities FRBaE - - - - - - -
Equity attributable to owners of the ~ BEARRARE ABIRA
associates - 1316,613 - 123,213 237,634 223,558 130,318 (61,106)
Group's share of net assets of the  EEE{EBRANTEEEFE
associates - 658,307 - 21,871 71,290 67,067 30,009 -
Consolidated income statement ~ HAKERRGA2ELER
and consolidated statement
of comprehensive income
Revenue WA - 2134 - - - - 3,094,726 4,058,499
Profit (loss| for the year attributable  BA& AREAR AE(HERET
to owners of the associates (B8) B 46936 (1870) (7749 11,133 135 192,600  (138,853)
Other comprehensive income Eiy2mas 14,177 (111,686) - 5,405 4,218 8,318 - -
Group’s share of profit (loss) and ~ ASEE(TEEAREFRET
other comprehensive income of (Bi8) R2E&H
the associates for the year 7,280 (32,375) (423) (2,656) 4,623 2,896 30,009 -
Notes: HieE -

i) RAEFEFELXAEBNURED
358,233,000 L HEE R H 2

0% AEE T —BILFE=77 - ik
Sh REBEHERBERZE  PER
& B A % & 47K % [E 150,000,000
B - 2L ERIBERFROR
18,810,000/ 7T °

147
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20. Interest in associates (Continued)

21.

Notes: (Continued)

(i)

(ifi)

The Group disposed of its 22.62% equity interests
of ZAHTF to an independent third party for a
consideration of approximately HK$152,343,000. Gain
of approximately HK$122,488,000 was recognised on
this disposal. The consideration for the disposal was
determined after arm’s length negotiation between
the Group and the purchaser and having taken into
account the potential of the development project &

Ek

For the year ended 31 December 2008, the
unrecognised share of losses and the accumulated
unrecognised share of losses were approximately
HK$31,974,000. For the year ended 31 December
2009, the unrecognised share of losses and the
accumulated unrecognised share of losses were nil as
this associate has generated a profit which can cover
all the accumulated unrecognised share of losses in
prior year.

Interest in jointly controlled entities

20. BENTER(E)

Wit - (&)

(i)

(ii)

7N DA R (B 49 152,343,000 7T H
EHENELRAFEZ22.62% K ARz
F—BIFE=F  ZHEERRED
122,488,000 7T ° HEZRETY
ERAEBREFRIZAFRANEREZ
TEEERBEEECETZENE
g( °

HE_TTENF+_A=+—H1
FR - RAERZBEEBER R RTE
R 2 # k518 5 31,974,00078 TT °
HE-_TTNF+-A=+—HLHF
R RERZEMBERRTAER
ZEEEEAE  RARBLRRIELE
BF A E A Rt AR MR Z AR E
EE(EEIE o

21. HEEHAREDS

The Group The Company
AEH /NG|
2009 2008 2009 2008
Yl )\ ekl T\
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FAETT FAET FAETT FET
Cost of investments in RERZEHATIRE
jointly controlled entities AR
— unlisted — JEET 203,236 81,874 26,318 26,318
Share of post-acquisition BHH U ERR B 1R &
loss and other HAb 2 & F
comprehensive income (4,840) (15,157) - —
Impairment loss recognised T HERRIEE 2 - — (21,138) (13,345)
198,396 66,717 5,180 12,973

Particulars of the jointly controlled entities as at 31
December 2009 are set out in note 52(c).

HAZFHIXARZZTZAF+ A

=+ —HZFBEHIRKIFES2(c)
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21.

Interest in jointly controlled entities (Continued)

The summarised financial information in respect of
the jointly controlled entities which is accounted for
using the equity method in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements is set out below:

Platinum One Limited

2009 2008

S il -
HK$’000 HK$’000
77

21. HEEHATESE)

BARAEEEEMBRERAERES
B EZER ARz BEHESHH 0
-

Tai Zhou United
East Petrochemical
Company Limited
EMRECTERAT
(“TZ United East”)
(TRMNEE]) MNENRBEXERAR
2009 2008 2009 2008
LSk T\ Wl —TT)\F
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET

Statement of MR &

financial position
Non-current assets ~ JERBEE - - 125,899 - 12,530 2,625
Current assets mEEE 46,963 77,252 52,595 - 88,194 51,219
Current liabilities mEaE (41,783) (64,279) (40,721) - (43,665) (100)
Non-current liabilities 3EREIA(E - = (873) - = -
Minority interests DY R R ER - - - = (743) -
Group’s share of net  AEE LR

assets of jointly B ARF

controlled entities BE 5,180 12,973 136,900 — 56,316 53,744
Income statement WHEERZME

and statement of  WER

comprehensive

income
Income recognised in U ARBER

profit or loss R 1,438 3,080 276,541 — 44,500 111
Expenses recognised ERRERE

in profit or loss ER (9,232) (3,693) (262,215) — (42,961) (1,924)
Other comprehensive  Hfti 2 E %7l

income - = 2,280 = (34) -
Group's share REB (G LR

of (loss) profit PESIARIER

and other (B8 &7l

comprehensive REAMEH

income of jointly il

controlled entities

for the year (7,794) (613) 16,606 _ 1,505 (1,813)

Note: Due to the change in memorandum and articles of
association of TZ United East, the Group lost control
over TZ United East and hence TZ United East was
regarded as a jointly controlled entity during the
current year. Details of the deemed disposal are set
out in note 44.

Hret : RAER  ARFMERBEETHA
AIERHRES AEELXEHZ
REZEHIRE - FZ R RRAE
M RERAEE 2 FLREH D
A - AAZREHEZFEBEEHRIR
BaE44
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22. Amounts due from associates 22, FEUEEE DRI
The Group The Company
AEH AT

2009 2008 2009 2008
bRl — T T )\F bRl — T T\ F
HK$°000 HK$'000 €Nl HK$°000
FET FAET FET FET
Current (note i) BUER (ffat i) - 742,537 - =
Current (note ii) BUER (HfaZ i) 102,397 240,089 18,007 —
102,397 982,626 18,007 —

Notes: Wizt :

23.

(i)

(ii)

The amount was unsecured, bore fixed interest at
12.5% per annum and was expected to realise in the
next 12 months from 31 December 2008.

The amount is unsecured, interest-free and is
expected to realise in the next 12 months from the
end of the reporting period.

() HEBRMIEM . N12.5%E T F
kst e RESR =TT N\E+ = A
=t-Agt-EANEHEE -

(i) ZEBAA/EEM 2B REHNAR
EHMRR T _EANSEE -

Amounts due from jointly controlled entities 23. FEWHEES D ERK
The Group The Company
AEE PN
2009 2008 2009 2008
b3yl T )\F Rl T\ &
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET
Current (note i) BOER (H77E i) 37,050 57,263 37,050 57,263
Current (note ii) BER (H7F i) 61,030 5,811 6,665 5,811
98,080 63,074 43,715 63,074
Notes: Kt -

The amount is unsecured, bears fixed interest at 4%
(2008: 4%) per annum and is expected to realise in
the next 12 months from the end of the reporting
period.

The amounts are unsecured, interest-free and
expected to realise in the next 12 months from the
end of the reporting period.

() ZEBEREERM U4%(ZEZN
F:4%) BIEFMEGFERBHRA
BRERRRT —_EAANSERE -

(i) ZEeBREER LERBEHNAR
EMRET_EARNSEE -
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24. Structured finance securities

The Group and the Company

The structured finance securities represent a
debt security with interest payments based on
United States Treasury bond and distribution from
preference shares in a private company which
invests in a portfolio of asset-backed securities. The
structured finance securities contain an embedded
early redemption option and the return is determined
by reference to the distribution from the private
company which is dependent on the annual default
rate of its underlying asset-backed securities. The
Group designated the entire structured finance
securities as financial assets at FVTPL at initial
recognition.

The fair value of the structured finance securities is
determined by the directors with reference to the
valuation provided by the counterparty at the end of
the reporting period. This quoted price is determined
by reference to the value of a comparable new issue
of the similar structured finance securities under the
market situation as at 31 December 2009 and 2008.
The major assumptions adopted for the valuation of
the structured finance securities are as follows:

(1)  The estimation of risk free rate by reference to
the yield of United States Treasury Bond with
same remaining duration as the structured
finance securities adjusted by the issuer’s credit
rating; and

(2) The estimation of the default rate of the
underlying asset-backed securities by reference
to the historical default rate of asset-backed
securities with similar characteristics.

24.

FRMETRES
REBERAQT

BRUESRESEEBES - HAER
BIREBEXBEBEESMRE —FKLA
REMBEBMD Z D IKAE - ZALARE
BRER—HEERERES - ARGB T
T RS AR B [ 4 K [ R PA LA
RNE 2D TORE L HORT K AERE & E R
REFZFROE  AEERENERE
HERESFNERERRERRNER
REANERENEREE -

RABREHR  BBESRESFHOLIA
BNHEFE2RXZUYTFHFEME
o %o MERINIBERER -FFN
RZZBZENF+ZA=1T—BHOMEHR
AT BEITAHEENELUEEB LS R
ErZ BEMGFEL EBESRES
WEERANATEIZ2RRMEE

(1) BAEERBRENXIIZREAET
AZEEFREABREBELESR
EFHERRGERZERERE
HFZWRERELGEE Rk

R FAHEERRBFIFERHOXT
2REERUFMEZEERERE
HFZBEFEORFELMGESR -
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25. Available-for-sale investments 25. AHHERSE

Available-for-sale investments as at the end of the A ERERANRERREE R
reporting period comprise:

The Group The Company
R EE AT
2009 2008 2009 2008
= 2SI )\ F Rl T T\
HK$°000 HK$'000 WLEXIl0) HK$°000
FET FET FET FETT

Listed equity securities, ETRAES -

at fair value (note i) BRARE (M) - 48,812 - —
PRC government bonds, at BB fFES

fair value BAR 5,662 5,556 = =

Total investments, at fair #@RE B ARE

value 5,662 54,368 — —
Unlisted investments FELEMRE
(note ii): (BteF ii) -
Unlisted equity securities, JEETIRAE S
at cost % AN 426,929 380,858 105,570 65,570
Club debentures, at cost SES  BKA 4,973 2,140 2,140 2,140
431,902 382,998 107,710 67,710
Less: Impairment loss R EMERIBEESE
recognised (2,070) (2,070) (2,070) (2,070)

Total investments, at G BRI
cost 429,832 380,928 105,640 65,640

Total &5t 435,494 435,296 105,640 65,640

Analysed for reporting HMERENINE:
purposes as:
Current (note iii) B (H1EE i) - 121,277 - 63,500
Non-current JERED 435,494 314,019 105,640 2,140

435,494 435,296 105,640 65,640
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25. Available-for-sale investments

(Continued)
Notes:

(i) Listed equity securities were not listed in Hong
Kong.

(ii) Unlisted investments represent investments
in unlisted equity securities and debentures
issued by private entities. The business of these
companies include, but not limited to, power,
banking, financial services and information
technology. They are measured at cost less
impairment at the end of reporting period
because the range of reasonable fair value
estimates is so significant that the directors are
of the opinion that their fair values cannot be
measured reliably.

(iiiy It comprised of the unlisted equity securities
that the directors intended to dispose of within
12 months after the end of reporting period
and were classified as current assets as at 31
December 2008.

26. Loan receivables

25. AIHHERE(E)

w3z -
() LEERABELTRAES LW -

(i) FEEMREDIERERHLAERE
TZIELMBEAEBESZRES - ZED
EZEBBREETRRESN - #17 -
& B RTS R B BHRITR - AT
EMAaERAEBEAKN  EXE
SARBEARBEEATSEG;E
It 7% S 4% A Th A e HR AR DA B AR H1 B
RERTE e

(i) SEEFTERBREWRE T @A
MEERR-BBNE+=A=+—
AERARDRENE LTRER

26. EWER

The Group The Company
AEH PN
2009 2008 2009 2008
“EENG pEEEYlGEl — T T 5 s
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET
Fixed-rate loan receivables & &R ER
(Note) (K13£) 451,726 79,790 417,751 —
Analysed for reporting DLE2RENSWOT:
purposes as:
Current map 111,975 79,790 78,000 —
Non-current JEMED 339,751 — 339,751 =
451,726 79,790 417,751 —

Note: The fixed-rate loan receivables are secured,
carry fixed interest at a range of 6.1% to
12% (2008: 20%) per annum.

Loan receivables as at the end of the reporting
period are neither past due nor impaired. The
Group did not provide impairment loss for loan
receivables. In the opinion of the directors, no
impairment loss is considered necessary in
respect of these balances.

Bt : TEREWRERBEERA  LL6.1%

Z12%EEFHNEFE(ZZTEN
F 2 20%) °

KA S HIR 2 B E BOR B I R R 1%
BE - AEERARERE R RBE
B8 - EEB RSB R REER
BEEBZFE -
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27.

Investment in distressed assets through
establishment of a special purpose vehicle

27. BEARUBKENHBRETRE

3

The Group
7 22

2009 2008
S PN T
HK$°000 HK$’000
FAT T

Expected discounted cash flow from

TREEZFAHBRADR

distressed assets 43,208 3,948
Cash collected from distressed assets but R & EUREIIR$ B I REAK
not yet transferred to the Group £HF 100,993 144,299
144,201 148,247
The Group AEE

On 25 October 2006, Silver Grant International
Assets Investment Limited (“SGIAIL"), a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company entered into a cooperation
memorandum (the “NPL Memorandum”) with China
Orient Asset Management Corporation (“China
Orient”) to establish a company in the PRC, Dongxin
Union Asset Management Corporation Limited
(“Dongxin Union”) for the purpose of managing a
NPL portfolio (the “First Orient Portfolio”). Pursuant
to the NPL Memorandum, SGIAIL purchased 46.17%
interest of First Orient Portfolio from China Orient at
a consideration of approximately RMB319,682,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$321,701,000).
SGIAIL injected its 46.17% interest in the First Orient
Portfolio and China Orient injected the remaining
53.83% interests in the First Orient Portfolio,
representing a capital injection of approximately
RMB372,708,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$376,435,000) into Dongxin Union as investment
in Dongxin Union. This transaction was approved by
the Ministry of Commerce of the PRC on 22 January
2007. The operation license of Dongxin Union will
expire three years after the date of incorporation (i.e.
22 January 2010). During the year, the operation
license of Dongxin Union has been extended to 31
December 2010.

RZTEERE+A=THB ' AAFZ
2EMBARIBEEBREERERRA
A([REEEREDEPBRFEE
EERAB([FRBEEREL DL —EEE
EERE(TREEBTE]) RPH
HiE—ERrE — REMAEEERER
BAR([REHEGDAEE—BITR
BEAG(RABEER—)) - RIEZ
TREEBESE  LEEERERFP
BIRAFBARTEES K 46.17% 1
= REAAR#319,682,000 7T
(HERL 321,701,000 7T) - REE
ERETIAHEABATR R BEER—Z
Hm P RERGEAL TAHS53.83% R
HEEB—2ZEZD  BEAAREYD
372,708,000 7t (FHE R %) 376,435,000
BIL)EATREHSIEAREHAR
HERE - WERHGER _ZTZTLF—H
T+ AEYSh BRI 2 B o Rz
Bt A M ERB S B R =6
BERIE(BIZE—ZFF—HF=-+=H) -
RAFHE - RIEBEMNEXNRBE LR
EZ—ZFTF+_A=+—H-
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27.

Investment in distressed assets through
establishment of a special purpose vehicle
(Continued)

The Group (Continued)

On 5 June 2008, SGIAIL entered into an
supplementary cooperation memorandum (the
“Second Memorandum”) with China Orient, pursuant
to the Second Memorandum, SGIAIL together with
certain investors had agreed to make investment
in a second portfolio of distressed assets (the
“Second Orient Portfolio”) owned by China Orient.
The acquisition was approved by the Ministry of
Commerce of the PRC and completed during the
year ended 31 December 2009. The investment cost
of the Second Orient Portfolio was approximately
RMB1,160,998,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$1,314,834,000). The Group entered into a joint
investment contract with three other investors (“Joint
Investment Contract”) and invested 46.17% interest of
the Second Orient Portfolio which cost approximately
RMB536,033,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$607,059,000) of which RMB246,033,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$278,633,000) was
paid by the Group. According to the Joint Investment
Contract, the Group should collect and distribute
the cash collected from distressed assets from
China Orient on behalf of the other three investors in
proportion of the initial investment amount.

On 14 July 2009, SGIAIL and China Orient made
additional capital injection to Dongxin Union. SGIAIL
injected its 46.17% interests in Second Orient
Portfolio and China Orient injected its 53.83%
interest in Second Orient Portfolio into Dongxin
Union. The shareholding of Dongxin Union owned by
SGIAIL and China Orient after the capital injection
remain unchanged.

Pursuant to the Memorandum and Article of Dongxin
Union, China Orient is responsible to manage the
First Orient Portfolio and Second Orient Portfolio.
China Orient is entitled to a management fee equal
to 10% of the gross amount recovered from the First
Orient Portfolio and Second Orient Portfolio. The
proportion of sharing of the recovered amounts for
the First Orient Portfolio and Second Orient Portfolio
are based on a pre-determined scale stated in the
NPL Memorandum and the Second Memorandum
respectively.

27.

BEBRVERENEEBRETRE
E#E)

REM(E)

R-ZENFEARH  REEERE
AR B 5 R M — 1D e A 1B T ik
([E=E=])  BEE=E= - BE
EEREBRE TREERELER
FRERSFEEZTIREERE —_B(R
FEERZ)  HWKEEIRGHBEEE
W2HEITR —_EZENF+_A=+—
AZFEANTK - RABEBZ ZIREK
N4 & AR #1,160,998,000 7T (18 &
R 471,314,834,000/%8 7T ) ° 7~ 5 B H
= (EREER L — O EREE HE
([HEZEERHZE])LIZE 46.17%
REAEER-  HXAHAEARE
536,033,000 7T (18 7 49 607,059,000
BL) ERARAEBEIHOARE
246,083,000 7T (#8E 7 49 278,633,000
BIL) o RIBZERKRERZE  A5H
FERE R = (AR E B WERI A ZHIEE
CREZLEADEEEFREEFWE 2R

sl

RZZTZNFLATHEA - REEBER
BHABER G HREHSELHEINER
TN IRBEEERERAHL46.17%
HRRAEEB-_RTERRAARAH
53.83% EmMNEHEER KRR H
A BEEERERPRARSEARE
BE ZIRIER BRI ARIDR G -

RIEREHANARER  AERFE
EEERAFEERS—RERAEER = -
FRRFERINERAEES—RE
HEER-_BREFEIO%TERER
& o B ZAEELLAREATREERL
R RSk — 2 FAE L R FIE o
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27.

28.

—FENEFASt—AULEE

Investment in distressed assets through
establishment of a special purpose vehicle
(Continued)

The Group (Continued)

The investment in distressed assets through the
establishment of a special purpose vehicle is
measured at amortised cost less impairment, with
income credited to profit or loss. The investment
in distressed assets through the establishment of
a special purpose vehicle is denominated in RMB
which is also the functional currency of the group
entity which holds the investment. For the First
Orient Portfolio, the original effective interest rate is
approximately 70.02% per annum. For the Second
Orient Portfolio, the original effective interest rate
is approximately 93.75% per annum. No significant
change was noted in the expected cash flow from
both distressed assets portfolios.

As at 31 December 2009, included in the carrying
amount of the investment in distressed assets
through establishment of a special purpose
vehicle, HK$100,993,000 (2008: HK$144,299,000)
represented cash collected from distressed assets
but not yet transfer to the Group and deposited in
bank accounts. The effective interest rate from such
bank deposits is approximately 0.7% (2008: 0.7%)
per annum.

As at 31 December 2009, included in accured
charges, rental deposits and other payables of
HK$197,503,000 (2008: nil) and amount due to an
associate of HK$22,789,000 (2008: nil) represented
the cash collected from the distressed assets of the
Second Portfolio by the Group on behalf of the other
investors under the joint investment contract.

Particulars of Dongxin Union are set out in note 53.

Inventories

27. BEARUBKENHBRETRE

EE)

REM(E)

BB B H’J%Z%f&ﬁ?iﬁ?
= AEHR AR EEETE &
WABIGFABRE - BBEKY % B
) & B &éﬁ?ﬁéﬁ&ﬁ%ﬂﬂﬁﬁ)\&
¥ AR AZRENSEERAR ZNEE
B B EER— ZREBERFERNERY
B70.02% - RABER_ZRERF
N E A H93.75% - TR EE 7 FEHIIR
SRR BEEANEE o

RZZBEZNF+-_A=+—8 " B8iF&
BREKVERENSREBRETREES
#2F » H100,993,00058 T(ZEZE N\
F 144,299,000 L) BRI REE
BEWEIRIREEEAEEEZAEEL B
ﬁﬁﬂ(ﬁ’\fﬁﬁfﬂﬁﬁﬂ’\] c RIRITHERZE
BEREFRL07% (T )\ F :
0.7%).

RZZEZNF+_A=+—8' ' 8RN
JEEtE A - fﬂﬁ‘%}xi&ﬁt@!ﬁﬁ 7
197503000,.37@(:2\2)\¢ =) &
& {5 — e Bt & A B FR AR 22,789,000 78
TL(ZETNE ?ﬁi\)ft%zt&’ilﬂ?dﬁ
ﬁ&ﬁfﬁ%%ﬁﬁm%ﬁﬁ%@%T\EﬁE
B2 -

BERREHME < HEHFINHESS

28. 7&

The Group
rEH
2009 2008
e il —=T\&
HK$’000

HK$’000
FET T8

Consumables SHAEm
Raw materials Rt
Finished goods e

298 196
- 16,699
- 49,702

298 66,597
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29.

30.

Held-for-trading investments 29. HEEERE
The Group The Company
REE PiN/NE]
2009 2008 2009 2008
—eens [EELCH —zen s [EEadC
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET
Equity securities listed in REB EMHRAE
Hong Kong, at fair value 5 RARE 132,816 70,027 40,324 15,368
Trade receivables 30. FEEWERRX

The Group allows an average credit period of 30
days to its trade customers. The following is an aged
analysis of trade receivables net of allowance for
doubtful debts presented on the invoice date at the
end of the reporting period:

AEBERTESEPFH=1TXRER
Hi o THIRIREFRHREEZ BRUIRK
(FNERI|AREBIR) R AT E IR 2 BR ik
vaXiige

The Group
rEEH

2009 2008

—EThF pEEg\ad

HK$°000 [ZIEX0l0l6)

FAET FEIT

0 to 30 days TE==1H 2,303 2,322
31 to 90 days =+—HZh+H 3,119 3,172
91 to 180 days h+—HBZ—8N+H 2,876 3,069
181 to 360 days —ABN At+—BZ==F/,1H 1,820 3,231
10,118 11,794

The Group’s trade receivables that are neither past
due nor impaired are those debtors with satisfactory
credit quality under the management’s assessment
and with good past repayment records.

Included in the Group’s trade receivable balance are
debtors with a carrying amount of HK$7,815,000
(2008: HK$9,472,000) which are past due at the end
of the reporting period for which the Group has not
provided for impairment loss. The Group does not
hold any collateral over these balances. The average
age of these receivables is 137 days (2008: 156
days).

ZRER B 2 FE MR ROR B B B 3 R R (B
MBRBEEERNEEERBIENT A RIFH
EEEXRENCH -

AN 2 FE U R R BR B 15 7,815,000

BIL(CZTT)\F : 9,472,000 7T ) A A
HEARD B BEAEEL R G ERE

518 - NEE WL B HZ B F I

AR - ZEW R Z FH Rk 5137 A
—ZET)\F :156H) °

157
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30. Trade receivables (Continued) 30.

31.

Aging of trade receivables which are past due but

not yet impaired:

PEW BRI (&)

JE U BR R E B BB 3 AR ORE 2 BRI 9
1

The Group
REHE

2009 2008

e il — = T/\F

HK$°000 [ElEX0lole]

FET FET

31 to 90 days =+—HZhT+H 3,119 3,172
91 to 180 days h+—HZ—BNA+AH 2,876 3,069
181 to 360 days —BAN\t+—BE=/"~<1H 1,820 3,231
7,815 9,472

The Group did not provide impairment loss for the
trade receivables. In the opinion of the directors,
there is no impairment loss for the trade receivables
past due (over 30 days) at the end of the reporting

period.

Deposits, prepayments and other 31.

receivables

R ER [ 30 8 it R AR R ER BB (E BT 1 -
EZRRARACAPARRE(EE=T
B ) O 8 o Bl A AN e o HA R R A AR
B o

BE - AR EMERK

The Group The Company
REE AAT
2009 2008 2009 2008
-l Rl T T \F Rl ST\ F
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAET FET FET
Consideration receivable HE—REE N A fE
from disposal of an WARAEB (Hfaz i)
associate (Note i) 236,880 — - =
Amount due from the U HEMHTE AT
buyer of the disposed BRZ&RE (K i)
subsidiaries (Note ii) - 165,620 - 165,620
Others EAh 41,420 62,818 5,786 1,343
278,300 228,438 5,786 166,963
Less: Impairment loss 7 EMERIBBESE
recognised (K77 iii)
(Note iii) (21,115) (21,115) - —
257,185 207,323 5,786 166,963
Analysed for reporting BRERENITE:
purposes as:
Current Vink) 115,074 207,323 5,786 166,963
Non-current IEME 142,111 = = —
257,185 207,323 5,786 166,963
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31.

32.

—EEANFT A= —HIEFE

Deposits, prepayments and other
receivables (Continued)

Notes:

(i) During the year ended 31 December 2009, the
Group disposed of an associate for a consideration
of HK$358,233,000. The consideration is unsecured,
interest free and will be settled by three instalments:
HK$100,000,000 by 90 days after the date of the
disposal, HK$100,000,000 by 31 December 2010
and HK$158,233,000 by 31 December 2011. At
initial recognition, the fair value of the consideration
was HK$336,888,000, determined by using imputed
interest rate of 5.52% per annum.

(i) During the year ended 31 December 2007, the Group
disposed of subsidiaries to an independent third
party for a consideration of HK$83,020,000. Pursuant
to the sale and purchase agreement, an amount due
to the Group of HK$82,600,000 was undertaken by
the buyer of the disposed subsidiaries. The original
settlement date was June 2008. The amount was fully
settled during the year ended 31 December 2009.

(i)  Impairment loss was recognised on certain non-
refundable deposits paid to independent third
parties for a property development project in
the PRC. The property development project was
temporarily suspended and the directors considered
that the deposits paid would not be refunded by
the counterparties, hence impairment loss was
recognised in full in 2008 with respect to these
deposits.

Except for the impairment loss as discussed in the
note (iii) above, the Group did not provide impairment
loss for deposits, prepayments and other receivables.
In the opinion of the directors, no impairment loss is
considered necessary in respect of these balances.

Bank balances and cash
The Group and the Company

The Group’s and the Company’s bank balances and
cash comprise cash and short-term bank deposits
carrying effective interest rate at an average of
0.36% (2008: 1.4%) per annum with an original
maturity of three months or less. Included in the
Group’s and the company’s bank balances and
cash at 31 December 2009 were an aggregate
amount of approximately HK$1,102,167,000 (2008:
approximately HK$754,128,000) and HK$156,681,000
(2008: HK$13,535,000) respectively which were
denominated in RMB and is not freely convertible into

other currencies.

31.

32.

B BNRREMERRE)
Mzt -
AET=A=+—B2F

(i) R-IEE

A - $§,§@LA1‘E{ES58233000757E

HE—HBE A ZREREE
# ﬁaf'Q&M HgE - HE%90
H %1% 100,000,000 /87T + —T—ZF
+= A =+—HAEE 100,000,000 %
TRZZFE——F+_A=+—HHEZ
158,233,000 7T ° Z A ERRKIIH#ER
2 A 7t (B VA FE 51T 7 38 5.52% & FE
/5 336,888,000/ 7T ©

i) MRZZFEZ=ELF+-_A=+—HLHF
EA - AEBARKE 83,020,000%
THEWBRAR TBYE=ZF - RIE
B B 5 © 82,600,000 7T Z & ft
AEBEFRHEEZHB R R EREH
S RAZEHABHAEZZSTNGF
A ZEeBEEN_EENFE+ A
=t+—HAZFRZEUWE -

(iy FHBHENTFTBILE=FETEHY
FERBANTED ZZSEER
BEBER - ZMERXRAEBCEHRE
Ik EFR HEHZ&%%HT\@%&%
TRE  RIEBEZRER-_TZTN
FER2HEREBR -

B L 3t B 5 (i) < BB RSN - AR E
WIS ~ FEIS R H b 8 YR B2
MERE  EFBRA/BENZFE
BREH AR E R -

RITEREERS
AEERAAT

AREBRARBIRTHEBK LIRS BIER
e hFEIHBA=EAKARN « AR
THHFEFEH0.36% (T )N\ F :
1.4%)FF R ZGHIPTFER - R=F
EhE+_A=+—BAEERAR
RIZRITHEB RIS DR BIEREL
1,102,167,0008 T(ZZEZ A\ F : 4
754,128,000/ 7© ) & 156,681,0007%8

TL(=ZFZT )\ 13,535,000/ 7T) & LA
AREEHBEN  WATEARLE
BHME .
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33.

34.

Pledge of assets

The Group

At 31 December 2009, the Group had pledged
certain investment properties and leasehold land and
buildings which have an aggregate carrying value
at the end of the reporting period of approximately
HK$2,159,570,000 (2008: HK$2,101,111,000)
and HK$152,400,000 (2008: HK$134,300,000)
respectively to secure general banking facilities
granted to the Group.

The Company

At 31 December 2009, the Company had pledged
certain leasehold land and buildings which have an
aggregate carrying value at the end of the reporting
period of approximately HK$48,400,000 (2008:
HK$40,300,000) to secure general banking facilities
granted to the Company.

Share capital

33.

34.

EERKR
AKE

RZEZENF+ZHA=+—H" ' =&
SEERERABREHARESEREE
@ EE D Bl 4 A2,159,570,00078 JT
(ZZ T N\ £ :2,101,111,0005% 7T )
152,400,000 jo(= & T N\ F :
134,300,000 7T) 2 & TIREWME R
HE T RIEFERERTEEERT
—REIEIRITRRE M1 -

E NS

R-ZBEEANE+-_A=+—8 &2
AERERAMERRNZFTRE R
RE#) 5 48,400,000 B TL(ZZFZ )\ F
40,300,000 7T ) 2 & THE T R E
FIRIFEARARER T —RIERITE
B -

BA

Number of shares

Nominal value

R EE SEE
2009 2008 2009 2008
“EZhE “TTN\F “EERE ZTTN\F
IRGLUEEL LI [N thousand HK$’000 HK$'000
Fig TR FET FET
Ordinary share of HK$0.20 each  S&EE0.20/8 T 2 L@
Authorised: EEERA:
At the beginning and the end of ~ REFIRRER
the year 4,000,000 4,000,000 800,000 800,000
Issued and fully paid: EETREZRCRL:
At the beginning and the end of ~ REFIRNER
the year 1,820,710 1,820,710 364,142 364,142
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SEFAF A= AULER
35. Reserves 35. f#fE
The Group rEHE
HK$'000
FET
Asset revaluation reserve EEEMMR#E
At 1 January 2008 R-ZEZENF—H—H 43,505
Gain on revaluation of leasehold properties EHHEEWERE 7,007
Deferred tax liability arising on revaluation of BHEEMEEEZ
leasehold properties EEFRIBAE (1,301)
Transferred to retained profits e = (R T (2,154)
At 31 December 2008 R-ZET\F+_A=1t—H 47,057
Gain on revaluation of leasehold properties EHHEEWERE 21,237
Deferred tax liability arising on revaluation of BHEEMEEEC
leasehold properties FEETHIBAE (2,842)
At 31 December 2009 RZZETNF+_A=1T—H 65,452
Other reserve Hith &
At 1 January 2008 RZZET/\F—HA—H 86,670
Change in fair value arising on revaluation of AMEHERESHEEZ
available-for-sale investments NINIEREE) (111,455)
Impairment loss on available-for-sale investments A EREREBE 25,390
At 31 December 2008 RZZEZENFF+—A=1+—8 605
Change in fair value arising on revaluation of AHEEREEHEEZ
available-for-sale investments NREE 17,898
Transfer to profit or loss on disposal of available- HE R SR E R
for-sale investments ZEEEER (17,898)
Transfer to profit or loss on disposal of associates — HEBEARIZEEEEE (588)
At 31 December 2009 RZZETAF+-_A=1+—H 17
Translation reserve B R
At 1 January 2008 R-_ZET/\F—HF—H 257,811
Exchange difference arising on translation BREEF2EHRZESR 58,815
Share of other comprehensive income of associates # 5Bk /A &) E At 2 % A (56,252)
At 31 December 2008 RZZETN\F+_A=+—H 260,374
Exchange difference arising on translation e FEZAER%%E 38,886
Share of other comprehensive income of associates #5842 N 7] K& R A ]
and jointly controlled entities ﬁ‘rﬁliﬁmﬂ 9,046
Transfer to profit or loss on disposal of associates HER S AFZEEIERR (8,366)
At 31 December 2009 REBEENF+—A=1— 299,940
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35. Reserves (Continued) 35. f#E(E)
The Company VNN |
The distributable reserves of the Company as at AKRalR=ZZEZENF+=_A=+—H
31 December 2009 amounted to approximately Z A5 /ﬁfﬁﬁ BIERZBHBRE &
HK$324,633,000 (2008: HK$350,429,000), being its | 48 %E %) /324,633,000 (==
retained profits at that date. T )\F : 350,429,00087T) °
Asset
revaluation Capital
Share reserve redemption Retained
premium EEER reserve profits Total
B R E fitg EXEERE RERA &t
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET
At 1 January 2008 RZZTENE
—H—H 2,177,287 33,776 13,992 417,368 2,642,423
Loss on revaluation of BREELHRET
leasehold land and EEZEBA
building — (915) — — (915)
Reversal of deferred BEHELHREF
tax liabilities arising on EEZEERE
revaluation of leasehold ~ Bf&MEE
land and buildings — 786 — - 786
Other comprehensive FREMEEEH
income for the year — (129) — — (129)
Profit for the year FERGEF - - - 78,718 78,718
Total comprehensive FRZERA
income for the year fas - (129) - 78,718 78,589
Dividend KE - - - (145,657) (145,657)
At 31 December 2008 R=ZZ)\F1+=A
== 2,177,287 33,647 13,992 350,429 2,575,355
Gain on revaluation of BEHELHREF
leasehold land and EE 7 B
building - 11,463 - — 11,463
Deferred tax liabilities SHAELHREF
arising on revaluation B4 ZRERIE
of leasehold land and BfE
buildings — (1,366) — — (1,366)
Other comprehensive FREMZERT
income for the year — 10,097 — — 10,097
Profit for the year ER A - - - 138,068 138,068
Total comprehensive FAZERH
income for the year HakE] — 10,097 — 138,068 148,165
Dividend 5 = = = (163,864) (163,864)
At 31 December 2009 RZZTNFT=A
=t+—H 2,177,287 43,744 13,992 324,633 2,559,656
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36.

Borrowings 36. fBE
The Group The Company
rEE AT
2009 2008 2009 2008
“EENG PRGN — TN 5 i
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET
Bank loans — secured RITER — FEA 464,789 385,099 253,450 4,600
Carrying amount repayable: EEE RIS :
Within one year —FE7 R 179,058 336,839 101,150 1,160
More than one vyear, —F A EE
but not exceeding THEBiIB R
two years 179,114 25,780 101,150 1,150
More than two years, A DA _E{B
but not exceeding THBRFE
five years 96,641 9,865 51,150 2,300
More than five years AFEMNE 9,976 12,615 - -
464,789 385,099 253,450 4,600
Less: Amounts due within & - R—F 2R
one year shown under EIEAN0 51 &R ED
current liabilities BfEze®
— Bank loans — RITERX (179,058)  (336,839)  (101,150) (1,150)
285,731 48,260 152,300 3,450

Borrowings are secured by certain investment

properties and leasehold properties.

?ﬁﬂ o

EERETREDELEEMRIFEEL
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36. Borrowings (Continued)

Bank loans of the Group and the Company
of approximately HK$253,450,000 (2008:
HK$4,600,000) are denominated in HKD, which
was the Company’s functional currency as at 31
December 2008, but not the Company’s functional
currency as at 31 December 2009 since the
Company changed its functional currency from HKD
to RMB during the year. The bank loans carry floating
rates at Hong Kong interbank offered rates (“HIBOR”)
plus 1.5% and prime rate minus 2.375% (2008:
prime rate minus 2.375%) per annum, or effective
interest rate of 2.172% and effective interest rate
of 2.625% (2008: 2.625%) per annum respectively.
Bank loans of the group’s entities other than the
Company of HK$22,589,000 (2008: HK$24,943,000)
are denominated in HKD, functional currency of the
relevant group entities, and carry a floating rate
of prime rate minus 2.7% (2008: prime rate minus
2.375%) per annum or effective interest rate of
2.3% (2008: 2.625%) per annum respectively. The
remaining bank loans of the Group are denominated
in RMB, functional currency of the relevant group
entities and carry floating interest rate at 90% (2008:
92%) of The People’s Bank of China (“PBOC”)
six-month interest rate or effective interest rate of
4.86% (2008: 4.89%) per annum. As at 31 December
2008, the remaining RMB denominated bank loans of
the relevant group entities carried fixed interest rate
ranging from 6.2% to 7.47% per annum.

36.

B8 &)

HRARRRFERRE LI TS BB
TEARE REBERARQRMRITE
B #)253,450,000 8 L(Z T Z N\ F :
4,600,000/8 7T ) = LA T BEAL - T)
EEE_ZEENF+_A=+—Hm
W —BEENE+-_A=+—BEXRAA
ZNE B - RITERD AIREBRTT
B3 B[RITREF L FEFF X
1.5% REEFFHERF2.375% (=
ZT)\F : REEFHER2.375%) &)
FH RN ERFNE2172% sk EIRF
F 22.625% (ZFF )\ F : 2.625%)
B BITEFRAEBRARBRAR A
SN #922,589,000%8 (= T T )\ F -
24,943,000/ 70) = AB T A EM - 2
HESERARNIEER ko hlikE
BEIEIHFRF2.7% (TS N\ F
REEFEF KR 2.8375%) 1) F F &
KANBEEFEK23%(—TZT)\F :
2.625%)5T B °c AREBMEKRIRITER
ABBMEERARMINEEEARK S
BRI RPEARRIT(TARRIT A
BREBFETIZE10% (ZFZN\F :
TIE8%) K IAEBREREA486% (=ZF
TZNF 1 489%) c RZEENF+=
A=+—H ' HASEQRHNEHKA
REBAERAIZETEFFXEEH
6.2% B7.47% T8 °
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37. Convertible note 37. TERBRERE

The Group and the Company BEERAEANT
2009 2008
—E2EEhE RIS
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET

Convertible note classified as financial REZREAAERESREL

liabilities at fair value through profit or loss A G R EE - 389,025

On 24 November 2004, the Company issued a
convertible note to Citigroup Global Markets Limited
(“CGML”) (subsequently transferred to Citigroup
Global Markets Financial Products LLC (“CGMFP”)
which is a fellow subsidiary of CGML.) in the principal
amount of US$52,500,000 in accordance with a
subscription agreement dated 5 November 2004
entered into between the Company and CGML. The
interest rate is 1.5% per annum and payable semi-
annually in arrears. The Company shall repay the
principal amount outstanding under the convertible
note to the noteholder together with all interest
accrued on the fifth anniversary of the date of the
issue of the convertible note (i.e. 24 November 2009).
The conversion price is HK$2.95 per share which
is subject to adjustment for, among other matters,
subdivision or consolidation of shares, bonus issues,
capital reduction, rights issues and other events
which have diluting effects on the issued share
capital of the Company.

On 20 February 2009, the Company and CGMFP,
the owner of the convertible note, entered into an
agreement whereby the Company would redeem
from CGMFP the convertible note at US$49,875,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$389,025,000),
being 95% of its principal amount of US$52,500,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$409,500,000). The
Group fully settled the redemption amount during
the year ended 31 December 2009. Unpaid accrued
interest of approximately HK$648,000 was waived
and credited as other income for the year ended 31
December 2009.

RZZEZENF+—A=Z+MmA ' RiI&
AN A & B Citigroup Global Markets
Limited([fEEEE R T M4
T—ARBEI 2 REWHZE - AREE
H — A #2 AR R ¥8 7N € %8 52,500,000 3
TTHEEESE(HEEEEZ —HTES
& 7 [7] 4 Ff B A Al » Citigroup Global
Markets Financial Products LLC
(“CGMFP")) « REF B LAFFZE1.5%
FENESYFEUTHARAIZN - XA
AR RIREERE A AEFER
BRAFE(AN_ZTAF+—-—A=+M
BREEFEAEBEITREKREREIET
REBERIN AN FBAFTE R EETFE o
BMREAER2.9587 « WHEXE|(HE
R EE)RMIFAS S O - BITAK
HEORARAS ~ HIRAE ¥ AN A A B BT
RAREBEBENENEHNTEELR
o

R-_ZEZNF_A-_+H ARAK
A # & Z i 2 ¥ B ACGMFP % & 1
#% AR A LA K &£ §852,500,000 3% 7T
(18 & 7 409,500,000 7T ) Z 95% Al
49,875,000 2 7t (18 € 7 49 389,025,000
7870 ) [\l CGMFP & [Bl 3% AT R iR 224 © AN
EBER=ZETNF+=A=+—HZ
FARENEZERTE - KT 2B
BH#648,000 8 TEHRERN=ZTE
NE+_BA=1+—BHZFRFAEMIK

S o
g
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37. Convertible note (Continued)

The Group and the Company (Continued)

The Group designated the entire convertible note as
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
is carried at fair value at the end of the reporting
period. During the year ended 31 December 2008,
a loss on increase in its fair value of approximately
HK$6,289,000 was recognised in the consolidated
income statement.

The fair value of the liability component of the
convertible note at fair value through profit or loss
at 31 December 2008 was determined based on
the present value of the estimated future cash
flows discounted at the prevailing market rate for
an equivalent non-convertible loan at the end of the
reporting period. The discount rate is 11.81%.

The fair value of the conversion option embedded
was calculated using the Binomial model. The inputs
into the model were as follows:

37.

TRRRE#E)
FEBRART(E)

AEBIETEMARBREEANIBER
BEARERENESRAERE  IRARE
HRUAABIEE R N\F+=
A=+—HBZ2&R HAREBEENES
E518 496,289,000 B L E R4 A IRaE &
R o

RERREAREERENARRER Y

HoR=ZEZEN\F+=_H=+—H
ZARBETIATE L BERNRZEERR
RS BIR 2 & BT % F R A RE IR R ET
HEFTARRREREMBZREET °
BEIRE 5 11.81% °

NE 2B AR ETRAZBEELN
AEME RARZBRAZEBWAT :

31 December

20 February

2009 2008

“EBNE —EEN\F

—A=+0 [EEVESEE

Stock price per share AR E HK$0.74 HK$0.71

Exercise price per share HRITEEE HK$2.95 HK$2.95

Expected volatility TE HAR 18 59% 59%

Expected life TE HR4F B — 0.9 year

Risk-free rate 12 2 B | = 0.25% 0.25%
Expected dividend yield charged to  TEHIRR B Uz RF AR

income statement for the year FER R 2.00% 2.00%

The stock price was the closing price at the
respective end of the reporting period while the
expected volatility was determined by calculating the
historical volatility of the Company’s share price over
the previous year.

BERNEREHRZHEHE - MBH
KT EBAEARARENBE—F
ZESLRIEMERE °
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38. Deferred taxation

38.

The followings are the major deferred tax assets and

liabilities recognised and movements thereon during

IELEB A

UTARREFERNEFENEEOR
RIEERAE EEE AR ERARE R

the current and prior years: AEFERES :
The Group
X5H
Accelerated
tax  Revaluation
depreciation of properties Tax losses Total
MERBRE MEER HBER a5
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FHT
At 1 January 2008 R-ZENE-A-A (55) (93,381) 1,508 (91,928)
Credit to profit or loss for the year ~ RAEEFBEFTA = 7,073 = 7,073
Charge to other comprehensive IR E E A 2 E & A R
income for the year - (1,754) - (1,754)
Acquisition of subsidiaries WEMB AR (M 43)
(Note 43) (1,712) - - (1,712)
Effect of change in tax rate credit ~ FAHREDH v 32
to other comprehensive income SARMEEET
for the year = 453 = 453
Effect of change in tax rate charged FRAHEEH) v 52
to profit or loss for the year REERNG = = (86) (86)
At 31 December 2008 R-BENE+=A=+-H (1,767) (87,609) 1,422 (87,954)
Credit to profit or loss for the year ~ MAEEBZEEREA - (14,413) - (14,413)
Charge to other comprehensive RAEEAMEEENNR
income for the year = (2,842) = (2,842)
Deemed disposal of a subsidiary ~ BREE—HKBAF
(Note 44) (Bt 44) 1,712 - - 1,712
At 31 December 2009 RZBENE+ZA=1—H (55) (104,864) 1,422 (103,497)

167
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38. Deferred taxation (Continued)

38. ELEBIIEE)

The Company
KAH
Accelerated
tax Revaluation
depreciation of properties Total
MEHRBTE MEE g
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FET FET FET
At 1 January 2008 RZEZN\F—A—H (55) (4,682) (4,737)
Effect of change in tax rate RS k7 - 271 271
Credit to other comprehensive RAEEEMEEEFFA
income for the year = 515 516
At 31 December 2008 RZZENE+=A=1+—H (55) (3,896) (3,951)
Charge to other comprehensive NG B B A 2 1 F1R
income for the year - (1,366) (1,366)
At 31 December 2009 RZZENF+-A=1—H (55) (5,262) (5,317)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
unused tax losses of approximately HK$89,210,000
(2008: HK$88,302,000) available for offset against
future profits. A deferred tax asset has been
recognised in respect of approximately HK$8,617,000
(2008: HK$8,617,000) of such losses. No deferred
tax asset has been recognised in respect of the
remaining HK$80,593,000 (2008: HK$79,685,000)
due to unpredictability of future profit streams and
such tax losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

At the end of reporting period, the Company had
unused tax losses of approximately HK$32,075,000
(2008: HK$32,075,000) available for offset against
future profits. No deferred tax asset has been
recognised due to the unpredictability of future profit
stream.

Under the EIT Law, withholding tax is imposed
on dividends declared to overseas investors in
respect of profits earned by PRC subsidiaries from
1 January 2008 onwards. Deferred taxation has
not been provided for in the consolidated financial
statements in respect of temporary differences
attributable to accumulated profits of the PRC
subsidiaries amounting to HK$240,857,000 (2008:
HK$44,702,000) as the Group is able to control the
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences
and it is probable that the temporary differences will
not reverse in the foreseeable future.

RATRE BR - AEE G AT NRA G
%IJmﬂiébﬁHﬁi‘kréﬂézﬁsg 210,000 %
(== Z )\ F : 88,302,000/5 7@)
ZE BB 48,617,000 (2=
J\4 :8,617,000/8 70 ) B MR E L
HAE o B AR U /7~ ] 78 814
N 775 s 18 1] 4 PR B b R b Af S AP
B E£280,593,000E T (=BT )\ £F
79,685,000/ 70 ) R L (AR E T B E
E o

RATRE R - AQR)A AR ARG
%Ijmﬁkibﬁﬁﬁﬁ*)éﬂ% #732,075,00078
TT(ZZZ N\ % : 32,075,000 7T ) °
EE AR 2R UL 25 A9 ] TEDRI M - W0 AR FERR
FIEEFRTEEE o

REBEBEHEET B=EENF—A
—Elf'aﬂllé' B Y B A R BT A5 5 A

DIk FIEINGEE 2’ EFHKRIEN
Bt MR AEBREHIEHBEERER
BB R AT B A8 R i = E RS
Mg TEEE - Bt RERKMER
7] #9240,857,0008 (=2 T )\ F -
44,702,000) B L Eiaflc TR E £
M E A RIEE R B R EF AL S B SR
RA °
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39.

40.

Trade payables 39. EMFEREX
The following is an aged analysis of trade payables Tl ERERR REEZ ENRFKNA
presented based on the invoice date at the end of WmEBAR R DT -
the reporting period:
The Group
rEH
2009 2008
—EZhE eI
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
0 to 30 days TE=+H 13,591 33,401
31 to 90 days =+—B=Z=NA+H 8,958 18,333
91 to 180 days h+—BE—BN+H 9,614 14,563
181 to 360 days —BNt+t—HB=Z=B/,tH 11,995 19,184
Over 360 days BB@=f"a/~1TH 55,042 28,352
99,200 113,833

Accrued charges, rental deposits and other
payables

The Group

At 31 December 2009, the balance includes an
amount of approximately HK$42,695,000 (2008:
HK$41,889,000) payable to an independent third
party in relation to purchase of land use rights in the
PRC. The amount is secured by certain investment
properties of approximately HK$38,618,000 (2008:
HK$38,647,000), bears interest at 4.68% per annum
for both years and is repayable on demand.

At 31 December 2009, the balance includes an
amount of approximately HK$23,144,000 (2008:
HK$20,889,000) payable to a minority shareholder
of a subsidiary in relation to a shareholder’s loan
granted to the subsidiary. The amount is unsecured,
bears floating interest at the PBOC’s five-year
interest rate or effective rate of 7.47% (2008: 7.47%)
per annum for 2009 and 2008 and is repayable on
demand.

At 31 December 2009, the balance includes an
amount of approximately HK$197,503,000 (2008:
nil) payable to other investors of the Second Orient
Portfolio. Details are set out in note 27.

40.

BHEA ABREREMEMR

AEH

R-ZBZANE+-_A=1+—B2&E#HB
FERL A R B U EE i (F AR M RN T8
N E=THHIE - & FA 42,695,000
BIL(ZZZT )\ : 41,889,000/ 7T) °
ZoFBE TIREYZE4 38,618,000 %
TT(ZZZT )\ : 38,647,000/8 7T ) {EHK
- MEFERFENEL468%ERIE

BB T HE o

RZEZAFE+_A=+—"BZHER
FE—IEE A 523,144,000 T(=F
T )\4F : 20,889,000/ )2 BEHBGE T
MEBARMBREERNEMNHBAG D
BRER - RZZZNFR_ZTTN\F
ZEEAELE  RAPBRARRETR
FHR R ZEERFRERT7.47% (=
ZENF  7.47%) 5 B R E ZRKPER
ETHEE o

R-ZBZAE+-_A=1+—8 HEB
E—IB S %4 A197,503,000%8 (=
TENF BIENRERFEER_Z2H
IR EE o FIFETI KK FE27 ©
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EiE

41.

42,

43.

—FENEFASt—AULEE

Amount due to an associate

The Group and the Company

The amount is unsecured, non-interest bearing and
repayable on demand.

Amounts due to subsidiaries

The Company

The amounts are unsecured, non-interest bearing
and repayable on demand.

Acquisition of subsidiaries

On 5 December 2008,
100% equity interest of Sun Steed International

the Group acquired

Investments Limited (“Sun Steed”) and its non-
wholly owned subsidiaries, which are involved
in production and trading of petrochemical
products, and a shareholder’s loan due to the
vendor of HK$100,000,000, for a consideration of
HK$84,823,000 and HK$100,000,000 respectively
from an associate of the Group. This acquisition has
been accounted for using the purchase method.
The amount of goodwill arising as a result of the
acquisition, determined using provisional fair values
for certain assets, was HK$4,391,000.

41.

42,

43.

B — BB E 2 TR

FEBRAAT
BREER  REREEREBET
Eﬁ & °
FEAS I 2 B3
N
SEAMER - EREERMEBS
B -
U B 6 2

RZZEZNF+_AAAR A&
7 Bl LA R {E84,823,000% T &
100,000,000 7 7T/ 7% & B #) — [l 5t i
ARIWEBHRBBREZRERR AR A
BEDREREABCIEREERH
EREZENBRRZ 100% KM
M ERE 7 2 IR E 5% 100,000,000 7
TLo 2B AKEBEN ST HEA
- BETEENEEARBEEE 2 HE
FTEA 2 2B 54,391,000 7T °
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43. Acquisition of subsidiaries (Continued)

The net assets acquired in the transaction, and the

43. BB DR (4)

HRZEARFEERELNEEHS

goodwill arising, are as follows: R
Carrying
amount and
fair value
IREEK
ARE
(note i)
(Brazi)
HK$’000
T
Net assets acquired: WIBFEE :
Land use rights + b R4 26,091
Property, plant and equipment Yz - R REE 267,966
Inventories FE 74,018
Trade receivables FEWER X 8,161
Deposit, prepayments and other receivables ®’e - ANRRE A EKK 61,882
Bank balances and cash IRITEHEBR RIS 235,503
Trade payables & BR R (21,326)
Accrued charges, rental deposits and other EErER  HKiEe RHEA
payables FET 3R (17,762)
Amount due to associates of the Group FEAT AR BBk & A Bl K (115,500)
Shareholder’s loan due to the vendor (Note) ENER ZBRRER(AE) (100,000)
Borrowings BE (137,931)
Deferred tax liabilities ELERIAEE (1,712)
279,390
Minority interests DR R (198,958)
Goodwill B 4,391
Total consideration satisfied by cash WIS RE 84,823
Net cash inflow arising on acquisition: WIEEARFIRESRA
Cash consideration paid for acquisition of WHEMNBRAREM RS
subsidiaries RE (84,823)
Cash consideration paid for purchase of a BARREREN RS
shareholder’s loan RE (100,000)
Bank balances and cash acquired IRITHEB MRS G 235,503
50,680
Note: Bt -

According to the sale and purchase agreement, the Group
was required to purchase a shareholder’s loan amounting to
HK$100,000,000 due to the vendor, Cll for a consideration

of HK$100,000,000.

BREEEHZ ASEFEREFFRE
LA & 100,000,000 TEEA —B S B A
100,000,000 & T 2 R E K °
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43.

44,

Acquisition of subsidiaries (Continued)

After the acquisition of Sun Steed and its subsidiaries
from an associate of the Group, the Group obtained
control over the operation of Sun Steed. Goodwill
arising on the acquisition is attributable to the
anticipated profitability brought about by the potential
increase in demand for petrochemical products in the
PRC and the faster decision making process from the
control.

The subsidiaries acquired contributed approximately
HK$45,662,000 to the Group’s revenue and loss of
approximately HK$1,528,000 from operating activities
for the period between the date of acquisition and 31
December 2008.

If the acquisition had been completed on 1 January
2008, total group revenue for the year ended 31
December 2008 would have been HK$1,100,192,000,
and profit for the year ended 31 December 2008
would have been HK$103,932,000. The pro forma
information is for illustrative purposes only and is
not necessarily an indication of revenue and results
of operations of the Group that actually would have
been achieved if the acquisition been completed on 1
January 2008, nor is it intended to be a projection of
future results.

Deemed disposal of a subsidiary

During the year, the shareholders of a non-wholly
owned subsidiary of the Group, TZ United East,
approved certain amendments in its memorandum
and articles of association. Such amendments
increased the number of directors in the board of
directors from 9 to 10 and each of the Group and
another shareholder of TZ United East had appointed
5 directors to the board of directors of TZ United
East. Previously, the Group appointed 5 out of
the 9 directors. In the opinion of the directors, the
decrease in voting power due to this amendment
caused the Group to lose its control over TZ United
East’s financial and operating policies. As a result, TZ
United East was deemed disposed of and became a
jointly controlled entity of the Group.

43.

44.

WK AR (&)

VAR B A — B QR UE B B &
HIfBAER - ARENGHERLED
2HIE - WEELNBELRATER
b3 BB L T fn i SKIB IR E ) 2
B S ACR IR R B RE IR TBH B F
BEIFREELE -

WEmMS B ARTEKREREZE-ZZE
NE+-A=1+—BHEALEE =B
#145,662,000 7 7T WA K 49 1,528,000
PEIT 2 4SS TSR o

WEWER-_ZEENF—HA—HBBE
TR EBAFEZBRAB A
1,100,192,000% ;> M = T T N\
F+-_A=+t—"HFRZHZIEA
103,932,000 7T ° It ERFIEE K E
PIVEHZZERR  WTAE2REARREN
FAREEMEER-_ZZENF—HF—AH
ERWEREEEEZRMRAREEE
SEREBREEZRE o

BEHE-FEHNEQ R

RAFRE  AREN—HFE2EEAMH
BRA TR OBRRIER R ENE
MERERNE TR - ZBETEHE
EENEFTHARAZBBNLENE+
i B ASEREMRRASRER
NEE - RAANKEZENANETRE
Z-EBEEMERRA  BREIRIK
SRV EHAEEREHTNMRE O
5 R B BIRRHIE S o Bt - Fe M R A
WARLR &I AR R B2 KRB A
Al e
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44. Deemed disposal of a subsidiary (Continued) 44. RELHE—HEMBEARE)
The net assets of the deemed disposed subsidiary at REEHZRRLEZHBAR ZFE
the date of disposal were as follows: EHFWNT
HK$’000
FEIT
Net assets disposed: HEFEE
Property, plant and equipment L E N 266,451
Inventories FE 47,546
Trade receivables FEUER =X 462
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables & ~ FENFR R E Ath e WK 21,051
Bank balances and cash RITESHR KBS 62,981
Trade payables FE - BR X (9,163)
Accrued charges, rental deposits and EErER  BEiEe Xk
other payables H e 3K (19,163)
Borrowings BE (135,900)
Taxation payable FEfSHLIR (749)
Deferred tax liabilities RIETRIER R (1,712)
231,804
Minority interests DYAR R (115,902)
115,902
Goodwill P 4,391
Amount transferred to interest in jointly & RAE| 8 5 KR
controlled entities DAl 120,293
Cash outflow arising on deemed disposal HRREEEE 2B RD 62,981
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45. Operating lease arrangements 45. EEHEOTH
The Group KEE
The Group as lessee AEBUAREAE S
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had RAMEHRR - BB AR L EM
commitments for future minimum lease payments WIET  ANEER L RIEFFREZ
under non-cancellable operating leases in respect of RRFERECAREEAHREAT

land and buildings which fall due as follows:

The Group
rEE
2009 2008
=t LS )\
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FETT

Within one year —FERNE® - 3,322
In the second to fifth year E_EFERF

inclusive (BREERREENR) = 2,911

= 6,233

The operating lease payments represent rental MEMAST HRESRETFRAE RS
payable for certain of its office premises and staff TEEENZES - AH—RiETA—
quarters. Leases are generally negotiated for a lease EE=FAHENETEMAS -
term ranged form 1 year to 3 years and rentals are
fixed.
The Group as lessor ZKEFLHEFALE 5
Property rental income earned by the Group during AREBREANBIRMNES K ALY
the year was approximately HK$65,821,000 (2008: 565,821,000 (= & T )\ F:
HK$54,431,000) respectively. The properties held 54,431,000787T) * FHEMNNEAER
have committed tenants for lease terms ranged from LR BHEEHR1IEE18E T
1 year to 18 years. & o
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45. Operating lease arrangements (Continued) 45. EEMHEOLHE)
The Group as lessor (Continued) KEFURBEAE 7 ()
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had RAREEHR  AEEEBREIZER
contracted with tenants for the following future WER Nt R R xRS

minimum lease payments:

The Group
REE
2009 2008
—zzhs [EEEICE
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FHET

Within one year —F RN Em 50,179 24,615
In the second to fifth year E_EFRF
inclusive (BREEEMFEEN) 18,822 16,838
After five years FELATR 1,699 2,234
70,700 43,687
The Company b
The Company has no operating lease arrangements AR B R E RS BRIDEE = ER L
at the end of the reporting periods. ZHE ©
46. Capital commitments 46. EXREE
The Group
rEE

2009 2008
—zEns [EEECE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FRT FET

Capital contribution in an investment in RER—RBERARINE TEE

an associate contracted for but not BRFHER A BB HREK A

provided in the consolidated BRI (HaL)

financial statements (Note) - 386,111
Capital contribution in respect of the BEME  BMELREETEE

acquisition of property, plant and EBRIARNGEEEAER

equipment contracted for but not B E AT A

provided in the consolidated
financial statements - 3,124
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46. Capital commitments (Continued)

47.

Note:

The Group’s total expected investment amount
in the associate is RMB607,500,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$675,000,000) including
RMB300,000,000 registered capital and
RMB307,500,000 shareholders loan. This associate
was established after obtaining the approval from
independent shareholders of the Company on
25 January 2008. As at 31 December 2008, the
Group contributed RMB60,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$66,667,000) as registered capital
and RMB200,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$222,222,000) as shareholder’s loan and
the remaining RMB347,500,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$386,111,000) was included as
capital commitment.

On 1 December 2009, a resolution was passed in
the board of directors meeting of this associate.
Pursuant to this resolution, certain terms stated
in the memorandum of article association of
this associate was amended, which caused the
authorised registered capital to be reduced from
RMB1,000,000,000 to RMB200,000,000 and the
shareholders loans previously obtained from each
shareholders were refunded during the year ended
31 December 2009. After this amendment, the
Group had no further capital commitment to this
associate.

The Company

The Company has no capital commitment at the end

of the

reporting periods.

Retirement benefits plans

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund

Scheme (the “Scheme”) for all qualifying employees

in Hong Kong. The assets of the Scheme are held

separately from those of the Group and are held,

in funds under the control of trustees. The Group

contributes the lower of HK$1,000 per month or 5%

of relevant payroll costs to the Scheme.

46.

47.

BEREEE)
Met: AEBBRERZBERRMNATE
AR E BN A AR 607,500,000
T(f8 & B % % ¥675,000,000
J0) ¢ HAEE1E AR 300,000,000
JLH) S E AN & A R 307,500,000
TR R E R ° 3% 5&2.—:@7% =
ZNE—A-_+HEBREARRD
YBREMORE KN - BE—
ENE+=ZA=+—8" $%E
& Bt A R #60,000,000 7T (18 & 7
#7515 66,667,000) fE A EME A K
AR # 200,000,000 7T (18 & 7 7 1
222,222,000t ) {E & I R E 3k & 23
#49 A R # 347,500,000 7t (FB & A
#7386,111,000/8 7T E BIREE A
EPER o

HE-_ZZhAFE+=-A—H8 &
ERAARESEMA—ABEE -
RIBEZIER] » B TZBERRNL
ERERWETMEBRE AT EM
ERH A RE1,000,000,000 7T 4>
Z= A R # 200,000,000 & & 5’6 ?ﬁ
38 [F) 55 iz B 51 2 EX A AR 3R B FR R
—ETAF+_A=+— EZ&W
WiRE - RIEBHIEE]  ASER
2 E AR BRI B A -

ADT
ARFARFERE BRILLEE AR
?I%‘

RAKEREE

AEBRAERBEREANGERET
HIT—HRFIEREREEI(TFTE]) -
ZABE TN EERAEBEEND
RisE YARAGEAEFNES
’H o AEB R 8IS A EH 1,000
7B TL B A B R H) 5% M & P EUE AV (i
K e
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47.

48.

Retirement benefits plans (Continued)

The employees of the subsidiaries in the PRC are
members of retirement benefits schemes operated by
the PRC government. The relevant PRC subsidiaries
are required to make contributions to the state
retirement scheme in the PRC based on 20% of the
monthly salaries of their current employees to fund
the benefits. The employees are entitled to retirement
pension calculated with reference to their basic
salaries on retirement and their length of service in
accordance with the relevant government regulations.
The PRC government is responsible for the pension
liability to the retired staff.

The total cost charged to the consolidated income
statement of HK$6,008,000 (2008: HK$5,267,000)
represents contributions to these schemes by the
Group in respect of the current accounting period.
As at 31 December 2009 and 2008, no contributions
due in respect of the reporting period had not been
paid over to the scheme.

Share options

On 27 May 2002, the shareholders of the Company
approved the termination (to the effect that no further
share options shall be offered) of the share option
scheme adopted by the Company on 26 June 1995
(the “Old Share Option Scheme”) and the adoption of
a new share option scheme (the “New Share Option
Scheme”) with effect from 27 May 2002. The Old
Share Option Scheme and the New Share Option
Scheme were adopted for the primary purpose
of giving incentives to the directors and eligible
employees of the Group.

47.

48.

RABERETE ()

b

RPBENMBARZEE2EATE
BT EFRRKRBHAIGE - BT
BB ARTERBEREEMRKG
HAREEREEZBATIEMN20%E
HER - UEBZFEN - BEEHE=R
RRAEE  BETREABOBESR
ERB2ROMEAERNERTER
WG FEFEMNST - PEBNFTAELX
MRKEE ZRERMNEE -

\

FAGZREAERERZKNABLE A
6,008,000/ m(= T T /\ %F:
5,267,000 L) r RRAEBERZE
SEETHER R _ZETAER-FT
ZENF+=ZA=1+—H ' HAEBREH
M- WEZEFEBE TR ZERRT
At e

fBIRAE

R-_EE_FHA-++tH ' AAA
BRRELEHEEAATEBERLE
BINBIRE)ARRIR—NANAAFRNA
T NBERA ERRER S ([ EiE AR
FElD YBEZZEEFRA=-TL
B 8 BR 4% 3 i AR R 5t 30 ([ 37 BE IR A 5t
2l) - IR E AR S R AT AR T
S FZENARRBAEEESEREE
BIEE -
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48. Share options (Continued)

According to the Old Share Option Scheme, the
board of directors of the Company were authorised,
at any time within ten years after the adoption
date, to grant share options to any directors or
employees of the Company or any of its subsidiaries
to subscribe for shares in the Company at a price
not less than 80% of the average of closing prices
of the Company’s shares on the five trading days
immediately preceding the offer date of the share
options or the nominal value of the Company’s
shares, whichever is higher. The maximum number
of shares in respect of which share options may be
granted under the Old Share Option Scheme cannot
exceed 10% of the aggregate nominal amount of the
issued share capital of the Company from time to
time.

According to the New Share Option Scheme, the
board of directors of the Company are authorised,
at any time within ten years after the adoption
date, to grant share options to any directors or
employees of the Company or any of its subsidiaries
to subscribe for shares in the Company at a price
not less than the closing price of the Company’s
shares on the date of grant, or the average closing
prices of the Company’s shares on the five trading
days immediately preceding the offer date of the
share options or the nominal value of the Company’s
shares, whichever is higher. The maximum number
of shares in respect of which share options may be
granted under the New Share Option Scheme cannot
exceed 30 per cent. of the aggregate nominal amount
of the issued share capital of the Company from time
to time.

No option was granted and exercised for both years
and no share option was outstanding as at 31
December 2009 and 2008.

48.

fBREE)

RBEBRESE  ARFEEFSER
R ERM B MR T FANEMER - &
FTARBREEMAMBARESTHIES
BRENRBARBRD - BRITED
REZBERERLBHABERXZBR
R A B U T (B 2 80% KA A Al
B zEE(RRSESE) - BEIRE
EREBET IR L c BREARE &
SEMNEE  TATEEAARRAERE
BITIRABEELZ 10% /R -

.

RRFTBRESS  ARAEZSER
R ERA B B+ FRREMERE - &%
FTARBREEMAMBEARESTLIES
BREARBARB RN - BERTED
REHBARARRRD ZWHE - B
BERERLAHMAERSHAARA
B FHlmEXARR B RN < HE
(A= ERE) BRAREHBERE
AERHZBRETRE 2 REROEK
B - I REBARR TR D ETRA
fEHEEZ 30% BR

P ] 4F [ 38 4 5% 1 % 17 68 4 (0 8 R
B ANR-TEAFR-TTN\F
+= A=+ — BYMEARTTEM0E
et -



Annual Report 2009 4E i

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #& B s R Mz

For the year ended 31 December 2009
BE—FETNFL-A=+—HIFFE

49. Related party transactions

The Group

During the year, the Group entered into the following

transactions with related parties:

49. EEBLEXRS
REH
FA o ANEFEEEERE T HET MRS ¢
2009 2008
—EEThE [EEEIGS

HK$’000 HK$’000
Fiz T

Interest income from a jointly
controlled entity
Interest income from associates

Interest income on loan to minority

shareholders of subsidiaries

Interest expense on loan from minority

shareholders of subsidiaries
Property management fee income
from an associate
Rental income from an associate
Rental income from a jointly

Y B — ) Ak B 22 1) 2 &)

EORIPSNT PN 1,711 2,717
LG ER B 2 8 | A 1 B 61,345 90,708
IWERF B ARl 2

D ERR RS R F) B ULA 1,715 323
SR ENGIPA S ST

ERmF B H 1,590 1,235
I ER — B & A B R B 2

BEEBWA 83 76
U By — FET Bt 2 A m) F 2 A 218 208

Y BN — I B S 2 A

controlled entity e WA 2,469 585
Accountancy fee income from a jointly HREZES AR Z @5t WA
controlled entity 1,677 —

Details of balances with related companies and other
transactions with related parties are set out in the
consolidated statement of financial position and in
notes 22, 23, 27, 40 and 41.

The Group and the Company

During the year ended 31 December 2008, the
Group and the Company purchased the entire equity
interest of Sun Steed and a shareholder’s loan from
Cll, an associate of the Group, at a consideration of
approximately HK$84,823,000 and HK$100,000,000
respectively. Details of this transaction are set out in
note 43.

During the year ended 31 December 2008, the
Group and the Company purchased available-for-sale
investments from ClII, an associate of the Group, at a
consideration of HK$63,500,000. As at 31 December
2009 and 2008, these available-for-sale investments
were held on trust by a subsidiary of a shareholder of
the Company.

ERARE N A SRR R R MR
SR BN AR A B IRR R K MY
2222327~ 40541

KEERALQT

RZEBEENF+—_RA=+—HBz2%#
A ANEERAR R AL E R — R
AT - RES RILARE 484,823,000
7 7T % 100,000,000 78 7T Y B8 B BE ) &
HRDEREBRRER - kR 5 ZF1E
IR FE 43 ©

R_ZEZENFE+_A=+—BZH
A REE KRR RS B — KB
EnE - B E AR EB3,500,00078 7T
BATHLERE - R-_TTARNF
TZA=1+—8  ZAHLERERX
RE—BERROMBARAGET AR
REE -
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49. Related party transactions (Continued)

50.

51.

The Company

Details of balances with subsidiaries are set out in
the statement of financial position and in notes 19
and 42.

Except for the directors’ remuneration as disclosed in
note 9 during the year, there is no other remuneration
of key management.

The remuneration of directors is determined by
the remuneration committee having regard to the
performance of individuals and market trends.

Major non-cash transactions

During year ended 31 December 2009, out of the
total consideration of HK$358,233,000 for disposal
of an associate, HK$258,233,000 was yet to be
received and included in the deposits, prepayments
and other receivables. The fair value of the unsettled
consideration at initial recognition amounted to
HK$236,880,000 was determined by using imputed
interest rate of 5.52%.

During the year ended 31 December 2008, the
Group’s deposit paid for establishment of an
associate of HK$64,171,000 was transferred to
interest in an associate upon the formation of this
associate.

Events after the reporting period

Subsequent to 31 December 2009, the Group has
the following significant subsequent events:

(i)

During the year, the Company entered into
a legally binding term sheet with CGNPC
International Limited (the “Investor”), a wholly
owned subsidiary of China Guangdong Nuclear
Power Holding Co., Ltd. which is a company
established in the PRC under the leadership
of State-owned Assets Supervision and
Administration Commission of the State Council
of PRC. Pursuant to the term sheet, a formal
subscription agreement would be entered into
between the Company and the Investor upon
the completion of the satisfactory due diligence
by the Investor and finalisation of the terms of
the subscription agreement. On 28 January
2010, after the completion of the satisfactory
due diligence by the Investor, the Investor has
entered into a formal subscription agreement,
pursuant to this subscription agreement, the
Investor would subscribe 364,140,000 new
shares of the Company for a consideration of
HK$728,280,000 at the subscription price of
HK$2 per share. On 10 February 2010, a total
of 364,140,000 new shares of the Company,
representing 16.67% of the issued share capital
of the Company as enlarged by the subscription
shares, were allotted and issued to the Investor
at the subscription price of HK$2 per share.

49.

50.

51.
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51.

Events after the reporting period (Continued)

(ii)

(iif)

On 10 February 2010, the Company entered
into a non-legally binding letter of intent (the
“Letter of Intent”) with the Investor. Pursuant
to the Letter of Intent, the Company and the
Investor are considering the possibility of
investing directly or indirectly through a special
purpose vehicle, in projects recommended by
the Investor (the “Proposed Transactions”) on
or before 31 December 2011. The Company
intends to take up interests in the Proposed
Transactions in the range of 20% to 49%. The
expected investment of the Company will be
no more than HK$1,000 million in aggregate.
The Proposed Transactions shall be related to
resources, energy and nuclear such as nuclear
power assets, general power assets, uranium
mine resources and applications of nuclear
technology. At the date of the report, no formal
agreement has been entered into between the
Company and the Investor in respect of the
Proposed Transactions.

On 18 March 2010, R HEBRKREERER
[R/A\] (“Beijing Runda”), an indirectly wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into
a capital increase agreement (the “Agreement’)
with Shanxi Guoyang New Energy Co., Ltd.
(“Shanxi Guoyang”), a joint stock limited
company incorporated in the PRC which shares
are listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange.
Pursuant to the Agreement, the registered
capital of B RFEKREABR LA (“Guoyang
Tiantai”), a company incorporated in the
PRC with limited liability, will be increased to
RMB2,000 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$2,260 million). The capital increase will be
contributed as to RMB980 million (equivalent
to approximately HK$1,107,400,000) by Beijing
Runda and RMB670 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$757,100,000) by Shanxi
Guoyang respectively. Upon the completion
of the capital increase, the registered capital
and paid-up capital of Guoyang Tiantai will
be increased to RMB2,000 million (equivalent
to approximately HK$2,260 million) and the
capital contribution of Beijing Runda and Shanxi
Guoyang in Guoyang Tiantai will be RMB980
million (equivalent to approximately HK$1,107
million) and RMB1,020 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$1,153 million), representing
49% and 51% of the registered capital of
Guoyang Tiantai respectively. Following the
capital increase, Guoyang Tiantai will be treated
as an associate of the Company. At the date
of the report, Guoyang Tiantai has yet to
commence business and it will be engaged in
coal resources related business.

51.

RBERRERE)

(i

(ii)
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51.

Events after the reporting period (Continued)

(iv)

On 30 March 2010, the Company concluded
an investment of USD25 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$195 million) by investing
into the convertible note issued by Winsway
Coking Coal Holdings Limited (“Winsway Coking
Coal”), of which the convertible note can be
converted into listed securities upon the listing
of Winsway Coking Coal in accordance with
agreed covenants. Winsway Coking Coal is a
conglomerate platform enterprise engaged in
the businesses of coal import, cross-border coal
logistics (mainly across the borders of China-
Mongolia and China-Russia), coal equipment
development and operation, coal selection
processing and coal trading.

52. Particulars of subsidiaries, associates and

(@)

jointly controlled entities

Particulars of the Company’s major subsidiaries
at 31 December 2009 are as follows:

51. A{EMRBEE)

(iv)

NRZE—ZF=A=1+H ' AR
7] 3% & #% & 25,000,000 3 Jt (48
& 7 195,000,000 7T ) # A K IE
EEB D AR QR ([KEER])
AR EE - ATRAKEER E™H
FriZ BA IR R EB K EmE
FookEBEKERE —REKED -
EBEORDR(EEEFE — =
EMPE — RELTRE) RER
RN EE - BEMT K
E—BLHNERMAPTALE -

52. MBAR - BEATRAERESLQ
ARE

(@)

AAAWEZMBRAAIR_-ZF
BAF+=A=+—BHEMD
T

Proportion of

nominal value of
issued ordinary

Country/ Nominal value of share capital/
place of issued ordinary registered capital
incorporation/ share capital/ held by the Company
establishment  registered capital KAREE
Name of company ML BERTEER BRTLERRA/ Principal activities
NAER A%/ Fifit A/ AMEAEE AMEAEELA TEEH
Directly Indirectly
HE 63
Beiling East Gate Development PRC US$100,413,500 = 100%  Property development
Co., Ltd. (‘Beijing East Gate’) # 100,413,500 7T and investment
IRRREZERAA(ERRR])  (Note)) NEERREE
(Wit i)
Beijing Yinda Property Management PRC RMB10,000,000 = 90% Property management
Limited (“Yinda’) H AR 10,000,000 NEER

T RRENEERARETLA (Note i)
([3RE]) (Hizti;)



Annual Report 2009 4E i

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #& B s R M=

For the year ended 31 December 2009

RE-FENF+=J=+—HILFR

52. Particulars of subsidiaries, associates and

jointly controlled entities (Continued)

(a) (continued)

Country/
place of
incorporation/

BAWEE)
(@ (#&)

Proportion of
nominal value of
issued ordinary
share capital/
registered capital
held by the Company

Nominal value of
issued ordinary
share capital/

52. MiBAR - BEATRAERESLQ

establishment  registered capital ANRfEE
Name of company it A BRTERR BRTEERRA/ Principal activities
NEER A%/ Fiti A/ EMEAEE A MEREELA TEXHE
Directly Indirectly
B 4
Beijing Ju Fu Real Estate PRC RMB105,000,000 — 90% Property development
Development Company Limited H AR 105,000,000 70 and investment
(“Beijing Ju Fu’) (Note ii) ESEYE ¢
G RERRHEREARAR (Hrtii)
([ERER])
Silver Grant International Assets Hong Kong HK$10,000 100% — Distressed assets
Management Limited B 10,0008 7T business
REAREEERERARA TREBERK
Silver Grant International Assets Hong Kong HK$100 100% = Distressed assets
Investment Limited i 100787 business
REAREEREERAA FREERK
Greenhill Property Limited British Virgin US$1 100% = Investment holding
Islands 0 REARR
EBRRES
Ju Fu San Yan Jing Investment Hong Kong HK$2 - 100%  Investment holding
Company Limited B 28T RERR
ER=BRAREERAA
Likesway Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100% = Property holding and
MEEAR AT B 28T investment
RENERRE
Real China Development Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100% = Property holding and
RREBRBRAR ik 28T investment

FENEREE
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52. Particulars of subsidiaries, associates and 52. fiEAR - - BHEARAREREHQ
jointly controlled entities (Continued) AREE)
(a) (continued) (@ (#&)

Proportion of
nominal value of
issued ordinary

Country/ Nominal value of share capital/
place of issued ordinary registered capital
incorporation/ share capital/ held by the Company
establishment  registered capital NG e
Name of company it A BRTERR BRTEERRA/ Principal activities
NAER A%/ Fifi A/ ZMEAEE EMEREELA TEXH
Directly Indirectly
Ef 53
Silver Grant Department British Virgin US$1 100% — Inactive
Store (BVI) Limited Islands S e
EBRERES
Silver Grant Hainan Investment British Virgin US$1 100% = Inactive
(BVI) Limited Islands 1% TEEH
EERRES
Silver Grant Infra-structure British Virgin US$1 100% = Investment holding
Investment (BV) Limited Islands E RAER
RBRTES
Samtung Investment Limited British Virgin US$1 100% = Investment holding
Islands I REER
EBRRES
Platinum Two Limited Mauritius US$1 100% - Inactive
2R 1% LEEH
Silver Grant International Infra- Hong Kong HK$2 = 100%  Investment holding
structure Investment Limited 0 28T RERR
RRERERREARAT
Silver Grant International Securities Hong Kong HK$2 - 100%  Securities trading
Investment Limited B 2B FHEE

BREREFRERRAA
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52. MiBAR - BEATRAEFESLQ
AREE)

52. Particulars of subsidiaries, associates and
jointly controlled entities (Continued)

(a) (continued) (@ (#&)

Country/
place of
incorporation/

Nominal value of
issued ordinary
share capital/

Proportion of
nominal value of
issued ordinary
share capital/
registered capital
held by the Company

establishment  registered capital KARMEE
Name of company it BRTERR BRTEERRA/ Principal activities
NEER 8%/ Fifi A/ AMEAEE EMEREELA TEXH
Directly Indirectly
B 53
Silver Grant Securities Investment British Virgin US$1 100% — Investment holding
(BVI) Limited Islands S REAER
EBRRES
SYJ Holding Limited British Virgin HK$2,170 100% = Investment holding
Islands 2170% 7 REER
AERRES
Straight View Investment Limited Hong Kong HK$100 100% = Investment holding
ZRREARAT B 1007 RAER
Twin Sparkle Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100% = Property holding and
EmEERAR & 28T investment
HENERKRE
Winner Property Limited British Virgin US$1 = 100%  Investment holding
Islands 1%1 REER
EBRRES
*Zhong Qing Luen Chuang Technology  PRC RMB5,000,000 = 60% Investment holding
(Beijing) Company Limited i AR 5,000,0007 REER
(“Zhong Qing’)’ (Note iv)
hEREMR(ER)BRAR(RE]) (M)
Sun Steed International British Virgin US$100 100% = Investment holding
Investment Limited Islands 100%7 REARR
REERREBRAA ABRIES
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52. Particulars of subsidiaries, associates and 52. fiEAR - - BHEARAREREHQ
jointly controlled entities (Continued) AREE)
(a) (continued) (@ (#&)

Proportion of
nominal value of
issued ordinary

Country/ Nominal value of share capital/
place of issued ordinary registered capital
incorporation/ share capital/ held by the Company
establishment  registered capital NG e
Name of company ML BRIEER BRTLERRE/ Principal activities
NEAER A%/ it WA/ AMEAEE EMEREELS TEEH
Directly Indirectly
H# 53
Silver Grant International Hong Kong HK$100 = 100% Investment holding
Petrochemical Limited it 1007T RERR
(Formerly known as
“Cll Petrochemical Co., Limited”)
REEARACERAT
(FBARER{ERAR])
“Tai Zhou Dong Tai Petrochemical PRC RMB230,000,000 = 69.78%  Property holding and
Company Limited (TZ Dong Tai’) AR 230,000,000 7 Investment
FNERAMBERDA(RRAL])  (Note i) FEMEREE
(Hrztii)
Fast Winner Investments Limited” British Virgin US$1,000 100% — Inactive
Islands 1,000% 7T TEXH
EBRRES
Aesco Limited” Hong Kong HK$200,000 100% - Investment holding
A 200,000/ 7T RAER
*Jing Yin International Investment PRC RMB100,000,000 - 100%  Inactive
Consltant (Beiing) Company Ltd* & AR 100,000,000 TiEEY
("Jing Yin")
RRERRETA(ER)ERAR"
(TR&R])

The english names are for identification only. * EXHBRAESRE o
# Newly incorporated or acquired during the year i R=ZZTEZNF+=_A=+—H
ended 31 December 2009. IFFE AL EA o
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52. Particulars of subsidiaries, associates and
jointly controlled entities (Continued)

(@)

(continued)

Notes:

(i) The subsidiary is registered as a wholly foreign-
owned enterprise.

(ii) It is a sino-foreign equity joint venture company
established in the PRC. Under the joint
venture agreement, the Group is responsible
to contribute RMB9,000,000 to the registered
capital of Yinda and share 90% of the profits
and losses of Yinda.

(i) These subsidiaries are registered domestic
enterprises.

(iv) It is a sino-foreign equity joint venture company
established in the PRC.

Other than the investment holding companies
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands which
have no principal place of operation, and Beijing
East Gate, Yinda, Beijing Ju Fu, TZ Dong
Tai, Zhong Qing and Jing Yin which operate
principally in the PRC, all other subsidiaries
principally operate in Hong Kong.

Other than the convertible note issued by the
Company as explained in note 37, no loan
capital has been issued by the Company and
any of its subsidiaries.

52. MiBAR - BEATRAEFESLQ
AREE)

(@ (#&)
Hfzt -

(i) LEH B R AR IA—REINE B
B -

(i) BR-FKNFBKZZFIIE
Bh%- - REAEAR A&
E&EHE AR 9,000,000
ERIREZEMEAR - XAE
D FIRIFE 0% Ha °

iu

(iii) EMBAR AZEMAE R

H

(iv) &

—RRHPERIZHHE
=,

> #io

T [

BREBREZESEMKL &
BN A 2 R A
MARRER - #fZ tRER -
EMRE - PERRBETERR
REEES  FTAMEBARIEE
EEFBKE

BRI ES7 R A2 AR A & AT

WA BRRERIN - KRB REE
A fS /8 A R BB BT EME AME
% o

187
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52. Particulars of subsidiaries, associates and 52, fiBAR BEQAARERES D
jointly controlled entities (Continued) AREE)
(b) Particulars of the Group’s significant associates by AEBzFEBERAARE
at 31 December 2009 are as follows: TNFTZR=+—HHFEN
T :
Country/
place of
incorporation/
Form of establishment  Principal
business a1 place of Class of Proportion of nominal value of
Name of company structure A5ty business shares held registered capital held by Principal activities
ARER b7 3it] FrEst IDEEHE  FrRGER FrisaamarEELA B
The Group  The Company
A58 |
[FEREE Registered PRC PRO Registered capital 30% - Property
ARAT Al % iF Ralip-e development
and operation,
property
management and
construction
MEEEREE -1
*EEREE
*Zhong Hai You Qi (Tai~ Registered PRC PRC Registered capital 23.03% = Production and
Zhou) Petrochemical 7 G h HiER frading of
Company Limited petroleum and
mERR (FMAL petrochemical
ERAF products
EEREERBR
Rt IER

*

The English name is for identification only. * KX EZBREZE -



Annual Report 2009 4E i

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #& B s R M=

For the year ended 31 December 2009

RE-FENF+=J=+—HILFR

52. Particulars of subsidiaries, associates and
jointly controlled entities (Continued)

()

Particulars of the Group’s jointly controlled

entities at 31 December 2009 are as follows:

52. fiBAT > BENTR

AREE)

HEZH D

© AEBHAZHIAR_-FTAH
F+ZA=+—HNFHBWT :

Proportion of nominal

Form of Country Principal place value of registered
business of incorporation  of business Class of capital held by
Name of entity structure HRRL TEEZ shares held FiEENER Principal activities
ARER E7)5it] 2 BF/4% & RGO &R BREEL BN
the Group the Company
A5 L
Platinum One Limited Incorporated Mauritius PRC Ordinary 50% 50%  Distressed assets
Al TERN lEi Lk business
ARAERT
NEDSEEERAR"  Registored PRC PRC Registered Capital 50% 50%  Designand trading
i mE e AR of washroom
facllities
Rt RHHE
AERG
“TZ United East * Registered PRC PRC Registered Capital 50% - Production and
T RE Al i i AR frading of
petrochemical
products
FEHERMT
Em
* The English name is for identification only. * EXHBRIERE o
A The Group control 50% voting power in general “ AEBMPKRRAE E1EH50%
meeting. All the decision made in the Board KEE FBEESEEZIRES
of Directors meeting require at least 2/3 votes EHED2/BEBRR o
from all directors.
53. Particulars of the special purpose vehicle 53. HHREMNBRERE

Particulars of the special purpose vehicle which hold
the Group’s investment in distressed assets at 31

December 2009 are as follows:

RAASERETRAENRKE HH
BR-_ZTAF+_A=+—HNFE

mF

Form of Principal Proportion of nominal value

business Place of place of Class of of registered capital held by
Name of entity structure establishment  business shares held fiE Principal activities
ARER 35l AMRUEE  TEEXRE  fRROEN AfEREEHL A IEXE

the Group the Company
558 |
Dongxin Union Sino-foreign PRC PRC Registered 46.17% = Distressed assets
REHS equty joint hE capital business
venture AR PREERH
hoaE

A%0%
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Year ended 31 December

BE+-H=t-HLEE
2005 2006 2007 2008 2009
“EThEF “EENE LA —“FT\F —EENE
HK$ Million HK$ Million HK$ Million HKS Million W LEALHIL
BEET AEET BEET BEET BEET
Results E
Revenue WA 551.8 688.1 439.7 288.3 329.3
Profit for the year attributable to owners of ~ R FAEE A
the Company FEEER &R 7241 494.8 322.9 871 406.3
At 31 December
R+=B=1-H
2005 2006 2007 2008 2009
“ZTHE S “ERLE “ERN\F ZZThE
HK$ Million ~ HK$ Million ~ HK$ Million  HK$ Million  RGLEXHITIE
BEET BEET BEET BEET BEET
Assets and liabilities BERGHE
Investment properties and property, plant ~ RAMERNE -
and equipment BE R 2,207.8 2,328.5 2,282.6 2,650.7 2,511.7
Land use rights THfE R — — — 26.9 26.8
Goodwill HE 335 BE10 7.0 114 7.0
Structured finance securities EEhERES = 244 12.0 12.2 9.0
Other asset H&E 41 28 1.4 = -
Interest in jointly controlled entities SEEDI AR - 321 13.6 66.7 198.4
Interests in associates and 5?%2} T*Eﬁn&
amounts due from associates NG 1,510.8 1,540.1 1,110.8 784.0 133.0
Available-for-sale investments MEHERE 2.2 99.1 167.7 314.0 435.5
Interest in distressed assets TREERR 204.7 = = = -
Investment in distressed assets BBNLERE R
through establishment of HERETREE
a special purpose vehicle - - 9.7 - -
Deposit paid for acquisition of investments 2t EREKRS 445 - 64.2 - -
Deposit paid for acquisition BERMEAREERS
of distressed assets 263.7 - - - -
Deferred tax assets BEEHEEE 1.3 - - - -
Loan receivables — non-current BUET — R - - - - 339.7
Deposits, prepayments and other s BRZRLL
receivables — non-current B — ERE - - = = 142.1
Net current assets BRHEE 238.3 1,211.9 1,828.9 1,342.4 1,848.6
4,530.9 5,272.4 5,497.9 5,208.3 5,651.8
Share capital R 337.7 364.1 364.1 364.1 364.1
Reserves @ 3,506.3 4,226.5 4,641.9 4,505.5 4,805.3
Equity attributable to owners ARAEEA
of the Company FEARRRA 3,843.0 4,590.6 5,006.0 4,869.6 5,169.4
Minority interests PERFER 55.7 16.3 127 202.5 93.2
Non-current liabilities FnBERE 632.2 665.5 479.2 136.2 389.2
4,530.9 5,272.4 5,497.9 5,208.3 5,651.8




Annual Report 2009 4E i

SUMMARY OF INVESTMENT PROPERTIES i EYEBE

For the year ended 31 December 2009
BE—FETNFL-A=+—HIFFE

The following is a list of the Group’s investment properties
at 31 December 2009:

Investment properties in the PRC

TNIRAEER_ZEZNF+_A=+—H

MR EME

== oo

BE -

URPEZRENE

Location Lease term Purpose Gross area
i B H A HAPR Az HEEER
Sq. ft.
FAR
1. Basement 1, Basement 2, Level O and Level 1 to 3 of Medium Commercial 700,427
East Gate Plaza, 19 Dongzhong Street, term lease FE
Dongcheng District, Beijing, The PRC. H A
FELIE R TR R R AT 195 RIR S B — [ -
WEZE RER—EZE=[E-
2. Level 4 to 31, South Apartment Tower, Long lease Residential 339,739
East Gate Plaza, 39 Dongzhong Street, = *=
Dongcheng District, Beijing, The PRC.
R B L TR T SRR SRR AT 395 IR B IS M A B R
EME=t1—[E-
3. Level 4 to 31, North Apartment Tower, Long lease Residential 339,993
East Gate Plaza, 19 Dongzhong Street, = *=
Dongcheng District, Beijing, The PRC.
REIE R T R R R AT 195 IR E S IR AE &
EUEN
4.  Portion of Level 2-5, 6 and 8 of Hua Bo Lau, Medium term Commercial 10,540
No. 28 Dong Zhong Jie Jia, lease (note) [SES
Dongcheng District, Beijing, The PRC. RRER (A aE)
B R TR R RP A28 R EREE —_F A
NERNEES
5.  Certain properties at Yin Tong International Centre, Long lease Commercial 153,882
C5 World Trade Avenue, Haikou City, Hainan Province, KHf EES
The PRC.
R EA T E KECHIRBEFR AL E TYE-
6. Certain properties on various level of Block 4 at Long lease Residential 9,052
Yihe Garden, Diahua Road, Haidian Island East, A F=E

Development District the 3rd Southern Zone, Haikou,
Hainan Province, The PRC.

Bl R R EAT/EE SR AR R R = EEERENEE
NBRARZBE TR

[
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Investment properties in the PRC (Continued)

URPBZREME(E)

Location Lease term Purpose Gross area
b B HA PR JizE=S BEEE
Sq. ft.
FATR
7. A unit located on Block 6, Yihe Garden, Long lease Residential 6,637
Dianhua Road, Haidian Island East, Development K Hi F=
District the 3rd Southern Zone, Haikou,
Hainan Province, The PRC.
HEEEE BT SRS R BHRERR=EEEEEN
TER/N@R6R—ETT -
8. Carparking space No. 6 & 8 on Level 1 of Block 3, Long lease Car parking 464
Yihe Garden, Dianhua Road, Haidian Island East, AR L[]
Development District the 3rd Southern Zone,
Haikou, Hainan Province, The PRC.
HEEEE BN SRS R MR ER=EEEEEN
TEE/NRIRE—EO N8R EE
9. Unit 502 on Level 5 of Block 16, No. 2 Longkun Road Long lease Residential 1,162
North, Haikou, Hainan Province, The PRC. gt F=
HENGREEEAT RIS 16MR E AE5025
10. Unit 401 & 501 on Levels 4 & 5 of Block 10, Long lease Residential 2,015
No. 2 Longkun Road North, Haikou, gt F=E
Hainan Province, The PRC.
HEEmRA/EATERILR2FI0OREL R A E
40150255
11.  An office unit located on the Eastern Portion of Long lease Commercial 6,079
Level 15, CMEC Building, Guomao Main Road, K [EES
Haikou, Hainan Province, The PRC.
R EEREEEAMEE N ECMECKE+RE
REFAEEITES
12.  Villa No. 8 of Block D, Shannei Garden, Long lease Residential 3,118
No. 258 Wenming Road East, Haikou, gt F=E
Hainan Province, The PRC.
F B R H 8 A AR R B 2585k LA fEE DAL B 22855
Note: The legal title of the properties have not been passed to Kiat: WEMEZEER_ZTTNALF+ A

the Group at 31 December, 2009.

=t—HHEKEP TALKHE -
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